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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Electronically Filed

CLERK OF THE COURT

STEPHEN HABERKORN, an individual, CASE NO. A-16-732619-B

Plaintiff, DEPT. XXIX
V5.

ARCHON CORPORATION, a Nevada
corporation; PAUL W, LOWDEN, an
individual; and SUZANNE LOWDEN, an
individual; UNKNOWN DOE DIRECTORS
OF ARCHON CORPORATION; DOES 1
through 1(; and ROE ENTITIES 1 through 10,
inclusive

Defendants.

MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT

Defendants Archon Corporation (“Archon™), Paul W, Lowden, and Suzanne Lowden
(collectively, “Defendants™), by and through their attorneys of record, Dickinson Wright
PLLC, respectfully move this Court to dismiss the Complaint filed by Stephen Haberkorn
("“Plamtiff"). This Motion is made pursuant to NRCP 12(b)(5) and is supported by the
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attached memeorandum of points and authorities, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and

any other material this Coust may choose to consider.

DATED this 6th day of April, 2016.

DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC

s/ Justin 1. Bustos

JOHN P. DESMOND
Nevada Bar No. 5618
idesmond @ dickinsonwright.com

JUSTIN J. BUSTOS

Nevada Bar No, 10320
jbustos@dickinsonwright.com
100 West Liberty Street

Suite 940

Reno, Nevada 89501

Tel: (775) 343-7500

Fax: (775) 786-0131

Attorneys for Defendants
Archen Corporation,
Paul W. Lowden, ang
Suzanne Lowden

2of 23

PA163



ooDe -~ v th B W B

| ] 3 ] %] ) ) 3 (%] 3 [ — — —_— [ e [ [y o [
= ~3 o Ln e O (S8 ] —_— = pta) oo ~1 [#8 wn e (¥ (o] — o

NOTICE OF MOTION

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss is set for hearing in this
Court on the 18t day of June

thereafter as the parties may be heard.

Dated this 6th day of April, 2016.

DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC

/sf Justin J. Bustos

, 2016, at 9 OOa.mJ;xm., or as soon

JOHN P, DESMOND
Nevada Bar No. 5618
idesmond @dickinsonwright.com

JUSTIN 1. BUSTOS

Nevada Bar No, 10320
ibustos @dickinsonwright.com
100 West Liberty Street

Suite 940

Reno, Nevada 89501

Tel: (775) 343-7500

Fax: (775) 786-0131

Attorneys for Defendants
Archon Corporation,
Paul W, Lowden, and
Suzanne Lowden
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INFRODUCTION

On August 31, 2007, Archon redeemed a class of equity securities designated as
Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock (“EPS”), Now, more than eight years after the
date of redemption, Plaintiff has initiated this action to challenge the redemption price paid by
Archon, Indeed, every claim in Plaintiff's Complaint is based entirely on the fauity premise
that Archon failed to redeem its EPS because it miscalculated the redemption price in 2007.
Given the amount of time that has passed since Archon redeemed its EPS, each of the claims
in Plaintiff’s Complaint is barred by the statute of limitations and must be dismissed in its
entirety.

The contractual relationship between Archon and holders of EPS was governed by,
among other documents, the 1993 Certificate of Designation of Exchangeable Redeemable
Preferred Stock (the “Certificate”), The Certificate is a public record that was filed with the
Nevada Secretary of State on or about September 30, 1993, On July 31, 2007, Archon gave
notice that it would redeem the outstanding EPS on August 31, 2007, at the redemption price
of $5.241 per share, The redemption subsequently occurred on August 31, 2007,

Plaintiff alleges that the redemption price calculated by Archon was incorrect and that
the correct redemption price should have been $8.69 per share, Plaintiff further alleges that
because of this alleged miscalculation in the redemption price, the EPS was not validly
redeemed and remains outstanding to this date. Based on this premise, Plaintiff challenges
various corporate actions that were taken by Archon following the August 31, 2007, date of
redemption, Based on the premise that Archon miscalculated the redemption price in 2007,
Plaintiff’s Complaint asserts nine claims for relief and seeks damages, injunctive relief, and
declaratory relief.

Because this action {(and the factual basis for each of the claims for relief) is
fundamentally based on Archon’s alleged error in 2007, Plaintiff’s claims for relief
necessarily accrued in 2007 and are barred by the applicable statutes of limitation. At the time

of redemption, Plaintiff knew or shouid have known of all the facts giving rise to his claim

4 of 23

PA16S



U= -+ R = T T " I

10
i1
i2
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

that the redemption was invalid. However, Plaintiff failed to timely file suit to challenge the
validity of Archon’s redemption and cannot now do so more than eight years after the
redemption occurred. Therefore, Defendants respectfully request that this action be dismissed
in its entirety,

II.  FACTUAL BACKGROUND!

A, The Parties

Archon, formerly known as Sahara Gaming Corporation, is a Nevada corporation with
its principal place of business in Clark County, Nevada. (Compl, %4 2, 12.) Archon’s primary
business operations are conducted through a wholly-owned subsidiary corporation, Pioneer
Hotel Inc,, which operates the Pioneer Hotel & Gambling Hall in Laughlin, Nevada, Paul W,
Lowden is a direcior and the President of Archon. id. § 4. Suzannre Lowden is a director, the
Secretary, and Treasurer of Archon, I1d. § 6.

Plaintiff Stephen Haberkomn is an individual that claims to have been the beneficial
owner of 2,254 shares of Archon’s Exchangeable Redeemabic Preferred Stock (“EPS”) prior
to the time it was redeemed on August 31, 2007. See id, I 1, 16, 17. Mr, Haberkorn further
claims to be the beneficial owner of 40,000 shares of Archon’s common stock. Id.  16.

B. Archon’s EPS

In 1993, Archon adopted a resolution creating nine million shares of EPS. Id. § 12,
The rights of the holders of Archon’s EPS, including dividends, redemption and voting rights
are described in, among other documents, the 1993 Certificate of Designation of
Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Certificate”). Id. 13 and Exhibit 1 to the
Complaint, Pursuant to the Certificate, the shares had ne maturity date or mandatory
redemption date, (Certificate, Exhibit 1 to Complaint.) The Centificate provided that dividends
were to be “fully cumulative,” meaning that dividends accrued in years they were not declared

and paid. Id. § 2(a).

! This Motion to Dismiss assumes the truth of the allegations set forth in Plaintiff's Complaint, See Buzz Stew,
LLC v. City of N. Las Vegas, 124 Nev. 224, 228, 181 P.3d 670, 672 (2008). However, Defendants vigorously
dispule numerous facts alleged in the Complaiat und will present evidence to rebut such facts in the event this
action is not distnissed in its entirety,
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On July 31, 2007, Archon gave notice that it would redeem the outstanding EPS on
August 31, 2007, Id. § 17. The Redemption Price was ¢qual to the Liquidation Preference,
which resulted in a redemption price of $5.241 per share, Id, § I8 and Exhibit 1 to the
Complaint,

C. Certain EPS Holders File Eawsuits Challenging the Redemption Price

Shortly following the redemption of the EPS, certain holders of EPS filed lawsuits
against Archon in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, alleging that
Archon miscalculated the Redemption Price. Id. §f 25-30. On August 27, 2007, a Complaint
was filed against Archon by a group of hedge funds, D.E. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L.L.C. et
al., case number 2:07-cv-01146-PMP-(LRL) (“D.E. Shaw”), Id,  25. Another hedge fund,
Leeward Capital, L.P., subsequently filed suit on January 2, 2008, case number 2:08-cv-
00007-PMP-(LRL) (“Leeward™).

The United States District Court ultimately granted summary judgment in favor of the
plaintiffs in D.E. Shaw and Leeward, determining that the redemption price should have been
$8.69 per share, Id, § 27, This determination was affirmed by the Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals on September 19, 2012. Id. § 28. Thereafter, Archon paid the judgment. id. § 29,
However, Archon did not make any payments to EPS shareholders who did not file suit or
obtain a legally binding judgment. Id. § 29.

D. Archon’s Corporate Actions Fellowing Redemption of the EPS

Plaintiff's Complaint contains several allegations regarding Archon’s corporate
actions following the redemption of Archon's EPS, including the following:
* During the quarter ended June 30, 2008, Archon offered to purchase up to 600,000
shares of its common stock at a price of $40.00 per share. Id, at 20, A total of 62,604
shares were tendered in response to the offer and purchased by Archon. Id.
o In December 2008 and June 2010, Paul Lowden and Suzanne Lowden approved

Archon's adoption of plans for Archon to make period ongoing open market purchases
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of up to five percent of its common stock. 1d. § 21. Archon ultimately purchased a total
of 225,000 shares on November 3, 2010. I,

¢ In March of 2011, Archon implemented a 1 for 250 reverse stock split. Id.  22. As a
result of this split, stockholders who had fewer than 250 shares were paid the market
value of their shares of stock as of the close of trading on February 13, 2011, Id. § 23.
A forward split of 250 for 1 then restored the remaining stockholders to their pre-
reverse-split holdings. Id. § 22. This corporate action was intended to reduce the
number of shareholders of record below three hundred, which in tum would eliminate
Archon’s obligation to file certain periodic financial reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Id.

o  On March 31, 2011, Archon filed a Form 15 with the SEC, which resulted in the
termination of Archon’s registration with the SEC and suspended Archon’s duty to file
periodic financiai reports with the SEC, Id.  24.

E. Plaintiff's Claims for Relief

Based on the above aliegations, Plaintiff filed this action on February 29, 2016,
Plaintiff’s Complaint includes the following claims for relief: (1) declaratory relief; (2) breach
of contract; (3) breach of fiduciary duty — unequal treatment of preferred stockholders; (4)
breach of fiduciary duty — nondisclosure of material information; (5) breach of fiduciary duty
- wrongful deregistration; (6) nondisclosure; (7) unjust enrichment; (8) accounting; and (9)
injunctive relief,

I, LEGAL STANDARD

NRCP 12(b)(5) permits Defendants to file a motion to dismiss for failure to state a
claim upon which relief can be granted. “To survive dismissal, a complaint must contain some
‘set of facts, which, if true, would entitle [the plaintiff] to relief.”™ In re Amerco Derivative
Litig., 127 Nev, Adv, Op. 17, 252 P.3d 681, 692 (2011) (quoting Buzz Stew, LLC v, City of N,
lLas Vegas, 124 Nev, 224, 228, 181 P.3d 670, 672 (2008)). In considering a Rule 12(b)(5)

motion, the court must accept all of the plaintiff's factual allegations as true and draw all
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reasonable inferences in the plaintiff’s favor, Id. However, the court is not required to accept
legal conclusions cast in the form of factual allegations. Lacano Investments, LLC v, Balash,
765 F.3d 1068, 1071 (9th Cir. 2014) {citing Doe v. Holy See, 557 F.3d 1066, 1073 (9th Cir,
2009)).

1V.  DISCUSSION

A, All of Plaintiff’s Claims are Barred by the Applicable Statute of Limitations

Plaintiff’s Complaint should be dismissed in its entirety as cach of the nine claims for
relief was filed outside of the applicable statute of limitations, Assuming the truth of every
atlegation in Plaintiff's Complaint, Plaintiff knew or reasonably should have known of any
claims against Defendants no later than August 31, 2007, the date the EPS was redeemed.
Indeed, every claim made by Plaintiff in this case is fundamentally based on the assumption
that Archon did not validly redeem jts EPS on August 31, 2007,

“When the defense of the statute of limitations appears from the complaint itself, a
motion to dismiss is proper.,” Kellar v, Snowden, 87 Nev. 488, 491, 489 P.2d 90, 92 (1971)
{citing Manville v, Manville, 79 Nev. 487, 387 P.2d 661 (1963)); In re Amerco Derivative
Litig,, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 17, 252 P.3d 681, 703 (2011) {citing Shupe & Yost, Inc, v. Falion
Nat’l Bank, 169 Nev. 99, 100, 847 P.2d 720, 720 (1993)}. “In determining whether a statute of
limitations has run against an action, the time must be computed from the day the cause of
action accrued. A cause of action ‘accrues’ when a suit may be maintained thercon.” State ex
rel, Dep’t of Transp. v. Pub. Employees’ Ret, Sys. of Nevada, 120 Nev, 19, 21-22, 83 P.3d
815, 817 (2004).

In this case, dismissal is appropriate because no facts need to be determined or
assessed beyond the allegations in the Complaint to conclude that the claims are barred by
their respective statutes of limitations. Indeed, the allepations in Plaintiff's Complaint
cstablish that all of Plaintiff’s claims arc premised upon Archon’s alleged wrongdoing in
2007. Each claim for relief is discussed in turn below.

H
i
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1. Plaintiff’s Claim for Breach of Contract

Plaintiff’s second claim for relief is for breach of contract.” This claim is based
entirety on Plaintiff’s allegation that Archon incorrectly calcuiated the proper redemption
price for the EPS at the time of redemption, August 31, 2007, (Compl. §§ 44-55.) As such, the
claim is plainly barred by the six-year statute of limitations set forth in NRS 11.190(1)(b).

Plaintiff alleges that Archon breached the Certificate in several ways, First, Plaintiff
alleges that Archon breached the Certificate by not calculating the Liquidation Preference’ in
the manner required by the Certificate, Id, § 44-45. This breach allegedly occurred when
Archon issued its Notice of Redemption on July 21, 2007, Id. 9§ 17, 46-48, The Notice of
Redemption stated the EPS would be redeemed at the price of $5.241 per share instead of
$8.69 per share. Id. ] 46-48. As a result of Archon’s alleged breach, Plaintiff contends that
Archon’s EPS remains outstanding and continues to accrue dividends. Id. § 49.

Second, starting from the erroneous premise that Archon’s EPS remains outstanding,
Plaintiff alleges that Archon also breached Section 2(b)}(ii) of the Certificate. Id. §J 51-53.
Section 2(b)(ii) of the Certificate provides as folows:

Before (1) any dividend or other distribution (other than in Common Steck or
other Junior Stock) shall be declared or paid or set aside for payment upon the
Common Stock or any other Jusior Stock or (2) any Common Stock or any
other Junior Stock is redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired by the
Company for any consideration (or any moneys are paid to or made available
for a sinking fund for the redemption of any shares of any such stock) except
by conversion into or exchange for Common Stock or any other Junior Stock,
(A) full cash dividends on the Exchangeable Preferred Stock must be declared
and paid or funds paid over to the dividend disbursing agent of the Company
for payment.

Id. § 50; (Exhibit 1 to the Complaint.)
Plaintiff alleges that this section was breached as a result of the following actions: (1)
Archon’s June 2008 purchase of 62,604 shares of its common stock; (2) Archon's November

3, 2010, purchase of 225,000 shares of its common stock; and (3} Archon’s March 2011

? Plaintiff"s first claim seeking declaratory relief will be addressed at the end of this motios,

* Pursuant to Section 3(s) of the Centificate, the redemption price s equal to the Liguidation Preference. (Exhibit
[ 10 the Complaint.} The Liquidation Preference is defined in Section 7{a} of the Certificate, 1d.
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payments to Archon’s stockholders who held fewer than 250 sharcs of Archon’s common
stock before the reverse stock split. Id. 9§ 51-53. These events allegedly constituted breaches
of Section 2(b)(ii} of the Certificate because Archon did not declare and pay full cash
dividends on the EPS, which Plaintiff claims was still outstanding after the date of
redemption, Id.

Plaintiff’s allegations demonstrate on their face that the claim is fime barred.
Plaintiff’s entirc breach of contract claim is premised on the allegation that Archon
miscalculated the Liquidation Preference as set forth in the Certificate when it gave notice that
the EPS would be redeemed on August 31, 2007, The Liquidation Preference is determined by
the language of the Certificate, which is a public record that was filed with the Nevada
Secretary of State on or about September 30, 1993, Id. § 13. Thus, at the time the EPS was
redeemed on August 31, 2007, all information needed by Plaintiff to calculate the correct
redemption price was available to Plaintiff,

Fusthermore, Plaintiff alieges that other shareholders filed suit on August 27, 2007,
and January 2, 2008, to challenge the price paid by Archon at the time of redemption. Id. €9
25-26. And, in fact, Archon publicly disclosed these lawsuits in filings with the SEC. (Sept.
30, 2607, Form 10-K at 9, Exhibit 1.)* Given that this information was publicly available in
multiple locations, Plaintiff knew or should have known of the facts giving rise to the
Complaint: if the facts giving rise to the cause of action are matters of public record, then the
public record provides notice sufficient fo start the statute of limitations. See generally 6th St.
Investors, LLC v, Hanmi Bank, No, B253433, 2015 WL, 1570261, at *3 (Cal, Ct. App. Apr. 6,
2015). Thus, Plaintiff’s entire breach of contract claim accrued no later than August 31, 2007,

when Archon redeemed the EPS for the allegedly deficient redemption price.

* Defendants respectfully request that this Court take Jjudiciat notice of the facts contained in Archon’s Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, filed with the SEC, which was obtained from the SEC EDGAR
database (http:/fedgar.see.gov) (last visited April 6, 2016) and attached hereto as Exhibit 1. This Court “may
take judicial notice of facts generally known or capable of verification from a relisble source,” and “facts that are
[clapable of accurate and ready determination by resomt to sources whose accuracy cannot reasonably be
questioned, so that the fact is ol subject to reasonable dispute.” Mack v, Estate of Mack, [25 Nev. 80, 91, 206
P.3d 98, 106 (2009}, Because the SEC is a reliable source and the filing is publicly available, fudieial notice is
appropriate,
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Finally, it is beyond dispute that Plaintiff should have known of his claims when the
U.S, District Court ruled in favor of the D.E. Shaw plaintiffs in August of 2008, stating in a
published order that Archon’s calculation of the redemption price was incorrect, See D.E,
Shaw, 570 F, Supp, 2d at 1267-70; see also D.E. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, LLC v. Archon
Corp., 733 F. Supp. 2d 1122, 1127 (D. Nev. 2010). As of this date, Plaintiff indisputably
knew or sheuld have known of the factual basis for his claims as one Court had determined
Archon did not correctly calculate the redemption price. Thus, at the very latest, the statute of
limitations on Plaintiff’s claim would have commenced to run in August 2008,

Plaintiff’s claim cannot be saved by allegations that Archon subsequently breached
Section 2(b)(it) of the Certificate, Plaintiff’s breach of contract claim in this regard is based
entirely on the premise that Archon had not already redeemed the EPS. However, if Plaintiff
had wished to challenge the validity of Archon’s redemption of its EPS, he would have had to
file suit years ago as set forth above, Plaintiff failed to timely challenge the validity of
Archon’s redemption and, as such, he cannot now claim that the redemption was invalid or
that Archon’s subsequent actions were invalid on the basis that the EPS was not redeemed. In
short, the uncontroverted facts in the Complaint irrefutably lead to the conclusion thai
Plaintiff’s claims are untimely as a matter of law.

2, Plaintiffs Claim for Breach of Fiduciary Duty Based on the Alleged
Uneqgual Treatment of Preferred Shareholders

Plaintiff’s third claim for relief alleges that the individual defendants breached their
fiduciary duty to treat all holders of EPS equally by causing Archon to pay the unpaid balance
of the redemption price to the plaintiffs in D.E. Shaw and Leeward, while not paying Plaintiff,
(Comnpl, Y4 58-59.) This claim is plainly barred by the statute of limitations,

As & threshold matter, Plaintiff’s claim that preferred sharcholders were treated
unequaily is belied by the factual allegations in the Complaint. The Complaint acknowledges
that all shareholders were paid in accordance with Archon’s Notice of Redemption and
received $5.241 per share. Id. §f 17-18, Subsequent to redemption, the plaintiffs in D.E. Shaw

and Leeward obtained final Judgments that were affirmed by the Ninth Circuit Court of

11023
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Appeals, Id. Y 27-30, The plaintiffs in D.E, Shaw and Leeward were then paid the judgments
that were awarded in those cases. Id. 4 30. A final judgment is a binding and enforceable legal
obligation to pay the amount of the judgment, Franchise Tax Bd, of California v. U.S. Postal
Serv,, 467 11,8, 512, 523, 104 S. Ct. 2549, 2556 (1984), There is no allegation, nor could there
be, that the Plaintiff in this case also received a judgment and was not paid pursuant to that
Jjudgment. Instead, Plaintiff merely held a possible claim for relief that was never timely
pursued and to which Archon has viable defenses, Thus, based on the allegations in the
Complaint, Plaintiff was not treated differently than other preferred shareholders as Plaintiff
did not obtain a judgment. Plaintiff’s claim fails for this reason alone,

Moreover, even assuming arguendo that Plaintiff was treated unequally, his third
claim is barred by the statute of limitations. A claim for relief based on alleged breaches of
fiduciary duty must be brought within three years, NRS 11.190(3)(d) {providing a limitations
period of three years for “an action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake, but the cause
of action in such a case shall be deemed to accrue upon the discovery by the aggrieved party
of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake.”); In re Amerco Derivative Litig., 127 Nev. at
3+ 252 P.3d at 703 (“A breach of fiduciary duty is analogous to fraud, and thus, Nevada
applies the three-year statute of limitation set forth in NRS 11.190(3)(d).”).

Pefendants request this Court to take judicial notice of the proceedings in D.E. Shaw
and Leeward, which are public records and incorporated by reference in the Complaint. See
Breliant v. preferred Equities Corp., 109 Nev. 842, 858 P.2d 1258 (1993). Section 47.130 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes permits this Court to take judicial notice of facts that are
“{clapable of accuratc and ready determination by resort to sources whose accuracy cannot
reasonably be questioned. . . 5o that the fact is not subject to reasonable dispute,” NRS 47,130,
Facts contained in related court actions are the proper subject of judicial notice. Opoka v,
Immigration & Naturalization Services, 94 F.3d 392 (7th Cir, 1996); see also Stockmeter v.
Nevada Department of Corrections Psychological Review Panel, 124 Nev, 313, 183 P.3d 133
(Nev, 2008),
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The proceedings in D.E. Shaw and Leeward demonstrate that Plaintiff knew or should
have known that the D.E. Shaw and Leeward Judgments were paid pursuant to Writs of
Execution on October 16, 2012 and January 4, 2013, respectively. (D.E. Shaw Writ of
Execution, Exlsibit 2; Leeward Writ of Execution, Exhibit 3.) Thus, as of October 15, 2012,
and no later than January 4, 2013, Plaintiff was on notice that the D.E. Shaw and Leeward
Plaintiffs were being paid for the judgments obtained in those cases. As a result, Plaintiff was
obligated to file suit based on this alleged breach of fiduciary duty no later than Qctober 14,
2015, or January 3, 2016. However, this action was not initiated until February 29, 2016, and
is plainly barred by the statute of limitations.

3. Piaintiff’s Claims based on the Alleped Nondisclosure of Material
Information

Plaintiff’s fourth claim for relief alleges that the individual defendants breached their
fiduciary duty to sharcholders by failing to notify shareholders of the correct redemption price
after the D.E. Shaw and Leeward decisions were affirmed by the Ninth Circuit on September
19, 2012, See (Compl, §§ 67-68.) Similarly, Plaintiff’s sixth claim for relief for non-disclosure
alleges that the same non-disclosure occurred with intent to defraud Plaintiff, See id. ] 84,
91. However, under any applicable triggering date, Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the three-
year statute of limitations set forth in NRS 11.190(3)(d).

Defendants respectfully request that this Court take judicial notice of the facts
contained in Archon’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2010, which
was obtained from the SEC EDGAR database (httpi/fedgar.sec.gov) (last visited April 6,
2016} and attached hereto as Exhibit 4. See Mack v. Estate of Mack, 125 Nev. at 91, 206 P.3d
at 106. Because the SEC is a reliable source and the filing is publicly available, judicial notice
is appropriate.

Archon’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2010, disclosed the
fact that the District Court in D.E. Shaw and Leeward entered summary judgment against
Archon on December 22, 2010, (Exhibit 4, af 35-36.) The December 31, 2010, Form 10-Q

further disclosed the fact that the Court determined that the proper redemption price should

13 of 23

PA174




o =~} Oon th b W 3 —

| N s o T
[+ = B v Y = =t - =« B R o O ¥ - S =

have been $8.69 per share, Id, Thus, contrary to Plaintiff’s allegations, it cannot be disputed
that this information was disclosed to Plaingiff. At a minimum, Plaintiff knew or should have
known of the facts regarding Archon’s alleged miscalculation of the redemption price no later
than the time the Form 10-Q was filed on February 18, 2011. As such, any claim that Archon
failed to disclose this infermation to EPS holders needed to be filed on or before February 17,
2014,

Nevertheless, even ignoring the public disclosure in Archon’s Form 10-Q, Plaintiff
alleges that the Ninth Circuit affirmed the District Court’s ruling on September 19, 2012.
Thus, given that the Ninth Circuit’s decision is a matter of public record, by Plaintiff’s own
admission, the statute of limitations on Plaintiff’s claims based on alleged non-disclosure
could not have accrued any later than September 19, 2012, As such, Plaintiff would have been
obligated to file suit on or before September 18, 2015, Because the Complaint was not filed
until February 29, 2016, the fourth claim for relief and the sixth claim for relief are barred by
the statute of limitations.

4, Plaintif’s Claim for Breach of Fiduciary Duty Based an the Alleped
Wrongful Deregistration of Archon’s Common Stock

Plaintiff next alleges that the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duty to
Plaintiff by causing Archon to de-register the company’s common stock with the SEC. This
claim is plainly barred by the three-year statute of limitations set forth in NRS 11.190(3)(d).

Prior to March of 2011, Archon’s commeon stock was publicly fraded and registered
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (Compl. § 73.) Plaintiff alleges that on March 31,
2011, Archen announced it would de-register its common stock, Id. | 74. On that date,
“Archon filed a2 Form 15 with the SEC which resulted in the termination of Archon's
registration with the SEC and suspended Archon’s duty to file periodic financial reports with
the SEC.” (Compl. ¥ 24.) According to Plaintiff, the de-registration diminished the value of
Archon’s common stock to shareholders such as the Plaintiff, Id, J 74.

Plaintiff alleges that on March 23, 2011, Archon conducted a reverse stock split,

followed by a forward stock split, to reduce the number of shareholders to less than three
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hundred so that Archon would qualify for de-registration, Id, § 76. However, Plaintiff claims
that Archon’s EPS remained outstanding due to the alleged miscalculation of the redemption
price and, as such, the de-registmtion with the SEC was invalid because the number of
shareholders exceeded three hundred.” Id. § 77.

Accepting Plaintiff's allegations as true, as Defendants must for purposes of this
Motion only, any viable claim for breach of fiduciary duty based on wrongful de-registration
is plainly barred by the three-year statute of limitations, See NRS 11.190(3)(d). Plaintiff
admits that Archon filed a Form 15 with the SEC on March 31, 2011, to de-register its
common stock. Id. § 24, The Form 15 filing is a public record available from the SEC
EDGAR database (hitp:ffedgar.sec.gov) (last visited April 6, 2016). Based on Plaintiff’s

allegations, any claim based on the alleged wrongful de-registration accrued no later than
March 31, 2014, Therefore, Plaintiff was required to file suit on or before March 31, 2014.
Because Plaintiff filed this action on February 29, 2016, the fifth claim for relief is untimely
and must be dismissed.

5 Plaintiff”s Claim for Unjust Enrichment

Plaintiff's seventh claim for relief is unjust enrichment, Plaintiff alleges that once the
Ninth Circuit affirmed the judgments in D.E. Shaw and Leeward, there was no basis for
Archon to retain the balance of the unpaid redemption price. (Compl. § 96.) Thus, Plaintiff
alleges that Archon has unjustly retained money belonging to Plaintiff and other EPS holders.
id. § 97. Plaintiff’s claim is barred by the four-year statute of limitations set forth in NRS
11.190{2)(c).

Plaintiff’s claim for unjust cnrichment necessarily accrued no later than the date of
redemption of the EPS, August 31, 2007, because at that time all of the facts necessary for the

claim were known or should have been known, Indeed, assuming arguendo that Archon was

* Notably, Plaintifl’s claim fails as a matter of law. The requirement for de-registration requires that the number
af sharcholders in a particular class of sccuritics be less than thyee hundsed persons. 17 CER. § 240.12k-3(b).
Thus, even if Archon's EPS remained outstanding, the number of preferred sharcholders has no bearing on
whelher the number of comibon sharcholders is less than three hundsed. See id, Plaintifls clatm should be
dismissed for this reason alone,
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unjustly enriched by the miscalculation of the redemption price, that event necessarily
occurred at the time of redemption, As discussed above, Plaintiff knew or should have known
that Archon miscalculated the redemption price at the time the redemption occurred. Thus,
any claim for unjust enrichment is plainly untimely,

In an attempt to save this untimely claim, Plaintiff relies upon the Ninth Circuit’s
Order affirming the District Court’s decisions in D.E. Shaw and Leeward as the date this
claim accrued. See (Compl, ] 96.) However, the date the District Court was affirmed by the
Ninth Circuit is wholly irrelevant for purposes of the statute of limitations analysis. In federal
court, a district court’s judgment is final and enforceable fourteen days after it is entered. Fed.
R. Civ. P, 62(a). The filing of an appcal “docs not by itself suspend the operation or execution
of a district-court judgment or order during the pendency of the appeal.” 16A Fed, Prac. &
Proc. Juris. § 3954 (4th ed.); see also Deering Milliken, Inc, v, F.T.C., 647 F.2d 1124, 1129
(D.C. Cir. 1978) (“Unless a stay is granted either by the court rendering the judgment or by
the court to which the appeal is taken, the judgment remains operative.”). Thus, even if
Plaintiff had a tenable argument that he did not know of the facts constituting his claim at the
time of redemption, at the latest, Plaintiff knew or should have known of his claim for unjust
cnrichment at the time the District Court granted summary judgment in favor of the plaintiffs
in D.E. Shaw and Leeward.

By Plaintiff’s logic, if the D.E. Shaw and Leeward actions had not been commenced,
Plaintiff would never be able to assert an unjust enrichment claim against Archon because,
according to Plaintiff, the only possible triggering event for an unjust enrichment claim is a
final judgment in another action (to which Plaintiff was not a party). Thus, had D.E Shaw and
Leeward never commenced their own actions, Plaintiff would apparently be forever in limbo,
unable to bring an unjust enrichment claim. This nonsensical position defies logic and is
contrary to the law,

Plaintiff cannot cherry-pick factual predicates for his alleged injury to manipulate the
statute of limitations, See generally Wallace v. Kato, 549 U.S, 384, 391 (2007) (“[TThe tort

cause of action accrues, and the statute of limitations commences to run, when the wrongful
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act or omission results in damages. The cause of action accrues even though the full extent of
the injury is not then known or predictable. . . . Were it otherwise, the statute would begin to
run only after a plaintiff became satisfied that he had been harmed enough, placing the
supposed statute of repose in the sole hands of the party seeking relief.”); Stark v. Dynascan
Corp., No. 89 C 0616, 1989 WL 64727, at *3 (N.D. IIL. June 6, 1989) aff'd, 902 F.2d 349 (7th
Cir. 1990) (“[Alllowing plaintiffs to manipulate Hmitations periods by picking and choosing
between different methods of prosecuting the same claim would inject substantial uncertainty
into the judicial system and frustrate the goal of encouraging the prompt resolution of
disputes.”). In this case, Plaintiff is relying upon an irrelevant date in an attempt to argue
around the statute of limitations bar to this claim,

Based on the facts alleged in the Complaint, Plaintiff knew or should have known that
Archon was unjustly eariched no later than August 31, 2007, the date of redemption. At that
time, all the facts required to calculate the redemption price were available to Plaintiff,
Because Plaintiff did not file this action until 2016, the claim is bamred by the statute of
limitations and must be dismissed.

6. Plaintiff’s Claim for an Accounting

Plaintiff’s cighth claim for relief secks an accounting, Plaintiff alieges that he is
entitled to an accounting based on the alleged breaches of contraet, breaches of fiduciary duty,
nondisclosure, and unjust enrichment. (Compl, § 101.) Plaintiff’s Complaint fails to establish
any legal basis for such a claim. Indeed, because all of Plaintiff’s claims for relief are time
barred, Plaintiff’s request for the remedy of an accounting must also be dismissed.

An accounting is an cquitable remedy which allows the court to determine the extent
of damages resulting from a misallocation of funds when there is a fiduciary relationship
between the parties, See NRS 78; In re Maxim Integrated Products, Inc., Deriv, Lit,, 574 F,
Supp. 2d 1046, 1067 (N.D. Cal. 2008) (citing Carlson v. Hallinan, 925 A.2d 506, 538 p.211~
12 (Del. Ch. 2006}}. “A request for a legal accounting must be tethered to relevant actionable
claims.” Hafiz v. Greenpoint Mortgage Funding, Inc., 652 F. Supp. 2d 1039, 1043 (N.D. Cal
2009),
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In this case, the accounting claim is based entirely upon claims (discussed above) that
are untimely as a matter of law. Thus, in the event the Court agrees with Defendants and
dismisses Plaintiff’s claims for breach of contract, breach of fiduciary duty, nondisclosure,
and unjust enrichment, the accounting claim also fails and must be dismissed,

7. Plaintif’s Claim for Injunctive Reliel

Plaintiff’s ninth claim for relief requests a mandatory injunction requiring Archon to
hold a scparate class vote for the holders of EPS to elcct two special directors to Archon’s
Board of Directors. (Compi. 4 106.) Plaintiff’s claim is based on his argument that Archon’s
EPS was not validly redeemed and, as such, remains outstanding, Because Plaintiff failed o
timely challenge Archon’s redemption of the EPS, Plaintiff has no viable claim upon which to
seek injunctive relief.

Section 5(c) of the Certificate provides that EPS holders have the right to vote to elect
two special directors to the Board of Directors in the event dividends accrue and remain
unpaid for two years. (Exhibit 1 to the Complaint.) Thus, in order for Plaintiff to prevail on
his claim for injunctive relief, Plaintiff necessarily must prevail on his argument that the
redemption of the EPS was invalid and the Court would have to adopt Plaintiff’s fiction that
the EPS was not redeemed, See State Farm Mut, Auto, Ins. Co. v, Jafbros Inc., 860 P.2d 176,
178 (Nev.1993) (referring fo an injunction as a remedy); Cole v. CIT Grp./ Consumer Fin.,
Inc., No. 53561, 2010 WL 5134999, at *1 n.1 (Nev. Dec. 9, 2010) (stating that injunctive
relief is a remedy, not a cause of action, and is oaly available upon establishing the underlying
cause of action) (unpublished),

For all of the reasons discusscd above, any claim based on the validity of Archon’s
redemption of its EPS, which occurred on August 31, 2007, is barred by the applicable statute
of limitations, Thus, if the Court agrees with Defendants and dismisses Plaintiff’s claim for
breach of contract, the claim for injunctive relief must also be dismissed.

8. Plaintiffs Claim for Declaratory Relief

Finally, Plaintiff’s first claim for relief seeks a declaratory judgment that: (1) the EPS

remains outstanding and continues to accrue dividends; (2) the holders of the EPS are entitled
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to all rights and privileges of the EPS under the Certificate and Archon’s Articles of
Incorporation; (3) the March 23, 2011, reverse stock split-forward split was invalid and void
ab initio; (4) the March 31, 2011 de-registration with the SEC was invalid and therefore void
ab initio; (3) Archon is required to issue corrective reports with the SEC for all the reporting
periods from 2011 to the present; and (6) that the redemption value of the EPS is $30.42 per
share as of the date of this Complaint, plus semiannual 8 percent dividends computed on a
compound basis between the date of this Complaint and the date of final judgment herein.
(Compl, ¥ 41). Because Plaintiff's claim for declaratory relief is based on the same time-
barred claims for relief discussed above, it is barred by the applicable statutes of limitation
and must be dismissed.

“The Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act does not establish a new cause of action or
grant jurisdiction to the court when it would not otherwise exist.” Builders Ass'n of N, Nevada
v. City of Reno, 105 Nev. 368, 369, 776 P.2d 1234, 1234 (1989) (citing Jenkins v, Swan, 675
P.2d 1143, 1148 (Utah 1983)). “Instead, the Act merely authorizes a new form of relief, which
in some cases will provide a fuller and more adequate remedy than that which existed under
common law.” Id. Because there is no new cause of action, the statute of limitations on a
claim for declaratory relief is the same limitations period that would apply to the underlying
claim for relief. See Job's Peak Ranch Cmty. Ass’n, Inc. v. Douglas Cty., No. 55572, 2015
WL 5056232, at *4 (Nev, Aug. 25, 2015) (applying a six-year limitation period to a
declaratory relief claim based on breach of a written contract) (unpublished); Zuill v.
Shanahan, 80 F.3d 1366, 1369-70 (9th Cir. 1996), as amended (June 14, 1996) (“A claim for
declaratory relief is subject to a statute of limitations generally applicable to civil claims.”). A
plaintiff cannct seek a declaratory judgment as a vehicle to circumvent the statute of
Himitatiens that applies to the substance of the complaint. Levald, Inc. v. City of Palm Desert,
998 F.2d 680, 688 (9th Cir. 1993); Kappa Sigma Fraternity, Inc. v. Kappa Sigma Frateraity,
266 Va. 455, 465, 587 S.E.2d 701, 707 (2003).

In this case, the declaratory relief sought by Plaintiff is premised entirely on Plaintiff’s

argument that Archon’s August 31, 2007, redemption was invalid, Plaintiff specifically
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alleges that because Archon did not set aside in trust such funds to redeem the EPS at $8,69
per share, the EPS remains outstanding and continues to accrue dividends, Id. §§f 34-35. This
argument is based on Section 3 of the Certificate, which provides, in pertinent part, as
follows:

On and after any such redemption date, dividends shall cease to accrue on the
shares redeemed, and such shares shall be deemed to cease to be outstanding,
provided that the redemption price {including any accrued and unpaid
dividends to the date fixed for redemption) has been duly paid or
provided for,

{Exhibit 1 to the Complaint) (emphasis added),

Based on Plaintiff’s argument that the EPS remains outstending, Plaintiff alieges that
the reverse stock split/forward split was invalid because the holders of EPS were not afforded
the right to vote on the stock split separately as a class. Id. 37, Similarly, Plaintiff alleges that
Archon’s de-registration was invalid because the number of shareholders of record exceeded
the SEC’s Himit of three hundred shareholders. Id. §f 38.

Thus, the declaratory judgment sought by Plaintiff is based entirely on Plaintiff’s
argument that the redemption price was not “duly paid or provided for” in August of 2007. In
other words, the underlying violation is Archon’s purported failure to “duly pay or provide
for” the redemption price, which indisputably occurred on August 31, 2007, Thus, Plaintiff’s
claim, if any, accrued as of August 31, 2007, the date of the purported violation that allegedly
resulted in the EPS remaining outstanding, Cf. Welwart v. Dataware Elecs. Corp., 277 A.D.2d
372, 372-73 (N.Y.5.2d 2000) (*{TThe limitations period is measured from the date of the
initial aileged breach in 1981 when the defendants allegedly deprived the plaintiff of his right
to the shares {of stock] and began diverting profits, regardless of when the damages began to
accrue.”). Because Plaintiff knew or should have known of Archon’s alleged miscalculation
of the redemption price no later than August 31, 2007, Plaintif’s claim for declaratory relief
must be dismissed along with all other claims in this case.

W
W
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Y, CONCLUSION

Plaintiff’s Complaint is premised entirely on the allegation that Archon miscalculated
the redemption price on its EPS when it redeemed the EPS on August 31, 2007, Because
Plaintiff failed to file this suit until 2016, every claim for relief is barred by the applicable

statute of limitations, Therefore, Defendants respectfully request that the Court dismiss

Plaintiff’s Complaint in its entirety.

AFFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED this 6th day of April, 2016,

DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC

__{s/ Justin I, Bustos

JOHN P. DESMOND
Nevada Bar No, 5618
idesmond @dickinsonwright.com

JUSTIN J. BUSTOS
Nevada Bar No, 10320
ibustos @ dickinsonwright.com

100 West Liberty Street
Suite 940

Reno, Nevada 89501
Tel: {775) 343-7500
Fax: (773) 786-0131

Attorneys for Defendants
Archon Corporation,
Paul W, Lowden, and
Suzanne Lowden
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I am an employee of DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC, and that on this
date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I am serving a true and correct copy of the MOTION TO

DISMISS COMPLAINT on the parties as set forth

X Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope
placed for coliection and mailing in the United States Matl,
Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following ordinary business

practices

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested

CM/ECF Electronic Notification

Via Facsimile (Fax)

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and
causing the same to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight defivery)

addressed as follows;

Stephen R, Hackett, Esq.
Johnathon Fayeghi, Esq.
SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLC
410 South Rampart Blvd.
Suite 3530

Las Vegas, NV 8914501

DATED this 6th day of April, 2016,

below:

fs/ Cindy 8. Grinstead

An Employee of DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC
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“T 1 Archon’s Form '10 Kfor fiscal yearendm September 30, 2007 70

2 D.E. Shaw Writ of Execution, October 16, 2012 3

3 Leeward Writ of Execution, January 4, 2013 2

4 Archon’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 42
31,2010
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x  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15{(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Commission File Numiber; 1-9481

ARCHON CORPORATION
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Exchangesble Redecmable Preferred Stock Over the Counter Bullotln Board
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Indiesnie by 2 check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed aff reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15{d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter pedod that the registrant was required 10
file such reports), and (2) has been subjert to such fling requirements for the past 80 days,  YES x NO 7
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Lamge aceelerated filer *  an accelerated filer *  or a non-sccelernted filer x
The aggregate market vatue of the conymon stock held by non-affifintes of the registrant was spproximately $52,822 284,
The market value was computed by reference to the closing price of the commaon slock as of March 31, 2007,
APPLICABLE ONLY TO [SS5UERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY
PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:
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cout. YES5 © NO”

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORI'ORATE ISSUERS:

indicate the number of shares outstanding of each af the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.
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FART |
Item L, BUSINESS
General

Archon Corporation, {the “Company™ o “Archon™), is o Nevada eorporation, The Company’s primary business operations
are condusted through s whoily-owned subsidiary comoration, Pioneer Hotel Ine, (“PEIT), whith operates the Pioncer Hotel &
Gambling Hal} {the “Pianeer™) in Loughlin, Neveda, In pddition, the Company owns reel estate on Las Vegas Boulevard South
(the Sinp™) in Las Vegas, Nevads (Sec Land Held for Development}, and invesiment properties in Dorchester, Massachusetts
and Githersburg, Marylund,

Through the Securities and Exchange Cotnmission's (“SEC™) website, 0t hiyp:#wwwesoe govy the Company’s annual repunt
on Form 10-K, quanerdy reponts on Forin 100, current reporis an Form B-K, and amendments to those reponis filed or furnished
parrsunant to Section 13{a) or 15{d) of the Securities Exchanges Act, are made avatiable free of charge, #s soon as reasonably
practicaf afier such information has been Jiled or furnished to the SEC,

The poucipal executive office of the Company is boented 01 4335 Losee Road, Suite 5, Monh Las Vegas, Nevada, #9030,
and the telephone number is (7013} 7329120

Haolel and Cusino Operatlons

The Bloucer

The Pioneer, budlt in 1982, features o clagssical western architecture style, snd is locsied in Loughlin, Nevada, an
unincorperated town on the Colemdo River bordering Arizona, The Ploncer is loeated on approximately 12 acres of fand, with
Colorado River frontoge of opproximately 770 feet, snd is situated near the center of Lausghlin®s Casino Drive, Approximately
6 172 acres of the £ seres nre teased pucsuam 1a 2 89-year ground lesse (the “Ground Lease™) which, by its terms, is schexduled 1o
terminate in December 2078, The leased land Hes between and separates the remaining twe parcels of fand that are held in fee
stmple, The Ploncer is comprised of four buildings, One of the thres motel buildings together with o ponion of both the
Pioneer's easino buililing and n second motel building are located on land subject to the Ground Laase. The casing is located in
the main building, totaling spproaimately 50,000 square feet, of which approximately 21,500 square feet house the casing, The
first floor includes the casino, 1wa bars, snack bar and gift shop, as well as a8 twenty-four hour restavrand, kitchen, special events
arey, restrooms and storoge arens, A panial second flaor houses a geusmel restaurant, adminisiralive offices and bunguet reoms.
The three moted buildings were built in 1984 and compnise approximately 66,000, 54,000 and 30,080 squere feat, respectively. A
iotal of 416 moted rooms are housed in the three buildings with improvements including o swimming pool and spa.

Revennes, The primary source of revenues o the Company s hotel-casiao operations is gaming, which represenied
approximately $2.3%, 55.2% and 55.2¢% in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively, of total revenues, The Fioncer contributed HIO%
in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 o total gaming revenues, As of September 30, 2007 tie Ploneer had approximately 733 slot
machines, eight blackjack 1ables (*21"), one craps table, one roulette wheel and five other geming ables, In addition, the Pioncer
offers keno,

Marker. The Planeer tarpets primarily mature, oul-of-town custamers residing in Central Arizona and Southem Catilornia,
retirers who reside in the Northeast and Midwest United States and Canada sid travel 1o the

|
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Soushwest United States during the winter months, and local residents who reside tn Laughlin, Nevada, and in Bubihesd City,
Kingman and Lake Havasu, Arizona. The cccupancy rates ot the Ploneer were approximately 56%5, 64% and $7% in fiscul years
2007, 2806 and 2005, respectively.

Ausiness Serategy. The Fioneer attempls ta attract and retain customers by offering stot and video poker maching payoots
that compare favombly to the competition. A visible menns used by the Pionesr 1o ascomplish this marketing program is ta offer
what management belicves 10 be a large number of guarier video poker machines with fiberal theoretical pay outs, compared to
other easings in Langhlin. The Pioneer periodically sponsers detniled product research of its eompetitors (o cajegorize the
number and type of video poker gamies by payeuts and monitors changes in game products to assist 41 in developing competitive
products,

The Pioneer has o progeam calied the *Bounty Hunter Round-Up Club” {the “Club”} established to encourage repeat
business from frequent and eetive slot and table game cestamers, A member of the Club accumulates poina in (b member’s
aecount for play on slon machines and table games that can be redeemed for cash, free gifls, food and beverapes and additional
points redesmable for free play, Pioneer management also uses the Club membership Tist for direct mail marketing.

Management and Personnel

As of December 31, 2007, the Company employed 12 cxeentive and administmtive personnel and the Pioncer employed
spproximately 544 persons, :

Caompetition

In sddition to competing with the hotel-cesinos in Laughlin, the Pioncer alse competes with ihe hetel.casinos in Las Vegas
and those situated on Isterstate- 15 (ke principal highway betwesn Las Vegas and Southern California) near the Califomia-
Mevadn state line, In March 2000, California voters approved an amendment to the California constitution which permits
compacts that aHow Native American tabes 10 operate in excess of 100,000 slot machines in addition (0 banked card games and
logteries, Mansgement belicves that Native American casinos in Soushern California, Atizons and New Mexico have hed an
wdverse impact on the Laughlin markes, including the Fiencer, by drawing visitors away from the market,

Investment Propertive

The Company pequired investment properties in Dorchester, Massachusetts and Gaithersburg, Maryland in March 2001,
The Dorchester, Massachuselts propesty §s focated on 12 neres ead includes scveral buildings with approximately 425,000 square
feet of commerzial office spate. The propeny was acquired for approximutely $82.4 mitlion plus 30.5 miflion in debt issuance
costs. The Compsny puid 55.6 million in cash and assumed $77.3 million in non-recourse debl associated with the propeny. The
propeny is under a nel lezse threugh 2020 with a single tenant with an invesimient grade credit miing. Under the lease, the tenant
is responsible for substantially all obligations related o the propeny.

The property in Gaithersburg, Maryland is located on 35 acres and includes one building with approximately 342,000
stjuare feet of commaersial office space, The property was acquired for 362.6 million, plus debt issuance costs of 82,7 million.
The Company paid $9.9 million in cash and issued $55.4 million in nonerecourse first morigage indebiedness, The building is
tocated on appraximately 20 seres of the property. The property is under & nat lease through 2014 with & single lenant with an
fnvestment grade credit rating. Under the lease, the tenant is responsible for subistantiafly all obfigations related to the propeny,

See afso Hem 2., "Praperties ™

it

ol 4762016 8:50 AM

PAI190



Annusl Repon an Fonn 18-K. bitep:/fwww sce. govi Archives‘edpar'data/ 1 2482/0001 1931 2508011 28...

Table of Contents

Land Held for Development

The Company owas, through its whelly owned subsidiary Sahara Las Vegas Corp. (*SLVC"), sn approximately 27-ncre
parcel of read property on the Strip, In conncetion with the ncquisition of the propery, the Company assumed an operating lease
under which a water theme park operated, The lcase was terminated September 30, 2004, The Company presenily leases the
propery 1o two differenmt lessees for an aggregate ampunt of $384,000 per menth. Both leases may be terminated with sixty days
writien notice in the event the propenty 18 sold 1o a third pany.

On Jume 24, 2006, SLVC, » Nevadn corporation and subsidiary of Archon Corporation entered inte an Option Agreement
{the " Agreement™) between SLVC and LVITI LLC, a Delaware limited linbility company ("LVTI"), Pursuant (o the Agmement,
SLVC granted to LV'T1 an option (the “Option”) to purchase an spproximately 27 sere parced of real property loenied on Las
Vegas Boulevard South (the “Propenty™) or, aliermatively, SLVC's membership interest in a limited lisbility company {"LvT
LLC") that may be formed and into which the Propenty would be contributed,

The initizl purchase price 1 be paid by LVTT for purchuse of the Property or the membership interest in LVT LLC was
$450 miltion. LVTI paid an initial deposit of $5.0 millios on fune 27, 2006. The Agreement also provided for a second deposit
of $40.0 million duc on or before September 22, 2006, and additienal monthly payments of approximately $2.2 million in each
tnonth commencing on the 13% calendar month following the date the sccond deposit is pald until the closing of the exercise of
the Option. The 30-day due diligence period ended and LVT1 did not terminate the Agreement, Upon exereise of the Option, the
initin} deposit and the sccond deposit will be credited against ihe 1otal purchage price, The Agreement provides for cenain
adiustments to the purchase price if cortain easements are entered into with respect to the Property prior o the closing. The
Ogption may be exercised by LVTY at any time between the last day of the 12 calendar month and the lest day of the 18%
calendsr month Following the date on which the second deposit is paid; provided that the option termn may be extended by up 10
30 days if SLVC does not give written notice to LYTI of the option term expiration 28 required by the Agreement, The first and
second depasits and any ndditional manthly psyments paid  SLVC prior to termination of the Agreement will be revained by
SLVC upon temmination of the Agrecment without exercise of the option, except under certain circumslances specified in the
Agncement,

Pursuant to 4 First Amendment of the Agreement, LVTI elected to pay to the Company $750,000 to extend the date on
which the sceond deposit of $40,0 million was due from Sepiember 22, 2006 to December 31, 2006, Pursuant to 8 Second
Amerdment, LVTI clected 1o pay to the Company 51.2 million to fusther extend the date on which the second depasit of $40.0
inillion was due from Decenther 31, 2006 10 March 34, 2007, Pursuant to a Third and a Fourth Amendment 1o the Agreement,
LVT] elected 1o pay to the Company two additional payments in Aprit 2007 1taling $500,000 to further extend the date on
which the second deposit was due from March 31, 2007 1o May 31, 2007. LVT] paid the 5340.0 million second deposit on
Muy 25, 2607, Additianally, the inistal purchrse price was increased from $430 millien 1o 8475 millien. Pursuantto g Fiflh
Amendment, three months, to be exercised in the diserziion of LVTL, were added to the Option term, extending the end of the
Option term from March 31, 2008 to Juse 30, 2008, LVT1 will pay o fex of $2.9 million ("Carry Optien Paymenis™) for each of
the three month extensions utilized, with a promtion for any partiol month wilized. Al Carry Option Fayments and sll montbly
oplien extension payments are nonrefundable and will not be applied against the purchase price under the Agreoment.

The nonrefundable payment of $3.0 miftion and & rorrcfundable extension fee of $730,000 were recurded as defemed
revenue, ot Seplember 30, 2006, The Company received zn ndditional nonrefundable extension fec of $1.2 million in December
2006 which was also recorded as defotred revenue at Moreh 31, 2097, The Company received additional nenrefundable
extension fees of $500,000 in April 2007 and the noarefundablz second depusit payment of $40.0 million on May 25, 2087,
which paymenis were also recorded gs deforred revenue ut June 36, 2007, On September 27, 2007, the Company reeeived #n
sdditional option extension fee of $2,329,167, which was recorded as deferred revenue 2t September 30, 2007,

The ohligations of SLVC and LVTI to consummute the transactions contempluted by the Agreement are subject to the
satisfoction or waiver of eustomary closing conditions,
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The Company has puarnteed the obligations of SLVC under the Agreement,

Sce also §tem 2., “Pruperties.

The Company has grovided financial segment information in the "Notey 1o Conseliduted Financial Statements, Note 14,
Seumen Information,”

Mevada Regulntions und Licensing

The Company and FHI {caliectively, the “Archen Group™) are subject to extensive state snd local regulation by the Nevada
Gaming Comemission (the "Commission™), the Nevada State Gaming Controt Beard (the “Bourd™) and in the case of PHE, the
Clark County Liquor and Gaming Licensing Board (collestively the "Neveda Gaming Authorities™).

*The Jaws, regulations and supcrvisory procedures of the Nevada Gaming Authorities seek (3) to provent unsavory of
unstitable persons from having any direct or indirect invalvement with gaming a1 any time or in any capacity, {ii} to establish
and maintain responsible aceounting practices and procedures, (i) 1o maintain effective control over the financial praetices of
lizensees, including establishing minimum procedures for internal fseot affaics and the safeguarding of assets and revenues,
providing reliable revord-keeping and making periodic repons to the Nevada Gaming Authorilies, {iv} 16 prevent eheating and
fraudulent practices snd (v} o provide 2 souree of stale and local revenues through taxstion and tieensing fees. Changes in such
laws, reguintions and procedures could Bave an sdverse effect oo any or ol of the members of the Archion Group. Management
believes e Archon Group i in compliance with regulations promulgated by the Nevada Gaming Authorities.

Licensing urd Reghutration, PH1 holds Nevada State gaming licenses to operate the Fionser, The Company has been
spproved by the Nevada Gaming Authorities to own, direetly or indirectly, o beneficial interest in PHE

The licenses held by menbers of the Archon Group are not transferble, Ench issuing agency may at any time revoke,
suspend, condilion, limit or restrict Hcenses or approvals 10 own & beneficind interest in PHI for any cause deemed reasonable by
such agency. Any failure 10 retain o valid license or approval would have s material adverse effect on alt members of the Archon
Group.

IT#t is determined that BHI or, when applicable, new members of the Archon Groug, have violated the Nevadn laws or
regulations relating to gaming, PHI or, when applicable, now membsers of the Archon Group, could, under certain clreumstances,
be fined and the lcenses of PHE or, when applicable, sew members of the Archon Group, eould niso be limited, conditioned,
revoked or suspeaded. A violation under any of the licenses hoid by the Company, or PHI or, when applicable, new members of
the Archon Group, may be deemed o vinlation of sil the other licenses held by the Company and PHE or, when applicable, new
members of the Archon Group. IT the Commission does pesition for 8 supervisor to manage the affected casino and hotel
facilitics, the suspended or former licenszes shall not receive any eamings of the gaming establishment until approved by the
eourt, and after deductions for the costs of the supervisor's operation and cxpenses snd amounts necessary 1o establish g reserve
fund 1o facilitate continwed operation in light of any pending Htigation, disputed clsims, taxes, fees ond other contingencies
kriown 1o the supervisor which may reguire payment, The supervisor is authorized 10 offer the geminy establishment for sate il
requested by the suspended or former licensee, or without sueh # request after six months after the dete the Hoense was
suspended, reveked or not renewed.

Ddividual Licensing, Cerain stoskhotders, directors, officers and key easployees of corporate gaming licensees must be
ticensed by the Nevads Gaming Authorities. An apphication for Beensing of an individual may be denled for nny cause decmed
reasonable by the issuing npenicy. Changes in licensed positions must be reperted to the Nevada Gaming Authorities, In nddition
1o its authority to deny an epplication for en individua! license, the Nevada Gaming Authorities have jurisdiction to disapprove
chatge in corporate posftion, 17 the Nevada Gaming Authorities were to find any such person unsultsble for fizensing or
unsuitable ko continue to have a relationship
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with a corperate licensee, such licensee would have to suspend, dismiss and sever ail relationships with such person. Such
corporate jicensee would have similar obligntions with regard to any person who refuses to file appropriate applications, who is
deniet! licensing following the fting of an application or whose license is revaked, Ench gaming employes must obiain a wotk
permit which may be reveked upon the pccurrence of certain specified events,

Any individun! who is found w0 have 2 material relationship or a materisl involvement witls 8 gaming licensee may be
investigated o be found suitable o ta be licensed, The finding of suilability is comparable to liconsing and requires submission
of demiled financis! information and a full investigation. Key cmployees, controtling persens or others who exercise significant
influence upon the management or affairs of & gaming licenses may be deemed to have such a relationship or involvement,

Beneficial owners of more than 10% of the voling seeurisies of 8 corporation or partner interests of » partnership registersd
with the Nevada Gamiag Authorities that s Vpublicly traded” (a “Registered Entity™) must be found suitable by the Nevada
Gaming Authorities, and aay person wha scquires more than 5% of the voling securities or parisier interests, as the rase may be,
of a Regisicred Entity must report the acquisition 1o the Nevadn Gaming Authorities in a filing similar to the beneficial
ownership filings required by the Fedeml securitics laws. Under centain circumsiances an ingtitutionsd investor, ag such term is
defined in the Nevada Gaming Control Act and the regulations of the Commissian and Board {collectively, the “Nevads Gaming
Regulations™), that acguices more than 10% of the Company’s voting securities may apply to the Commission for s waiverof
such Brding of suitabifity requirement. If the stockholdar who must be found suitable is » comporation, partnership or trust, 4
must submit detiiled business and financial information including & list of beneficial owners, Any beneficial owner of cquity or
debt secunties of o Registered Entity (whether or not a contraliing stockholder) may be required to be found suitable if the
refevant Nevada Goming Auhorities have reason o believe thal such ownershiip would be inconsistent with the declured policy
of the State of Nevadsa, I the beneficial owner who must be found suitsble is a comporation, parinership or trust, it must submil
detailed business sod financiad information, including a lis1 of its securiiies.

Any stackhiokder found snsuitable and who beneficially owns, directly or indireeily, any securities or partner interests of
Repistercd Entily beyond such period of time a3 may be preseribed by the Nevada Gaming Authorities may be guilty of a gross
misdemeancr, Any persan who Tails or refuses to apply for a Gnding of sultability or o lcense within 30 days after being ordered
ta do so may be found unsuitnble. A Registered Entity is subject 1o disciplinary action if, afier it receives notice thut a person is
unsuitabic ta be o security holder or partner, s the cise may be, or to have any other relationship with it, such Registered Entity
(i) pays the unsuitable person any divideids or property upon any voting scourities or pariner interests or makes any psyments or
distributions of any kind whatsoever 1o such person; {3} recopnizes the exercise, directly or indirectly, of any voting sights in its
securities or panner interests by the unsuilable pecson; (i1} pays the unsuitable person any temunesation in aay form for services
rendercd or otherwise, excepl in cenain and specific circumstances or; (iv) fails to pursue al! fawful efforts fo require the
unsiitable person to divest himself of his voling securitics, including, if necessary, the immediale purchase of the veting
secuntics for cash at Faer market value,

Registered Entities must maistgin current stock ledgers in the Stute of Nevada thiat may be examined by the Nevada
Gaming Authorities at any time, 1f any securities or paciner interests are beld in trust by #n agent ot by a nominee, the record
holder may be required 1o disclose the identity of the beneficial owner to the Nevada Gaming Autherities. A foilure (¢ make
such disclosure may be grounds for fnding the record owner unseitabie, Record owners nre required 1o conform to all applicable
rules and reguintions of the Nevada Geming Authorities, Licensees also ave required (o render maximuen assistance in
determining the ideatity of a beneficial owner,

The Mevada Gaming Authorities have the power to require that certificates representing voting securities of 3 corporate
Fieenses bear p fegend to te eflect that such voting securities or partaer interesis are subject to the Nevada Gaming Regulations.
The Nevada Gaming Authoritivs, through the power to regulate Heensees, have the power 1o impese additiona! restrictions an
the holders of such voling securities ot any time,

Financial Respensibility, The Company snd PHI are required to submit detailed franciat and operating reporns (o the
NWeviufa Gaming Authoritics. Substantiably 51l foans, leases, sales of securities and other Gnancial transactions entered ino by the
Company or PHI must be reported W and, in some eases, approved by the Nevada Gaming Authorities,
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Certuln Transaetinns, None of the Archon Group may make a public offering of its seeurities without the approval of the
Commission if the proceeds thereftom are intended to be used 10 constreet, sequire or finance gaming facilities in Nevada, or
selire o extend oblipations icurred for such purposes. Such approval, if given, will not constituie & recommendation ar
approval ol the investiment merits of the seeudties offered, Any public offering requires the approval of the Commission,

Changss in conrel of the Company through merger, consolidation, sequisition of assets, manegement or censuiting
agreetnents or any form of takeover cannot sccur without the prier investigation of the Board and spproval of the Commission,
The Cosmmission may requine controfling stockholders, partners, officers, directors and other persons who have a materiad
relationship or involvement in the transection w0 be licensed.

Thie Nevada legisiature has declared that some corporate ecquisitions opposed by management, repurchases of voling
securitics and other corporste defense tactics thal kffect corpormte gaming licensees in Nevada, and corporations whose securities
are publicly traded that are affilinted with those operations, may be injurious to stabfe and productive corporste grming. The
Comimission has estgblished s regidatory scheme to ameliorate the potentially adverse effests of these business praciices upon
Nevada's gaming incistry and 1o further Nevada’s policy to (i) gssure the finaneial stability of corporate or pannership gaming
operators and their effiliates; (i} preserve the beneficial aspeets of conducting business in the comrerais form; and (i) promote a
neutral environment far the ordesly governance of corporate or pannership affairs, Approvals are, i cern circumstances,
required from the Commission before the Company can muke exceptional repurchases of voting securities above the cument
rmarked price thersel {eommondy referred to as “greenminil™) and before an acquisition opposed by munagement can be
consummated. Nevada's gaming regulations alsa require prioe approval by the Commission if the Company were to adopt g plan
of recapitalization proposed by the Company's Board of Directors in opposition to a weader offer made directly 1o the
stockholders for the purpose of acquiring contral of the Campany.

Miscelaneous. The Company and its Nevada-based affilintes, including subsidiaries, may engoge in gaming aetivities
outside the State of Nevada withous secking the appraval of the Nevada Gaming Authonitics provided that such activities ere
lawful in the jurisdiction where they are to be conducted and that cenain information regarding the forcign operatien is provided
lo tie Board on a periodic basis, The Company and its Nevada-based afTilistes may be diseiplined by the Commission if any of
themn violales any laws of the foreign jurisdiction pertaining to the foreign goming operation, fails to comduct the foreign gaming
operation in accordance with the stondards of horesty and integrity required of Nevada gaming operaiions, engages in aetivities
that are harmful to the State of Mevada or its sbility to collect gaming 1axes snd fees, or emplays a persen in the foreign
operation whe had been denied a license or fnding of suitability in Nevada on the ground of persona! unsuitability,

License fees nnd taxes, computed in various ways depending on the type of guming involved, are payable to the State of
Newvada and 1o the counties and cities in which the Company and PHI conduct their respective operations. Depending upen the
patticular fee or tax invelved, these fees and taxes are payable citber monthly, quanerly or annually and are based upoa: (i)
percentage of the gross gaming revenues received by the casina operation; (i1} the number of slot machines operated by the
casing; or (iil) the numther of wble games operated by the casing. A casino colertainment tax is also paid by the licenser where
entertnbsnent is furnished in connection with the selling of focd or relreshments,

Finally, the Nevada Gaming Awborities may require that lenders 1o Heensees be investigated to determing iF they are
suitable and, iT fonnd unsuitable, may require that they dispose of their koans,
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Irem 1A, RISK FACTORS

You are encouraged to review the following discusston of the specific risks and uncertainties thet affect our business. These
e lizde, but are not Hinised (o, the following;

Our Buesiness Is Valneruble to Changlng Economic Conditfons. Unfivormble changes in general economic conditions
including recession, economic slowdown, or higher fuef ar ather iransportation costs, may reduce disposable income of casino
patrons or resull in fewer patrons visiting casinos, Our operating results may be negatively impacted by 3 increase in interest
rates cousing an inerease i intenest eapense,

Onr Laughlin Property Is Vuluerable fo Existing and New Competitors and Their Copltal Investinents. Recent
acquisition by competitors of casinofhotel properties in Laughlin could produce unfavorable operating results il the invesimenis
by competitons are successfial in sapturing market share from the Company’s Laugltin property, These new competitors may
have greater capital resourses and liguidity than the Company,

Redemption of the Company's Proferred Steck and Redemption Price Dispures. The Company called all outstanding
shares of ity Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock for redemption on and as of August 31, 2007, a1 o redemption price of
$5.241 per share, which sum included accrued and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption, From and after August 31, 2007,
all shares of the Exchangeable Redeemable Prafered Stock censed to be outstanding and to acerue dividends,

O# August 27, 2007, the following institutions] investors: [, E. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L1.C., LC Capital Master Fund,
Lid, LC Copitat/Capital Z SPV, LP, Magien Asset Manngement Corp, Mercury Real Estate Securitics Fund LB, Mercury Real
Eglate Secunities Offshore Fund Limited, Black Horse Cepital LB, Black Horse Capital {QP) LF, Black Herse Capital Offshore
Lid, and Plainfield Special Simations Master Fund Limited fied an action agninst the registrant in the United States District
Court for The District of Nevada entitled 1B Shaw Laminar Perifolios, LLC; ¢t al. v. Achan Corporation, 3:07.CV01146-
PMI.LRL (D. Nev.). The Complaint was subsequently nmended 10 add an sdditional panty plantifT (coliectively, the “Laminar
Plaintiffe™). The Amended Cormplaim: (i) secks o finding by the Court that the Company bas breached its pbligations under the
Company's Cenificate of Designalion of the Preferred Stock, dated September 33, 1993 {the “Centificate™), and awarding the
Laminar Plaimiffs full compensation of any sad alt available damages suffered by the Laminar Plaintifs as a result of the
Company's breach of the Centificate; {if) seeks a finding by the Coun that the Company's isssance of its redemption notice with
B improper redemption price ig an anticipatary breach of 2 muterisl term of the Centificate and awarding (he Laminar Mlaintiffs
full compensation of any and alt available damages sufTered as a result of the Company's naticipaiory breach af the Certificate;
(iii} secks n declsration by the Coun that the dividends be propery calculnied and compounded per the terms of the Certificate in
an amount no less than 57,235,351 up through and including the date of final judgment; (iv) seeks an order frem the Court
calting for the Company 1o reimburse the Laminar Plaintiffs’ ntorneys' fees, expenses and costs incurred in enforcing their
rights; and {v) sceks such other and further relisf ns the Court may deem sppropriate. In Noverber 2007, and subsequent to the
end af the Company's [iscu) yzar ended September 30, 2007, the Laminar Plaintiffs fled a motion for partial summary judgment
oo Habikity. The Company responded, and the parties will swait 0 raling from the Court following the PlaintifT's filing of its
reply bricf,

Also subsequent to the end of the Company’s Bscal year, two other former holders of the Exchangeable Redeemable

Preferted Stock filed Complaints i the Hntted Stetes District Cour, District of Nevads, entitled Baingro v, Archon Comomtion,
Distriet of Nevada Case No. 2:07:0v.01553 and Lecward Capltal, L.P v Archon Corporation, District of Nevada Case

No, 2:08-cv- 00007, Both alleging essentially the same clalm as the first Compiaint. If the plaintiffs are carrect, the redemption
price ws of August 31, 2007 should have been $8.69 per share and not $5.241 per share ag catvulnted by the Company which, if
applied to alt the then outstanding shares of Exchangeable Redesmsble Preferred Stock, including the shares held by the
Comgpany's officers and directors, would increase the redemplion price in excass of $15.2 million,

1
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A Significunt Decline it Bewd Estute Valnes may have an Adverse Impact o the Companys Finenclal Condition, The
Cotapany owns resl estate on the Strip and on the East Coast of the United States. Although the Company {5 presently not
dependent on cash fows from these properties, a sipnificant dechine in real estate values in these markets coutd have an impact
on the Compadry’s ability to readily generate cash flow from the real estate to meet its debil or other obligations,

Our Ouistanding Debt Ghligurians Sulject us to Additienal Rixks, The Company has o mongage now obligation which
malured in late December 2006 with an extension unti] Innuary 2008 in the approximate amount of $10.1 million, The Bank has
mfbrmed the Company of is commitment 1o extend the maturity date of the ante obligation (o lanuary 2009 The documentation
process for Lhe extension may go beyond the Januaty 15, 2008, mawrity, however, all original torms and conditions will remain
in wffeet untit the new foon documents ore executed. Although the Comgpany believes the bank's commitment to extend the
maturity daie of the Josn will be made Formal in the near-temm, i can not give any sssuranses thil the extension will oceue,
However, the bank has informed the Company il intends to extend the maturity date to January 2609.

Ttem 2. PROPERTIES

The Fioneer is located on spproximately 13 acres of kand, with Colorade River frontage of npproximately 770 feet, and is
situated near the center of Laughlin's Casino Drive. See kem 1, “Businass ~ Hotel and Casine Operations”™ for more detailed
information regarding the Pioneer.

The Company's investment propenty in Dorchester, Massachusets is located on 12 acres and Includes several buildings
with approximately 425,000 squate fzel of commercial oflice space, The property was acquired for approximately 382.4 million
plus 30,5 miltion in debt isseance costs, The Company paid $5.6 miltion in cash and assumed $77.3 mitlien in non-recourse debt
associated with the propenty. The propenty is under a net Jease dwough 2020 with a single tenant with an investmen grade credit
ruting, Under the bense, the tenant is responsible for substantiaily ol obligations related to the property.

The Campany's investment property in Gaithersburg, Maryland i located on 53 acres and includes one building with
approximately 342,000 square feect of commercial offize space. The property was aciuired for 362.6 million, plus debt issuance
costs of $2.7 million. The Company paid 59,9 million in cash and issued $55.4 million in non-recourse first mortgage
indebtedness, The building is located on approximately 20 acres of the property. The property is under a net Jease through 2014
with a single tenant with an investment grade credit rating, Under the lease, the tenan? is responsible for substantistly oli
ohligntions relaied to the propeny.

The Company owns approximately 27 seres of real property located on the Strip, See ltem 1., Business—Land Held for
Development.
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Item 3. LEGALTR TN

The Company calied alt outstanding shares of its Exchangeable Redecmable Prefemmed Stock for redemption on end 8s of
August 31, 2007, at 3 redemption price of $5.241 per share, which sum included teenied und wnpaid dividends to the date of
redemption. From and after August 31, 2007, all shares of the Exchangeable Redesmable Preferred Stock ceased 1o be
cutstanding ond 10 pecrue dividends, As of January 14, 2008, the holders of 4,238,139 shares of the Exchangeable Redenmeble
Preferred Stock have surrendered their shares and received paymuent of the redemption price.

On August 37, 2007, the following institutional investors: D, £, Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L.L.C., LC Capita) Master Fund,
Lid, LC Capital/Capital Z SPY, LB, Magien Asset Management Corp, Mercury Real Estate Scourities Fund LP, Mercury Real
Estats Securitfes Offshore Fund Limited, Black Horse Capital LP, Blogk Horse Capila) (QF) LE, Black Horse Capind Offshore
Ltd, and Plainfield Speeial Siwations Master Fund Limited liled an action againgt the registrant in the Usnited Siotes District
Coun lor The District of Mevada entitied DLE. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, LLC; et al, v, Archon Corporation, 2:07-CV-81146.
PMP-LRL (D. Nev.). The Complaint was subscquently amended 1o 2dd an sdditional pany plaintiff (collectively, the “Laminar
Plaintiffs™). The Amended Complainti (i) seeka o finding by the Court that the Company has bresched its obligations uader the
Carmpany's Cenificate of Designation of the Preferred Stock, dated September 30, 1993 (the “Centificate™), and awarding the
Laminar Plaintiffs full compensation of any and all available damages suffered by the Laominar PiaintilTs as o result of the
Comgany's breach of the Centificate; (if) seeks a finding by the Cour that the Company's fssuance of its redemption notice with
an improper sedemption price is an anticipatory bresch of a material term of the Certificate ard awarding the Laminar Plaintiffs
full compensation of any and aH avnilable damages suffered a5 a result of the Company's anticipatory breach of the Centificate;
(iii) secks a declaration by the Coun thar the divideads be properly caleuinted and compounded per the terms of the Certificate in
an wmount uo less than $7,235,351 up through end ineluding the date of final judgment; (iv} seeks un order from the Count
catling for the Company to reimburse the Laminar Plaintiffs” atomeys’ fees, expenses and costs (ncusmed in enforving the their
nghts; and {v) seeks such other and further relief os the Court may deem approptiaie. In November 2007, and subsequent to the
end of the Company's fiseal year ended September 30, 2007, the Lamisar Plaintifs filed » motion for panifal summary judgment
o liability. The Company responded, and the partics will await a ruling from the Count following the PlaintifT's filing of its
seply briel.

Also subsequen 1o the end of the Company's fiscal year, two former holders of the Exchangeable Redeernable Preferred
Stock filed Complaints in the United States District Court, District of Nevida, entitled Raingro v, Archen Somomtion, Dhstrict
of Nevada Case Mo, 2:07.¢v-81553, and Lewseard Capitad, L.P v Archon Corparation, District of Nevada Case No. 2:08-ev-
00007, both alicging essentially the same claim as the first Complaint. 1f the pinintiffs are correct, the redemption price 35 of
August 31, 2007 should have been SK.69 per share and not $5.241 per share as caleulated by the Company which, if applied to
ali the then outstanding sharss of Exchanpeable Redesmable Preferred Stock, fncluding the shares held by the Company's
olficers and directors, would increase the redemption price in excess of $15.2 mitfion.

Da s Medley v Ploneer Hote! & CaslpniArchan Cerporgtion:

‘The Company was a defendant in a lawsuit entitled Douglas Mediey v Ploneer Hotel & Casinaidrchon Corporation dated
March 2006, The complaint olleged 1hat unpaid woges for overtime and the plaintiff was sceking approximately $160,008 in
damages. The Company defended this lawsuit vigorously snd no reserve was recorded under the provisions of Statement of
Accounting Standacds (“SFAS™) No, 5 for this matter, 05 management did not believe that it was probable that a Hability had
incurred. The Inwsuis was recently settfed for auisance value and the Company obtained a full release from the Plaintiff in the
achon.

126l 45872016 £:50 AM

PA197



Annusl Report on Form 10-K hitpzsfwww.see, poviArchivesfedgardatwB 124820001 {93 1250801 138...

Table of Contents

In addition, the Company is subjeet to various lawsuits relating to rowtine matters incidental 1 it business, The Comprny
does not belicve that the outeame of such liigation, in the aggregaie, will have a mateninl sdverse cffiect on the Company.

hemd4,  SUHBME OF MATT ! YOTE OF RTY HOLDER.
None
PART I
item 5.
MATTERS
The Company’s common stock is trded on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (the “0TCHB") under the symbal

TARMNT

The clasing prce of the Common Stock on January 14, 2008 was $46.50 per share. The tables below sel forth the high and
low elasing prices by quarter lor the fiscal years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 of the common stock, as reponed by the
oTCas,

Flrer Secomi Third Fawpih
Quarter  Quarter  Quurier  Quarker

Fiscal 2087

High $I8.00 53850 $54.75 %5000

Low 3125 3175 385 3955
Fiscal 20066

High 83928 S38.30 844905 54400

Low 3700 3075 32,25 31.00

The Company kas sever paid cash dividends on its Common Stock, nor does it nnticipale paying such dividends in the
forcsecable futuee, There were approximately 550 comnion stockholders of revord as of January 14, 2008,

1
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Performasnce Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative tom roium on the Company’s conmmon stork with the cumslative tota)
return of the Standard & Poor's 500, the Dow Jones US Gambling index for the five-year period ended September 3G, 2007 The
graph nssumes that the value of the investment in the Company and in cach index was 5100 on September 30, 2002, nod
assumnes Lhat all dividends were reinvested,

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Armong Archron Carpaeation. The S8° 500 Indax
And Tho Dow Jonns US Goambing fntex

32,000
$1,300
31,600
31,4040
$1.200
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5600
402
200

5402 o 2 %2 B oms $:06 L)tk

wmefennen Archon Corporation - =~ S&P 500 «« & +-Daw Jones US Gembding

* L0 rovenpshind o DBTWINT ity shock o wbo il 08 S pirewslimeeed of dedtiads. Taont yeor gosding Soplemooer 33

Copryrignn £ 3007, Sitanatm & Pose's, o Givison ol The MoGaw A3 Qommpanies, thg Al nghis messrved
ot Frabentst R come BAE it

urgul  SEMEGY eG4 ShEMs g SOAOT
Arclion Corporation BIGO.00 $113.73 527451 51480078 31,280.30 51,8528
S&P 500 166,00 12440 141463 139,04 ¥RV 205.13
Dow Jones US Gambling 160.00 12684 17837 190,32 230,23 366,45
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Jtem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
TFhi table below seis Forth a summary of selected financial data of the Company lor the years ended September 30, 2007,

20006, 2005, 2004 and 2003
2007 1006 205 a4 1043
{dathars b thousands, except per fhare smounts}

Wet openting revenues (8 5 45,179 B 45,154 § 43688 5 45693 § 46,160
Nt ingome {Joss), re of faxes 607 {3,356} {4,912} {1,B82) {71.847}
Net income {loss) applicable to commaon shores {779 {4,867} {6,423} {3,444} {9,374}
Net income {ioss) per commen share (0.12} {0.78) {1.6% {D.55) (1.513
Tosd assets 219,982 198,030 199638 2069312 233,380
Long-terrs daby, less current portion 14,381 77,042 18,489 81057 148,608
Exchangeable redesmuable proferred stockts 0 9,445 9445 9,674 0.9168

4 Net operating revenues Tor fiscal years 2803 through 3007 represent primarily operations at he Pioneer and revenues from
invesimenl properties.

) The Company had aot declared dividends on its preferned stock since fiscal 1996, Dividends of approximately 51,4 million,
51,5 million, SL.5 million, 31.8 million and $1.5 million for fiscal 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004 end 2003, respectively, had not
been deelared and were in arrears el Augugt 31, 2007, at which date aif shares were calbed for redemption. The Company
redeetned ity outstangding exchsngenble redeemable prefemed stoek ot $5.341 per share. Previously, the Company had
repurehased snd retired 983,932 shares of exchangeable redeemable preferred stock. The legal proceeding set forth in
ftem 3 refates 1o the exehongeable redeemable prefemud stock.
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Ttea: 7. MANAGEMENT'S BIS

OPERATIONS
GENERAL

Overview of Busines. orgtions end Trond,

The Company, historically, has owned, mansged and operated hotelicasing propenties through s number of acquisitions or
developments, and it has subsequently divested certain af these propertics, Presently, the Company optrates the Pioneer in
Laughfin, Nevada. The Company oisa owns Strip property that may be sold pursuans to an Agresment entercd into in fiscal 2004
wharsby the Optiones has the Hpht 10 purchase the property from the Company for 3475 million.

The Company's property in Laughlin, Mevada has oxperieneed a flatiening and, to o cenain extant, o decling of its revenues
aver the last few years afier experiencing stroap revenue and profit growth w the early 1990%s. Management believes the growth
of casing properties on Native American londs in such locations as Californiz and Arizona within the last several years caused
revenue declines and cnused the Company to focus on market definition and development in Langhlin to maintain profitability,
Management believes fgughlin has now become a mature market with marginal growth forecusted for the naxt few years based
o1 15 current plans,

The Company also ewns investment properties on the East Coast but these investment properties do not contribute
signilicant profiability or net cash fiow to the Company,

Manzgement believes the recont revenue and expense trends in its Laughlin heielicasine property may not change
significantly over the next few years,

Critleel Avcoundiag Paflcles ond Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finansial Condition and Results of Opemtions discuss Archon's consolidaied
financial stalements, which have been prepared in sccordance with eceaunting principles generaily aceepted in the United States
of America. The preparation of these consolidated finaneial statements requires management to make estimates and assumpiions
thal affezt (he reparied smounts of assets and Habilities and the disclosure of sontingent asseis and Habilities af the date ol the
financial sistements and the reporied amounts of revenues aad expenses during the reporting peried. On an engoing basis,
managemens evaluates ite cstimaies and judgments, incleding those related to customer incentives, bad debis, inventories,
investments, estimated vsefl lives for depreciable and amonizable asseis, valustion reserves and estimated cash flows in
pusessing the recoverability of Jong-tived assets, estimated liabifities for slot club bonus point programs, income taxes,
contingencies and litigation, Management bases ils sstinates apd fudgmems on historics) experience and on various other factors
that are believed 1o be reasonnhie under the ciremstanzes, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
currying values of assets und Hobilities that are not readily spparent from other scurces. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under dilferent assuwmptinns or conditions.

Management belicves the foliowing crilical sccounting policies, smong others, aifects its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of ity consolidoted finencial statements:

Altowanee far Doubtful decoints, We allaw for sn estimated amout of receivables that may not be collecied. We estimate
our allowsnee Tor doubtful secounts using a specific formula applied to sged reccivables us well as o gpecific review of large
kalances. Historicat experience is considered, as are customer relationships, in determining specific reserves.

Luong-Lived Azsers. We have p significant investment in fong-lived propeiy and equipment. We estimate that the
undiscounted Niture cash Nows expected o result from the use of these assets exceeds the current carrying

i3
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value of these assets, Any adverse change in the estimate of these undiscounted futvre cash flows could necegsitate vn
impairment charge that would adversely aifect opemting results. We estimale usefid lives for our assels based on historizal
experievice, estimates of assels” commercial Hves, and the 1elihood of teehnotogical ehsolescence, Should the actual useful {ife
of a class of assets difTer from the estimated uselul life, we would record an impairment charge, We review useful lives and
whspleseence and we assess commenia! viability of these assets perindically.

Income Taves. Realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent on the Compony's ability 1o generate profits from
eperations or from the gale of [ong-lived assets. There can he no pssurance that the Company will generate profits from
operations or seif those assets o will genemte profits Troim sales if they were to occur in the future, In the event the Compeny
docs penernte profits from sales of long-lived assets in the foture, an adjustment to the vatuation allowance would {nerease
income in the period in which the profit iy realized,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ~ FISCAL 2047 COMPARED 'O FISCAL 2086
Leneral

During fiscal 2007, the Company's net operating revenues were relatively equal to the prior year, and operating expenses
deeressied opprokimately $3.5 miliion, resulting in an increase of approximutely $3.5 million in opemting income. The
ismprovensent i operating results was primarify due to a decrease in carposate stock based compensstion expenses of
appreximately $3.1 mitlion, nnd a $1.4 million gain oo the sale of assats, offset by an increase of 1.0 million in operating
expenses.

Copsalidated

Vet Operating Revenues, Consolidated net nperating revenues for the year ended September 30, 2007 were relatively
unchanged from the year ended September 31, 2086, Revenues from the investment properties were the sume in each of the
fisent years. While oversll net revenues remained unchanged, nel revenues deoreased approximaiely $1.0 mitlion during fiseal
2007 ot the Pioneer comparet ta the 2006 fiscal year, following the declining trend of gaming revenues in Lavghlin. SEVC net
revenues inereased during fseal 2007, by S0.2 million as compared 1o the 2006 Fisead year, Sghara Resons {(“5R”) net revenues
inetensed during fiseal 2007, by $8.4 million, a3 conpared to the 2006 {iscal yeor, The SLVC and SR increases are nssociated
with imferest fncome resulting from improved cash {lows.

Ity fiseal 2007, 66% of the Company's net revenues were derived from the Pioneer and 27% from investment properiies.
The Company's business strategy bt the Plonter emphasizes slot and video poker machine play. For fiscal 2007, approximately
66% of the Pionser's net revenues were dedved from casing operations. Approximately 91% of gaming revenues at the Ploncer
were derived from skot and video poker machines, while 7% of such revenues wers feoim table games and 2% was from other
gaming ectivities such as keno.

Operating Expenses, Tolul operating expenses decreased approgimately £3.5 million, or 5%, o $36.8 miilio: for the year
ended September 30, 2007, from $40.3 enillion for the year ended September 30, 2006, Total operating expenses ss » percentage
of net revenues decreased 10 82% for the year ended September 30, 2007 from 8995 for the year ended September 30, 2006, The
decrease in operating expenses was principally the result of & deercase of approximately $3.1 million in stock.based
campensation expense and o $1.4 million gain on the sate of the Cembridge butiding, pastially offset by an increase of $1.0
raillion in Corporate and Pioncer operating expanses,

Opcrating Incoute. Consolidaled eperating income for the year eaded Scptember 30, 2007 was 38.3 million, an
approximate $3.5 miliion increase from £4.8 milfion for the yeor ended September 30, 2008, While total revenues remained
refatively flat, operatingt expenses wene reduced spproximately $2.0 million, combined with & $1.5 millien gain on dispesal of
a5xets.
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fiseevest Expense, Consalitlated interest expense for the year ended Seprember 30, 2007 was $8.3 million, a 30.4 million
dectease compared to $8.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2009, primarily dug 1o a decrense in intercst expense
sssocinted with non-recourse debt of the invesiment propentics.

Interest and Ciher Income, Intzrest nad other income for the year ended September 30, 2007 was $1.0 mitlion, an increasc
of §0.8 million from 50.2 miilion for the vear ended September 30, 2006, The increase in interest nnd other income is o result of
increased eash Mows related to the Agreement granted to LVTT to purchase an approximaiely 27 acre parcel of real propeny
located on the Strip,

Ineame Tax The Company recorded o federal income fax provision of $0.3 million (a0 approyintate 34% rale) for the yesr
ended September 30, 2007, a change of $0.7 millien from o 50.4 million tax benefit (an approximete E1%% mte) for the year
ended September 30, 2006, Cenain expenses, principally related to stock-based compensation exprnse, recorded in fiscal year
26056 were not deductible for income {2x purpases.

Preferved Share Dividends. The Company colled aff outstanding shares of its Exchangeable Redeetabie Preferred Stock
for redemption on and as of August 31, 2007, at a redernption price of $5.241 per shore, which sum included agersed and unpaid
dividends to the date of redemption. From and sfler August 31, 2007, a1l shures ol the Exchangeable Redesmable Preferred
Siock ceaved to be oitstanding and 1o acerue dividends, For the year ended September 30, 2007, dividends of spproximately
$1.4 million were acerucd an the preferred stock for the purpases of caleulating net income applicable to commen shares. The
dividend rate increased 12 its maximum mte of 16.0% eifestive Oatober {, 2003,

Pipaeer

General. Casino, hote! and foodibeverge revenues and cxpenses at the Pioneer comprise the majority of consolidated
casing, hotel and food/beverage revenues and expenses included in the Company’s consclidated statements of operntions 2nd are
dizgussed separately below.

Net Operating Revenues. Net rovenues ot the Pioncer decressed $1.0 mullion, or approximately 3%, to $30.0 million for
the year ended September 30, 2007 from $31.0 millfon for the year ended September 30, 2006,

Gross casino revenues decreased approsimately $1.3 milfion, or 5.2% 10 823 .6 millfon for the year ended September 39,
2007 from $24.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2006. Stor and video poker revenues decreascd approximately 1.1
mitlion, or 3%, to $21.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2007 from $22.6 million for the year ended September 30,
2006. Other gross gaming revenues, including table games, decreased approximately 30.2 million, or 5%, ta $2.1 million forthe
year ended September 30, 2007 year compared 1o $2.3 miltion for the 2008 year, Management believes this decrense was a result
of declining market rends in the focal aren. Casino promotional nliowances decreaged 50.2 million, or 324, 1o $6.0 million in
year ended September 30, 2007 compared 1o $6.2 million for yeor ended September 30, 2006 primarily due 1o the
sforementioned decling in the loead gaming market.

Hotel revenues decreased $0.1 million, or 4%, to $2.9 miilion for the year ended September 36, 2007 from §3.0 million in
fiseal 2006 due to & deerease in the average daily room rate, Food and beverage revenues were relatively stable at $7.4 miltion
for both years. Other revenues increased $0.3 million, or 15%, 1o $2.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2007 from 51.9
miltion fisr the year ended September 30, 2006 dus 1o increased relail sales.

Operating Expenses. Operating vxpenses increased 50.5 million, o 2%, 10 3323 miltivn for the year ended September 30,
2607 from $31,0 millinn for the year ended Septerber 34, 2006. Operating expenses a8 & percentage of net revenues increased
16 103% in fiscal 2007 from $100%5 in fiseal 2006,

Casing expenses deereased $0.3 million, or 25, to $13.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2007 from $13.9 million
for the year cnded Scpiember 30, 2006, primarily related 1o o decrease in casino promotionsl allowances, Casino expenses s o
percentage of casing revenues increased to SE3 for the year ended Septesber 30, 2007 from 5675 for the year ended
September 3, 2006,
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Huotel expenses incrensed $0.1 million, or 10%, 0 51,2 million for the year ended September 30, 2007 compared to 31,1 for
the year ended September 30, 2008, primarily doe 1o the increase in payroll expenses related to the minimum wage increases.
Foad and beverage sxpenses increased 30.4 million, or 9%, to $4.3 million in fscal 2007 from $3.9 million in fiscal 2006,
primarily dug to the incresse in payraf] reisted to the minimusm wage increase, Food and beverage expenses s & pereentage of
revenues inerensed to $8% for the 2007 year from 53%5 for the 2006 year. Other expenses increased $0.3 million, or 1755, 10 $1.9
million for the year ented September 30, 2007 compared 10 SL6 million for the year ended September 30, 2006 due 10 cost of
sales reluted to the incrense in retail revenues, Cither expenses as a perceniage of other revenues increased to 5%, for the 2007
yeur from §4% for the 1006 yeur

Sclling, general and adminisirative expenses incroased $0.1 million, or 2%, to 54.4 million for the year ended
Seplember 30, 2007 compated to $4.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2006, Selling, general and administrative
sxpenses as & parcentage of revenues increased to 155 for the 2007 year from 14% for the 2006 year, Pioneer's selling, general
arnd administrative expenses are greater than the eonsolidated total due 10 the elimination of intercampany transactions in
consolidation. Utilities and property expenses increased 30.) million, or 3%, to $4.0 million in fiscal year 2007 compared 1o
$3.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2006, Utilitizs and property expenses as o percentage of revenues remained
unchanged at (3%, Depreciation and amontization expenses decreased $6.2 millian, or §%, to $2.0 million in the year ended
September 30, 2007 from §2.2 million in the vear ended September 34, 2006, The Pioacer recorded 5 loss of $20,000 on the
dispasat of siet machines in the prior year compared 0 ne activity in the current year,

nterext Expense. Interest expense decreased $0.1 million, or 10%, o 31.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2007
from $1.4 milfion for the year ended September 30, 2006, primarily due to the reduction of debt.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ~ FISCAL 2006 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2005
Geugral

During Bscal 2006, the Company's net operating revenues increased spproximately $1.5 million and operating expenses
deereased spproximately $1.1 million, resulting in an increase of approximately $2.6 million in operating income. The
improvement in operating results was primarily due 1o approximalely $1.0 million received a3 reimbursements of amounts
previously expended on behalf of an sffiliated company, an improvement of $0.8 million it operating resulls at the Pioneer and o
$0.8 million decrease in stock-based compensation.

Throughout the tntter half of cakendar 2004 through June 30, 2008, the Company financed certain legal costs totaling
approximately 50.8 miltion associated with certain srbitration between Duke’s LLC and 8 generai eontmeion Christopher
Lowden, son of Paul W, Lowden, is a limited partner in Duke's LLC which was the maneging member of Duke’s Cagine, 2
casine managed and operated by a subsidiary of the Comnpany. The Company had previously written-ofT s investment in and
veceivables o Duke's LLC, related to the operation of Duke's Casine, of approximately 1.5 mitlion in the fiscol year ended
Septerber 30, 2063, In Jenuary 2005, the American Arbitration Assoeiation swarded Duke's LLE spprosimately $4.9 million
against the general contraetor for & cusino rerovation at Duke’s Casino, The Company has ar agreement with Duke’s LLGC
wherchy the Comgany Is to be reimbursed for legal and certain other costs related to the arbitration as well as recovery ol
amourtts previously written-ofT, which in total may exceed 33 million. However, due to various contingencies surrounding the
enforcement, collection or settioments with Duke's LLC and the general contractor, management can give no sssurance of the
Hming or the smount it will wliimately receive, During the three months ended September 38, 20086, the Company received
approaimately S1.O million from Duke's LLC. According to the tesms ol the various sgreements, the Company may conlinue 10
receive spproximately $60,000 per month for approximalely 40 manths ag well as a payment in approximately 2 yeasrs of
approximately S280,000 and a final pryment of approximately §1.0 miltion in spproximately 4 years. The Company can not give
assurante that these payments will soeur and plans to record any future recoveries as received.
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Conselidated

Net Operaring Revenuey. Consalidated net operating revenues for the year ended September 30, 2005 were $45.2 million,
a 51.5 million, or 3%, increase from $41.7 miilion for the year ended Sepiember 30, 2605, Income from investment propenies
was 51 2.4 million in each of the {isca) years, Net revenues increased approximately $1.3 miflion 10 $31.0 mitlion during fiscal
2604 a1 the Pioneer compared 1o $29.7 mitlion for die 2003 fiscal year,

[ fiscal 2006, 69% of the Company's nel revenues were detived from the Pioseer and 279 from investmest propertics.
The Company’s business gratepy 1 the Pioneer craphasizes stol and vides poker machine play, For fizcal 2006, appeoximately
80% of the Pioncer’s net revenues were derived from cosing operations. Approximatety 91% of gaming revenues at the fonesr
were derived from stol and video poker machines, while 8% of such revenues were from table games and 136 was from other
gaming setivities such as keno,

Operatlog Expenses, Total operating expenses decreased appraximately $1.1 mitlion, or 3%, to $40.3 million for the year
snded September 30, 2006 from $41.4 million for the year srded Seprembser 30, 2005, Total operating expenses as a porcentage
of net revenuss decreased 1o 89% for the year ended Sepromber 38, 2006 from 83% for the year ended Seprember 38, 2005, The
deerense in operating expenses was principally the result of a deerease of approximately $0.8 million in stock-based
campensalion expense and a $0.8 million reimbursement of legal expenses from an affiliste partially offset by nn increase of
0.5 million in operating expenses at the Pioneer.

Operating fncone, Consolidated operating income for the year exuded Septerbur 30, 2006 was 4.8 mijtion, an
approximate 52,5 million increase from S2.3 million for the yesr ended September 38, 2008, Operating income increased by
$0.8 miltion at the Pioneer,

{nterest Expense, Consvlidated interest expense for the yeor ended Scptember 36, 2006 was 38.2 million, 4 32.2 millien
serense comypared to SELY million for the year ended Septemnber 38, 2003, printarily duc to o decrease in interes! expense
associnted with non-recourse debt of the investment properies,

tnterest and Other Income, Interest ond other income Tor the yenr ended Scptember 30, 2008 was $0.2 million, a decrease
of $1.1 millien from $1.3 miltion for the year caded September 30, 2005, In fiscal 2005, the Company hud §0.1 million from net
gains on sales of marketabde securities and 50.9 million of income from other invesiments and other assets.

Fucone Tax. The Company recorded o federa! income 1ax benefiy of $0.4 miltion (an spproximate 11% rate) for the year
ended September 10, 2006 compared to 32.6 million {an approximate 35% tax rate) For the year ended September 36, 2005.
Cerain expenses, principally related 1o stock-based compensation expense, recorded in fiscal vear 2000 were not deductible for
income tax pumposes.

Preforved Share Dividends, Undeclared greferred share dividends are not rezorded in the stovkholdess' equity section of
the balance sheet as the Company may chect at ils sole discretion whether 1o redecm its preferred stock, However, dividends of
approximately $1.5 miltun for fiscal years 2006 and 2003 acerscd on the preferred stock for purposes of calcalating net foss
applicable to common shares, The dividend mie increased to its maximum rate of 16.08% effective October ), 2003,
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Plonecr

General. Casino, hotel and food‘beverage revenues and cxpenses at the Pioneer comprist the majority of conselidatad
easino, hoted and food/bevernps revenues and expenses included in the Company’s conselidated statements of operations snd are
discussed separately below,

Nat Operating Revenues, Net revenues at the Pieaser increased 1.3 million, or approximately 4%, 1o $31.6 mullion for the
year ended Seplember 30, 2606 from $29.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2005,

Ciross casino revenues increased approsimaiety S0.8 million, or 335, to $24.9 milfion for the year ended September 30,
2006 from 524.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, Slot and video poker revenues increased spproximately $0.9
wmillion, or 4%, to $22.8 million for the year ended September 30, 20646 from $21.7 million for the year ended September 30,
2005, Cther pross gaming revenues, including table games, were relatively unchanged at $2.3 million for the 2006 year
camparcd to 52.4 million for the 7005 yesr. Managemem belicves (his increase was u result of improved marketing siategies to
stiriet local custemers, Casine promotional aliowances increased $0.6 nvillion, or 11%, to $6.2 miltion in fiscal year 2006
compared to $5.6 million {or fiscal year 2805 primarily due 1o the aforementioned incresse in slot and video poker revenues and
certain changes in marketing sttepies.

Hote! reventes increased 50,2 million, or 6%, ta $3.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2006 from $2.8 million in
fiscal 2003, due to an increase in occupancy mie partialiy offset by a decrease in the average duily room rate. Food and beverape
revenues increased $0.5 million, of 8%, to §7.4 milion for the year 2006 from $6.9 million for the 2005 year, primarily due fo
the increase in casing promotional aliewances, Other revenues increased $0.4 avilfion, or 28%, to $1.8 million in the current year
from 51,3 million in the pricr year due to increased retail sales,

Operating Expenses, Operting expenses increased $0.5 milkion, or 236, to $31.0 miflion for the year ended September 39,
2006 from §30.5 million far the year ended Septermber 30, 2005, Operuting capanses s 8 peecentage of net revenues decreased
f0 100% in Tiscal 2006 from 103%% in fiscal 2005,

Casing expenses inerensed 30.8 million, or 6%, to $13.9 miltion for the year ended Sepiember 30, 2006 from $13,1 million
for the year ended Seprember 30, 2003, primarily refated 1o increase in casino promotional alfowances. Casing expenses as a
percentage of casine revenues increzsed to 56% for the year ended September 30, 2004 fram 54% for the year ended
September 30, 2003,

Hotel expenses were relatively unchonged at $1.1 million for the vear ended September 36, 2006 compared to §1.0 for the
vear ended September 30, 2603 as the Pioneer was shie to increase occupancy withow increasing costs, Food snd beverage
expenses decreased $0,2 meillion, or 5%, w $3.9 miltioa in fiscal 2005 from $4.1 milfion in fiscal 2005, primarily ducto
decrease iss the cost of faod sales associnted with a change in food promotions. Foed and beverge expenscs a5 a percentage of
food and beverage revenues decreased 1o 53% for the 2006 year from 60% for the 2005 year. Other expenses increased 50.4
msillion, or 389, to 1.6 millien for the veur ended Sepiember 38, 2006 compared to $1.2 milfion for the year ended
September 30, 2005 duc to the increase in reinil sales, Other exponsces a5 a percentage of ether revenues increased to §4% for the
2006 year from TR for the 20835 vear,

Selling, penerst and administrative expenses decreased SG.1 million, o 2%, to $4.4 million for the year ended
September 30, 2006 compared to $4.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. Selling, general end adminisirative
capenses 05 & percentape of revenues decreased to 14% for the 2006 yeor from 15% for the 2005 year, Pioneer's selling, peueral
and administrative cxpenses are greater than the consolidated total dec to the elimination of intercompany Imnsactions in
consolidation. Utilities and properly expenses were unchanged 3t $3.9 million for the years ended September 30, 2606 and 2005.
hititics and propeny expenses 15 0 percentage of revenues remained unchanged at 13%. Depreciation and amortization
expenses decreased $0.3 mitlion, or 1194, 10 §2.2 millics int the year ended Scptember 30, 2606 from 52,3 mit)lion in the year
ended September 30, 2005. The Pioneer recorded a foss of $0.2 million on the disposal of older siot rachines in the prior year
compared Lo §20,000 in the curren) year,
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tnterest Expense. Incrost expenss increased $0.1 miltion, or 115, to $1.4 milion for the yesr ended Septemnber 30, 2006
from $1.3 millios for the vear ended September 30, 2005, primarily due 10 the increase in the prime tending rate.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES; TRENDS AND FACTORS RELEVANT TO FUTURE OPERATIONS
Cantragiwal Obligatlons gnd Commimears

The following table summarizes the Company's fiscal year contraetual obligations and commitmenty as of September 30,
2007 for the fiseal years crding September 30, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2042, 2013 and theresfier:

Pavieats Doy By Perlod

08 and -
18 wey o 2w i) 002 Thereafer | Tmtal
(Ameumts in Thousands}

Non-recourse debt:

Gaithersbueg % 2491 S$I,82% 83,186 53,573 83,987 $29.535 % 45,620

Sovereign ¢ H 0 ¢ 0 3,199 31,199
Long-term debrt

Equipment £,143 2 0 0 0 ] 1,195

Morigage obligation 9,798 ] f g i g 9,798
Operating lenses:

Ground fense an N 373 373 37 24,702 6,565

Corporate offices 59 30 0 0 9 0 5g

S13.8A2 §$3,283 33,539 £3,.946 54,360 SR5456 3114464

The Company is reguined te make the following cash interest payments relnted to (he nbove debt obligations:
(i} Noh-recourse debt—S7.0 million {2008}, 56.8 miflion (2009), $6.6 miflion (2010), $6.3 million (3611), $6.0 million
(2012) and §33.8 million (2013 and thereafter); and (ii} Long-term debt~-$10 million {2008), 50.0 million (2009), 30.1 million
{26103, S0.6 mitHon (2014) $0.4 miliion (2007), $0.0 millien {2012) ond $0.0 million (2013 and thereafier).

Our ubitity to service our contractun] obligations and commitments will be deperdent on the fusure performance of the
Pionser, which will be affested by, among other things, prevailing cconomic conditions and financial, business and other faciors,
including competitive pressure Trom the expansion of Native American gaming facilities in the southwest United States, ceriain
uf which are beyond osr control, In addition, we will be dependent on the continued ability of the tenunts in the investment
propertics in Gaithersburg, Maryland and Darchester, Massachusetts to make payments pursiant 1o the leases with the Company.
The payments under the leases are contretually commitied 10 be used to make payments on the Company's non-recourse debt
obligstions related to the properties. Based upon the financial condition of the wnanis, masagement does not {oresce any
problems i the imely satisfaction of future obligations by third parties,

A non-recourse obligation relaied 1o the Massachusetts property of approximately $25.7 milfion matured and was paid by
the tensnt during the three months ended June 30, 2005, The tenant of the property was mquired to make this payment subject 1o
2 lease agreement. Based upon the financial condition of the tenent, management does not foresee any problems in the timely
satisTaction of Ruure obligations by third penies,
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Linuidity and Canltel Resagrce.

Mortgage Note Obligation -~ The Company has 2 morigage note phigation which matured in lawe Decembsr 2006 with an
extension untd January 2008 in the spproximate amount of 310.1 miflion. The Bank has informed the Company of ils
comitnitment fo extend the maturity date of the note ohiipation to January 2069. The documentation procsss for the extension
may go beyond the January 15, 2008, maturity, however, alt original terms and conditions will remain in effzct until the new
ioan documents are exeewted. Existing terms include monthly principal and interest payments of 538,000 with intersst st a rate
of prime plus 1% and a balloon payment of approximately £9.7 million in January 2008 with no prepayment penaliies, The
extended pole will continue to be seeured by the land owned on the Sirip by the Company and by a personal guananty of the
Corpany’s Chairman of the Board end CEO, Paul W. Lowden, Although the Company believes the bank's commitment 10
extend the matusity date of the loan will be made forma! in the noar-term, it con not give Any assuranees that the extension will
aceur. However, the bank has informed the Company it intends to extend the matusity date 10 January 2009,

As of September 30, 2007, the Company hefd cash and cash equivalents of $27,5 million compared to $6.2 million at
September 30, 2006, In addition, the Company had §7.3 miltion in iovesiment in marketable securitics st Scpiember 30, 2007
compared to $6.0 million at September 30, 2006, Munagement believes that through cash ow generated from its casing
operations mnd its short and lang-term investments, the Company will have sufficient available cash and cash resoutces fo meet
itg cash requirements through the twelve-month period ending September 30, 2008, The invesiment properties were stiuctured
such that future lenants” paymients cover future required mortgage payments.

Caxh Flaes from Operating Acrivities, The Company's cash provided by operations was approximately 53.0 million for
the year ended Scplember 38, 2007 remaining nearly equal 1o approximately $3.1 million for the year ended September 30,
2006.

Caslt Flows from lavesting Activities, Cash provided by investing sctivities wag $42.2 million during the year ended
Sepiember 30, 2007, compared to cash provided by investing activities of $6.9 million during the year ended September 30,
2006. This increase is pritarity related to the ronrefindable option payment of approximately $44.0 million reccived during the
year ended September 30, 2007, compared to the nonrefundabic optian payment of approximatcly 35.8 million received in the
year ended Sepientber 30, 2006,

Cast Flows from Financing Activitles, Cash used in financing activities was approximatcly §23.4 million during the year
ended September 30, 2007 compared te 55,9 mitlion during the year ended September 30, 2006, During fiscal 2007, the
Company poid $20.} million for redeemable preferred stock and paid $2.9 miflion on debn and non-recourse deit, Duriag fiscal
2006, the Company paid $6.6 mitlion on debt and nron-recourse debt and borrowed $0.7 miltion from a margin account.

The Company's primary source of operating cash is from the Pioneer’s operations, from interest income on available cash
and eash equivelents, fram leasing real estate owned in Las Vegas, Nevada and from investments in marketable secuntizs. From
time-to-lime, tmnsactions involving the sate of cenain lend or other assets also contnbute to the Company's cash balasces as
evidenced by the rreem sabe of the Agreement for the purchase of the Company’s Las Veuns strip property whereby the
Cowmpany received 35.8 million thraugh September 30, 2008. During fiseal 2007, the Compuny received an additional $44.0
million includiag extension fees ond on addivional option payroest, The Company has used, aod plans ta use, thesz proceeds 1o
reduce cerain short-term debt obligations, purchase morketable securitics and {or general corporaie purposes,

Rental income from the Company’s two investment properties is contmetuaily commitied to reduzing the son-recourse
indebiedress issued or assumed in connection with the acquisition of the investiment propesties. Under the two leases, the terants
are responsible for substanually ol chligations related to those prapedics.

in Octaber 1595, the Company scquited an approximately 27-acre parcet on the Strip which was recorded at spproximately
$21.5 milkion. The Company feases the property fo two different fessees for an aggregate amount of §364,000 per manth. Both
leuses tmay be terminated with sixty doys written notice in the event the propeny is sold to a third party,
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Pioncer's prineipal uses of cash are for payments of rens and capital expenditures 10 maintain the focility and administrative
expenses incutred in operating 2 casine, The Compnny has implementad changes in personnci and promotional programs and
instatted new stot equipment 1o address the decreases in revenues and eperating income. Une of management's main focuses is
1o recapltre mirket share in ihe Lunghiin markel,

Duke’s Caginn

Prior to fiscol 20017, the Company had lozned approximately $1.4 miltion to Duke’s - Sparks {“Dubte’s™), 2 Nevada limjted-
liability company. The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Archion Sparks Management Company, operated Duke's
casino, Christopher Lowden, sun of Paul W, Lowden, was o Hmited partner in the company that was & menaging member of
Duke’s, The Company atso acquired 2 $100,000 Class B member imerest in Duke's. In December 2003, Buke's closed its casino
operations.

Throughout the fatier talf of calendar 2004 throagh June 30, 2086, the Company financed certain legal costy totsling
approximately $0.8 mitlion nssociaicd with certain arbiwation between Duke's LLC und a general contracton The Company had
previously weitten-ofY its investment in and receivables from Duke's LLC, related to the operation of Duke's Casing, of
appraximatcly $1.5 million in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, In Junuary 2005, the Amncrican Arbitration Association
awarded Duke's LLC approximately 54.9 miltion againss the general contractor for a casino renevalion at Duke's Casino, The
Company has an sgreement with Duke's LLC whereby the Company is to be reimbursed for fegal and centain eiher costs refated
to the arbitration s well ag recovery of amounts previously written-ofF, which in total may execed 53 mitlion. However, ducto
various conlingencies surrounding the enfarcemen, callection or seitiements with Duke's LLC and the geaneral contractor,
managemedt can give no psserance of the timing or the amount it witl ultimately receive, During the year ended Seplember 30,
2007, the Company received approsimately $0.7 million frem Duke's LLC, The Company has negetiated with Dukes-Sparks,
LLC and cheained an assignment of ol futare payments under the judgment and seltiernent with the general contrmctor for the
casino project, The general contracior kas been notified of the assignment and will be making all futnre payments due under the
setelement with Dukes-Sparks, LLC to the Company divectly acroeding with the terms of the setthement agreement.

Redemption of the Compuny’s Preferred Stock und Redemption Frice Dlspuies,

The Company called all outstanding shares of its Exchangenbie Redeemabte Preferred Stock for redemption onand as of
Aupgust 31, 2007, at 2 redemption price of $5.24) per share, which sum included scerued and unpaid dividends to the datc of
redemption, From end after August 31, J007, all shares of the Exchangeable Redeemable Prefemed Stock seased 10 be
outstanding and 10 scerue dividends, As of January 14, 2008, the holders 074,234,872 shares of the Exchangeable Redecmable
Prefermed $1ock have sumendercd their shares and received payaient of the redernption price.

On Augusi 27, 2007, the following institutional investors: D, B, Shaw Lawinar Portfolies, L.L.C,, LT Capital Master Fund,
Lid, LC CapitaliCapita Z SPV, LP, Magten Asset Management Corp, Mercury Real Estate Securities Fund LP, Mercury Real
Estate Securities OfTshore Fund Limited, Black Horse Capital LP, Black Howse Cepital {QF) LP, Black Horse Capital Offshore
Ltd, und Plainfield Special Simations Muster Fund Limited fied an sction against e registeat in the United States District
Coust For The District of Nevada entitled D.E, Shaw Laminar Portfobos, LLC; etal, v. Archon Corporation, 2:67.CV.01146-
PMP.LRL (D. Nev.). The Camplaint was subsequently amended to add an additionat party plaintiff (collectively, the “Laminar
Plaintiffs™). The Amended Complaing: {2) sccks a finding by the Court that the Company bas breached its obligations under the
Company's Cenificate of Designation of the Freferred Stock, dated September 30, 1993 (the “Certificatz”), and nwarding the
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Laminar Plaintifts ull compensation of sny and all aveilable damages suffered by the Laminar PlaintiTs as s result of the
Company's breach of the Cenificate; (b) secks o finding by the Court that the Company's issusunce of its redemption notice with
an improper redemyion price i§ an anticipatory breach of 3 material term of the Certificate and awarding the Laminar PlaintifTs
full compensation of any snd afl available damages suffered as a result of the Company’s anticipatory breach of the Centificate;
(e) sewks & declarsuion by the Court that U dividends be praperly calzulated and compounded per the terms of the Centificate in
an smount 1o Jess than §7.235,35 1 up through and including the date of final judgment; (d) seeks an order from the Court calling
for the Company to reimburse the Laminas Phaintiffs* atiorneys’ fees, expenses and costs incurred in enforcing the their rights;
und (¢) seeks such other ad further reliel as the Coun may deem approprinte. In November 2007, and subseguent 1o the end of
the Company's fiscal vear ended Scptember 30, 2007, the Laminar Plaintiffs filed a motion for partial summary judgment on
lizhitity. The Company responded, and the parties will await a ruting from the Court following the Plaimifl's filing of ha reply
Brief,

Also subsequent 1o the end of the Company’s fiscal year, two other former halders of the Exchangeable Redeemable
Preferred Stock fited Complaints in the United States Distrizt Coun, District of Nevada, entitled Rainera v, Archon Corpomtion,
istriey of Nevada S 7-cv-1 353, and Leeward Capiicl, LP v. Archon Corpuration, District af Nevada Case No.
2:08-cv-J0007, both alleging essentially the surme cloim as the first Complaint, 1 the plainiifTs are comrect, the redemption price
25 of August 31, 2007 should have been $8.69 per share and not $5.241 per share as calculated by the Company which, if
applied to ol the then putstanding shares of Excliangeable Redermable Preferred Stock, including the shares held by the
Company's officers and directors, would increass the redemption price in excess of $15.2 million.

Recently bswed Accoynting Stopdards

SEAS NG, I60; In Desember 2007, the Finsncial Azcounting Standands Bosed (“FASE"} issued Statement of Accounting
Standards (*SFAS™) No. 150, Noscostrolling hiterests i Consolidated Financial Statemens. {1 elarifies thot a noncontrotling
(minority} interest in a subsidiary is an owncrship inicrest in the consolidated entity that should be reponed as equity in the
comsolidoted financial statements. SFAS 160 will be effective Tor the Company's fiscal year beginning Qctober 1, 2009, but will
niot Yikely have any effeet on the Company's conselidated financial statements,

SFAS NO. 159 1 February 2007, the FASB issued STAS 159, The Fuir Valie Option for Finuncial Assets and F inancial
Liahilitics, which provides companies an option 1o report selected financial assets and Habilities ot fair value. Adoption of SFAS
159 is optional for the Company but only iT SFAS 157 is adopted conzurvently. The Company is currently evaluating the possible
impacy that adopling SFAS No. 139 will have un its consalidated financial statements.

SFAS ND. 1572 In September 2006, the FASD issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Yalue Measuremonts which establishes a
frarsewnck for messuring fair value and enhanced disclosurces sbout far value measurements. The measurement and disclosure
requirements are effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiszal 2009, except with respect 1o non-financial
assets and Habilities for which the cffective wilt be one year later, We are currently evaleating whether SFAS No. 157 will resalt
in a change (o our fir value messurements.

SFAS N0, JIR: Tn December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), Business Combinations. This Statement replaces
STAS 141, Business Combinationy. This Statement retains the fundamentat requirements in Statement 141 that the acguisition
method af accoutiting {which Stuterem 141 called the pruchase metihod) be used for all business cormbinaiions and for an
acquirer to be identified for each business combination. While we have not yet evaluated this statement for the impast, il say,
that SFAS 1418 might heve on its consolidated financiad sttements, in the cvent we make any business combination or other
coversd scquisitions ofter September 30, 2008,

FIN 48, In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No, 48, dceotnting for Uncertaingy it Income Tixes (“FIN 487). The
provisions are effective for us beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008, Dused on our analysis of our tax provisions, deferred
tax ausets and the related valuation aliowance, we expect that the financial impact, if any, of applying he provisions of FIN 48 1o
afl tax positions will not reselt in ony adjustment o the opening deficit or other material impact to our consolidsted financin
sintements or related disclosures vpoen the initizl adoption of FIN 48,
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The Company has been generaliy successful in reeovering costs associaled with inflation through price adjustimenis in its
hote! room rates. Expenses of operating the Company's investment propertics are geacrlly borne by the tenants, Any such
future increases in costs essociated with casino operations and muintenance of propentics may not be comgpletely recovered by
the Company.

Private Sevuritles Litpaton Reforn Act

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form §0-K which are aet historieal fagts are forward-fenking statements, such
as siatements relating to future opernting results, existing and experted competition, financing and medinancing snurces and
availability and plans for future development, expansion or sale sctivities, capital expenditures, expansion of business operations
into new areas and the payment of certain obligations by third parties. Such forward-looking statements iivolve a pumber of
risks and uncenainties thas may sipnificantly affect the Company’s Hquidity aad resubts in the futere and, accordingly, actual
results sy differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but
are not limited to, those related to effects of competition, leversge and debt service, genernl economic conditions, changes in
gaming laws or regulations {inciuding the legalization of gaming in various jurisdictions) and risks related 1o development
setivities and the startup of non-ganing operations,

Tiem 7A. MARKET RISK DI E

Market risk is the risk of loss arsing from changes in market mtes and prices, such ns interest rates, foreign cumency
exchange rates snd commodity prices. Excluding its non-recourse debt, the Company has total interest-bearing debt of
rpproximaiely $11.0 miilion, of which approximately $9.8 miition trears inierest s 5 variable rate (9.25% at September 30,
2007). Therefore, the Company maintains certain market mte risk refated to this debt. A change in the interest rates of 194 would
cause an approximate $100,000 change in the amount of interest the Company wauld ineur based on the amount of varialile debn
outstonding a1 Sepiember 38, 2007, Any fature bommowings with veriable intersst rte terms will be cxpesed sa this same market
rate risk,

The Company holds investments in various available-forsale securities; however, exposure 10 price nisk arising from the
ownership of these fnvestments is not material (o the Company's consclidated financial position, reaulls of opertions or cash
fiow a5 historically price Auctuations of these securitics have not been material,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockliolders end Board of Birectors of Archon Corporation:

We have rudited the accompanying consolidated balsnce sheets of Archon Corporation and Subsidiaries (the "Company™) as of
September 38, 2007, and the related consolidaled statements of operations, stockholders® equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, Theze financlal stasements s the responsitdlity of the Company's mansgerment. Our responsibility is to express an
opisian on these financial stotements based on our sudit, The consolidated financlal statements of the Company as of
September 30, 2006 and for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, were audited by other auditors whose repont dated
December 21, 2006, expressed an unquatifed opinien on those financial statements.

We conducted pur sudit in gecordatice with the standands of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit o obisin reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. We wete not engaged to perform an audit of the Comgany's internal controd over financish
reperting. Our audits included consideration of internnd contral over financial reposting as 2 basis for designing assdit procegures
Wiat are appropriste in the circumsiances, bul not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
intermat conirol aver financial reponting. Accordinply, we express no such opinion, An sudit also includes examining, on o test
husis, evidenes supporing the amounts and disclosurss in the firancinl stalements, assessing the accounting principles used and
sipnificant estimates made by mansgement, and evaluating the overnl) financinl siatement preseatation. We believe that our
awdits provide g reasonable basis for our opinion, '

In our opinion, the Rnancial statements referred 1o above present. fairly, in all moterial respects, the consolidated {inanciat
position of the Company as of September 30, 2007, and the consolidaied resuits of its operations ond its cash flows for the yoars
shen ended, in conlormity with eccounting principles generally aceepled in the United States.

L.uss Vegas, Nevadn
Ianuary 14, 2008

!sf Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kem
Certified Public Accoumants
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REPOHT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Siockholders and Borrd of Directors of Archan Corporation:

We live audited the sccompanying consalidated batance sheet of Archon Corporation and Subsidieries (the “Company™) a5 of
Seplember 30, 2086 {Restated), sad the related consolidated siatements of apemtions, stackholders® equity and eash flows for
the years ended September 38, 2006 (Restated as to the Siaternent of Cush Fiows) and 2005, These finascial staiements are the
respansibility of the Company's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staterments based on
nur audits,

We canducted our nuedits in acsordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Overstght Board (United Sates).
Those standards require that we plan and perfosm the audit (0 obiain reasonabls assurance sbout whether the financial statements
are free of material misstotement. We were not engaged fo perform nn audit of the Company’s intsrual contrel over financia
reporting, Qur audits included consideration of intemni control over financial reporting us 2 basis for designing sudit proceduses
that re appropriste in e ciroymstances, but ot far the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
intcrmal control over linancinl reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on o test
basis, cvidence supporting the smouats and disclosures in the financint statements, assessing the secounting principles used and
sigrificant estimates made by management, and eviluating the overall financial statement presentntion, We believe that aur
andits provide a reasomible basis for our opinion,

iry our opinios, the financial statements relerred to sbave present fuitly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position ef the Company s of Septernber 30, 2006 (Restated), and the consotidated results of their operations and their cash
fows for the years ended September 30, 2006 {Restaied as to the Statemient of Cash Flows) and 2003, in conformity with
accounting principles generlly accopted in tie United States.

As deseribed in Note 2, "Restatement of 2006 Financial Statenwns,” the Company hos restated previously issued financial
statements as of and for the year ended Degomber 31, 2006,

L.as Vepas, Mevada
December 21, 2006

3¢ Ernst & Younp LLP
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Archen Corporstion and Subsidinries
Caonsolidnted Balance Sheets
13 of September 30,

ASSETS

Currenl assebs:
Cash and cash cquivalents
Invesiment in markelable securities
Aceounts receivahle, net
Invertorics
Brepaid expenses and other

Total curvent nysets
Property heldd for sale

Property and equipment:
Rental propeny hekt for mvestment, net
Latnd used in operations
Buildings and improvemens
Mnchinery ord equipment
Accumutated depreciaion

Property and eguipment, net

Oiher assets
Total assets

Sce the accompanying Notes to Consuolidated Financial Satements.

7

2iW)T A5
(Rertzied)

§ 27,484,222 § 6,187,333
10,997,088 6,011,225
1,054,493 1,096,313
405,378 414,031
1,148,669 1,045,834
41,089,850 14,754,778
21,504,400 21,504 400
F24,9534,638 127,364,625
7,525,589 8,125,580

34 413,872 35,082,388
B.646,190 9,234 644
(26,160,177}  {25.664,662)
149,780,112 154,142,789
7,607,362 7,648,201
$210,981,724  §198,050,168

hapitwww sec.goviArchivesiedger’dsia/B 124820001 1931250801 138,
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Archon Corporatien and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets ~ {contlnuct}

a5 of September 38,
2007 2006
{Kestated)
LIABILITIES AND STD: LDERS EOUITY
Current finbilities:
Accounts payable S 4008754 3 2770938
{nwerest payable 1,361,092 1,310,785
Aceried and other Kabilities A ELR.1.9] 3,524,308
fExchanpenble redeemable preferred siock ~ unredeemed 428,768 0
Cutrent pontion of debn 10,540,805 11,427,277
Current pontipa of non-recourse debt 2,490,198 2,195,326
Total cusrent linbilities 21941508 21,228,745
Debt ~ less curent portion 52,408 323,306
WNon-mgourse dobt ~ less current pottion 74,338,402 76,818,500
Dreferred income taxes 38,753,889 17,245,317
Deferred rent and other accrued linbilities 42,082,116 45,051,567
Proceeds from lend sale option 49,751 667 5,750,000
Coramitmenis and contingencies {see Note £5)
Stockhokders® equity:
Common stock, 5:04 par vaiue; nuthorzed- 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding -
6,280,931 and 6,671,281 shares 61,809 66,721
Prelemed stock, exchangeable, redeemable F6.0% cumulative, stated at 32,14 Hyuidation
value, authorized- 10,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding — 4,413,777 shares on
Seprember 30, 2008 with cumubative dividends in amrcars of 12,202,741 0 $,445 483
Additional paid-ir capitd 6,482,104 61,482,194
Accumslaied deficit (63,507,505} (51,098,183
Aceuntoted other comprehensive income 4,122,320 1,924,104
2,159,418 21,820,407
Less treasury common slogk -« 4,975 shares, at cost (87,.774) (87,774}
Totai mockholders® equity 2,071,644 21,732,633
Total labilitics and stockholders’ equity $219.981,724 1£198,050,168
Sep the accompanying Notes 1o Consolidated Finanzial Statements,
18
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Archon Corporation and Sebs!diarics
Consclldated Statements of Opersilons
For the Years Ended Scpiember 36,

2007 pIIL] 608
Ravenues:
Casino £21,620,508 S24,819890 $ 234,119,385
Hotel 140,349 2,955,859 2,782,508
Fool and beverage 1.392.665 7.433,294 £8.914,157
Investment propentics 12,402,248 12,403,247 12,462,247
Otber 4,543,215 3,685,589 3,088,930
Gross rovemies 51,208,086 51,397,000 49,307,235
Less casioo promotional alfowances (6029493  {6,243,134) (5,619,377)
Net opernting revenues 45,178,593 45,153,666 43,687 858
Operating expenses:
Casino 13,634,799 13,874,382 13,051,698
Hotel 1,585,252 1,074,335 1,044,681
Food and boverage 4,280,358 3,923,775 4,138,451
Cither 1,898,900 1,634,239 1.204,775
Seliing, general and administrative;
Comporate 4,358,540 5,716,989 7,834,400
Other 3,608,705 3,867,060 3,550,894
Eiititics and propeny expenses 4,761,520 4,702,539 4,702,176
Depreciation and amortztion 4,552,391 5,502,009 5,834,726
Loss on sale/hsposal of asscts 152 14,521 244,648
Totwat uperating expenses 382904617 40,310,051 41,402,174
Uperating incoma 6,887,976 4,841,615 2,285,484
Injerost expunse (8,456,538)  (B,B54,722) (11,089,577)
interest and other income 1,042,535 244,926 1,368,134
Loss before income tax beaelit and discontinued operztions (526,023} (3,765,181}  (7,505,959)
Federad income tax beneli 184,001 410472 2,594,151
Losg before discontinued operatiens {342,022y {3,353,709y _ (4.91778)
Riscontinued operations - pain oh sale, nel of tax provision of $510,556 948,250 g {)
et income {loss) 605,228 (3,355,709  4,211,778)
Dividends camed on preferred shares (1,385,337 {13180y (1,511,270
Net loss applicable 0 common shares $ (779,100) ${4,866,986) 5 (6,423,0535)
Average comunon shares cutstanding 6,386,473 6,235,931 6,320,015
Averspe common and common equivilent shares oustanding 6,386,473 6,235,831 6,225,015
Basic income (loss) per common share:
From congnuing operations $ 021 § (178 S {1.03}
From discontinucd operations 0.15 g 1
Net basic loss per share 5 {0.}2) & {378} § {1.03)
Diluled invome per commmon and common equivaient shares oustanding £ nfa S wa 3 nfg
See the secompanying Notes 1o Conselidated Financial Staternents.
29
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Archon Cerporation and Subsidiaries
Consalidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Years Endud September 3,
1041 20486 gs

Net incomie {Ioss) g 604,228 (3,355,709}  $(4.911,77R)
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of income taxes of $1,184, 3302,

and 2199 in 2007, 2006, ond 2003, respectively 2,198,211 561,031 371,005

Comprchensive income (fnss) 52,804,439 3(2,794.678)  $(4.540.773)

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balzanees, Sepuember 30, 2004

Net loss

Prefemed stock redeemed and
retired

Exereise of stock options

Stock-based compensation
sxpesnse

Unreatized gain on murketable
seeuriliey

Balanees, Seplember 30, 2005

Net foss

Exercise of stock options

Stock-bosed conmpenssiion
EXpense

Unrealized gain on macketable
seeurities

Baulasees, Seplember 30, 2006

Netircome

Preferred stock redeemed and
retired

Excreise of stock options

Caneellnting of stock options
exercised

Unrealized guin on marketable
sccunlics

Balanecs, Seprember 30, 2007

Arclian Corperation and Subsidiarics
Cansolidnted Stetements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended September 30, 2047, 20086 and 2{05

Ascurilated
Additional Quser
Cemmun Preferieyd Pald-[n Accumulated  Cumprehessive  Treayery
Storh Stack Cogpitat Deflct Stuck Tural
862,214 £9,673,553 $54,582,164 S{4LH30,615) 5 992,023 ${E7,774) § 22,391,765
(4,911,778} 4,911,778}
(228,070) {188,340) {416,410}
143 19,275 19420
3,929,634 1,929,634
371,053 371,035
62359  94454R1 858,342,003  (47,742.393) 1,380,078 {87,774) 21,383,686
{3,335, 705} {3.355,709)
4,364 4,364
3,139,261 3,139,261
81,84 361,031
56,723 9445483 61,482,194 (51,098,107} 1,924,109 (87.774) 21,732,633
606,228 606,128
(9,445,483} (13,016,335} (22,461,818}
450 450
(4,364} {4,364)
1,138,211 2,158,211
862,809 § 8 $61.482,194 $(63,508,20%) & 41273120 $(B87,774) § 2,071,340

Sec the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements,
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Archon Corporution and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cush Flows
Faor the Years Ended September 30,

Cash Nows from aperating activities:
Net income {iogs)
Cain on sate of discontinued component, ne of tax

Adjustents o rosommile net loss to ned cesh provided by operating activities:

Peprecsaion and amortization
Interest expense from smonization of dety issuance costs
Siack-based compensation expense
Bad detis
Loss on sate of assets, comtinuing operations
Change in tssets and lisbilities:
Actounts receivable
Invemories
Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred income xes
Other asscts
Actounts payable
Ipierest pavable
Averued eapenses and pther linbilitics
Ohthier linbilities
Nut eash provided by opeeating activities
Cash flows from Investing sctivities:
Proceedy from sale of discontinued conponent
Proceeds from safe of nssets
Paymenty reacived [or sale or extension of {and parchase option
Capital expenditures
Markeiabie securities purchosed
Markeinble securilies sokd
Investment ia pannerships
Net cash provided by (used in) Investing activilies
Cash Nows from financing activities;
Proceeds from long-term delbt
Paid oo long-erm debt and obligation under capital lense
Preferred stoek acquired
Stock options excrcised
Cancellation of stock nptions exercised
Net cash used in financing activities

Increase (decrense) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end ol year

Sue the zecompanying Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements,

32

1067

pail

S

(Hestatod)

§ 606,228 $(3,355709)

3 {4.914,778)

{048,250 0 0
4,552,391 5502009 5,834,726
294,106 379,032 815976

0 3139260 3,925,634

0 (17,761) 36,916

152 14,523 344,648

41,840 {26,634) 2,197,754
8,655 (58,574) (61,297
{103,015)  {284,347) 44,272
(185372)  (410472)  (2,594,181)
(253419) 176,547 (255,069)
1,237,816 &14,332 (41,471)
50,296 35,700 (664,654)
187473 326,740 (862,212)
(2969451)  (2.969,450) _ 26,957,686
2,519450 3145357 30450930
1,800,000 63,203 0
9,583 0 0
44,001,667 5,750,000 i
(540,551)  (186,744)  (458026)
(L752,760) (199,131} {946,133)
148,760 1,855,000 111,459

0 (AI033H) _ (§25,000)
43,666,799 6871995  (2.118,600)
0 633,069 2,408,865
(2,852,596) (6,633,860) (31,669,935)
(22,633,050) 0 (416,410)
450 4,364 19,430
(4,364) 0 0
(24,889,560) (5.946427) (23,658,060)
21,796,680 4070825 (1,325,710
6187333 2116708 3442418

527484222 £6,187.533 5 116708
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ARCHON CORPORATION AND SUBSIIARIES
NOTES TS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 20048 and 2005

1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Archon Corperation, (the “Cormpany” or “Archon™), is o Nevada comoration. The Company's primary business eperations
are conducied through o wholly-owned subsidiary corporation, Pioncer Hotel Ing, (*FHI®), which opersics the Pioneer Hotel &
Gambling Hal (the "Pioncer”} in Langhlin, Nevada, I addition, the Company, ewns real estate on Las Vegas Baulevard Soutls
{the "Strip”} in Las Vegas, Nevada, and also owns investment properties in Dorchester, Massachusens and Gaithersburg,
Maryland. 1o June 2006, the Company criered into an aption agreemznt whereby it sold an option to another party for the
purehase of the real estate it owss on the Sirip for 4 tota) sale price of $475 miltion, subject to the terms of the agresment.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

Frincinles of Consolidation

The recompanying consolidated Minzncial statemesnts include the nccounts of Archon and it wholly-owned subsidiares,
Amaunis representing the Company's investment in bzss than majority-nwned compaaies in which a signi Ficant equity
ownership interest is kel are sccounted foron the equity method, All significant intercompany sccounts and transactions have
Leen climinated in consolidation.

tae of Lstimares

The prepanstion of financial statements in conformity with sccounting principles penerally accepted in the United States
requires mansgement w make estimates that affect the reponted amounts. Actua! results may differ from cstiemates,

Cash Eynivalents

Investments which mature within 90 days from the date of purchase are weated as cash equivalents. These invesiments are
sted at cost which approximates thelr markel valus,

svesrent in Murker Qrities

Dlebt secutitics avoilable-Tor-sale are siated at market vaiue with unreatized gains or losses deiermined by the specific
idenification method and reporied as & component ol accumuiated other comprehensive incarme, Debt seeurities available.
for-sale at September 30, 2007 and 2006 include investments (n comemie bonds, :

Equity sceurities available-for-saie are reported ot Tair value with unrealized gains or losses reporied 08 3 comporient of
accumulated other comprehensive income. Realized nnd unrealized gains und fosses erc determined by the specific ideniification
muthod. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, equity securities available-for-sale included invesiments in commaon and preferred
slocks.

KX
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Inctuded in “Other income” with the consalideted statements of operations are sporoximately $174,000, 3(8,000) and
511,000 of realized gainsf{losses) Jor the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The Company
recorded approximately 52,198,000, £561,000 and $371,000 of other comprehensive gain associated with unrealized gaing or
lasses on these securities during the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

The following is a summary of avaifable-for-sale marketable securities as of September 30, 2607 and 2006:

007
Unroshined Lurendized Market ur
Cust Galn 1.axey Faly Value
Debt seecurities $ 549875 3§ 1,250 $172.886 31,123,330
Enquity secunties 3287403 3,665.453 43,184 6164602
Tot! 53,837,378 £3,666703 Z2E6070 $7,288011
J0uk
tnreatlaed Unreatized Maerket or
Loyt {ratn Lasgses Falr Yalue
Dbt securilics § OT45000 S 6 S$i37,1B2 % #0788
Equity securities 2300056 3,138,424 61,073 5,403,407
Total $3,051,056 §53,158424 5193255 56011225

Inyeyripries
Food, beverage, gift shop and other invenloties are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market,

Prane o Eouinmtent

Property and equipment is sinted pt £ost less sceumulated deprecintion and amortization. Cests of maintenance and repaire
of property and equipment are expensed a5 incutred, Depreciated and amiostization are pravided over the estimated vseful lives
of the assets, whish for leaschold improvements is limited to the remaining temy ol the feases. See Nowe 9

The Company periodicaily assesses the recoverability of property nnd equipment and evaluates such assets for impainmoent
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an assot may not be reepverable, Asscl
impairment is determined to exist if estimated future cash fows, undiscounted and wilhouwt interest charges, are less dan the
enstying amount in necordance with Suusment of Finaneial Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No, 144, Accounting far the
Impairment or Dispasal of Long-Lived Assets,

Depreciation and nmodization are computed by the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated usefil lives or
kease terms. The length of depreciotion ard wmortization periods for buildings and improvements s seven 10 40 years and for
machinery and cquipment thiee 16 15 yeary,

Debr fssuguce Cosy

Loan issusnce costs incurred in conrection with finencing the acquisition af investment properiy are included in other assets in
the accompanying consclidated batance sheets and are being amornzed over the remaining lesn peried on the steniphi-fine
method which approxirastes the effective interest method.

34
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Deferred Bevenug from Sele and Extenslon of Logd Purcluse i

The daferred revenue from sale and extension of land purchase option at September 30, 2007 and 2006 include nanrefundable
payments recsived {rom a third party in connection with the sale end exiension of on option to purchase a parcel of land on the
Las Vegas Strip owned by the Company. See Note 4, Revenue from the aption tmnsactions are deferred and are 10 be recognized
wpon closing of title relative o the retated land sale or cxpiration of the option. '

Slor Club Linkifity

The Pioneer has a program called the “Bounty Hunter Rowund-Up Club” (the *Club™} established o encourage repeat
business from frequent and active slot and table game customers. A member of the Club sccumulates points in the member's
account for play on slot machines and table games that can be redecmed for cash, free gifis, ford nnd beverages and additional
poinis redesmable {or frec play. Included in sccrued expenses is opproximately $1.4 miflion at Septembier 30, 2007 andd 2006, for
estimated redemption vabue of paints secumulated by palrons.

Revenne Becognition

Casine revenus is recorded ag ganting wing less lasses, Hotel, food and beverage, entertainment and other operating
revenues are recogrized as services are performed, Casine revenues are recognized net of certain sules incentives in secordance
with Emarging Issues Task Foree (EITF) lasue 019 Acounating for Consideratin Given by a Yendor to a Customer {Incltding o
Reseller of the Yendars Products) (EITF 01.9) . Accordingly, cush incentives to customers for gambling, and the cash value of
points and coupons samed by the slot club members lotaling $518,280, $547,407 and 3441,862 for the years ended
Septomber 30, 2607, 2006 and 20085, respectively, have been recognized ad a direct ceduction of casitn revenus,

Advance deposits on rooms, if any, s reeorded as deferred rovenue untif services are provided to the customer, Gross
revenues include the retait value of rosm, food, bevernge nnd other services provided gratuitously 1o customers, which are
deducted o arvive at net revenue, The estismated cost of providing these promotional services has been reporied in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations s an expense, The table below summarizes the depantments’ costs of such
services {doflars in thousands):

017 2006 1005
Food and beverage $4,330 34,531 24,061
Hotel 459 434 409
Ciler 203 201 195
Tutal $5.032  §5.168 34,665
38
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Tatile of Cantents

Rental revenue From investment properties is recogiized 85 earmed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, When
rental payments received exceed rents eamned and recognized, the difference is recorded as other liabilities, and conversely, when
rents carncd and recognized exceed rental payments received, the difference is recorded a4 other assets, Sce Nole 8

fucom I

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes {“5FAS 1057}, In necordance
with 8FAS 109, deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of (i) temporary differences between the cantying amounts of 2ssets
snd linbilities for Ainancial reporting purposes, and (ii) operating loss and tax eredit camyforwands.

Aecounting fur Seoek-Bosed Compensating

On Qetober 1, 2005, the Company adopied the fair valuc recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, Share-Based Payment.
Prior to October 1, 2005, it accounted for share-based payments under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Steck Insued to Enployees (“APD 25%), and related [nterprotations, as permitted by SFAS 123,
Accounting for Stock-Bused Compensation. In accordance with APB 25, no compensation cost was required 10 be recognized for
options granted that hd an exercise prive equol to the market vajue of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the madified-prospective-transition method, Ascardingly, results for the prior
periods have not been restated, These was no ret impact on the Company's net toss for the year ended September 30, 2088, 0
result of adepting the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 23R,

For options granted afier October 1, 2005, and vained in sccordance with SFAS 123I, the Company uses the struight-line
method for expense aitnbugion, and B will alse estimate forfeitures and only recognize cxpense for these shares expected to vest,

36
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The follawing wble ilustrates the ofect on net 1oss and loss per share for the year eouded September 30, 2005, as if the
Company had applied the foir value recognition provisions of SFAS 1 23R, dcvounting for Stock-Based Compensarion, to
siock-based employee compensation {in thousands excopt for per shure amounts):

Net foss applicable to common shares Be42l)
Add: Compensation cost recorded on the consolidated sintements of operations, net of related tux effects 2,554
Deduet: Towak siock-bused employee compensation cxpense determined under fiér valug based method
for al awatds, net of relnted tax effects (2,383

Pro forma net loss nppiicable o cotmmon shares $(6,232)
Loss per commaon share:

As reporied $ {1.03)

Pro forma § {LU3)

The assumptions used in estinwating the fair value of each option grant on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing mode! for options gramted in 2007 and 2006 ard in the pro forma cafculntions in the foregaing table for 2005 {dollurs in
thousands, exgept per share data) are as follows;

oeT 086 i
Weighied gverage nssumpiions:
Expented stock price velatility NiA 420545 BO.0%
Rigk-free interest mic N/A B.B2%4 5.0%
Expecied option lives (in years) NIA 3 2
Expeered dividend yiaid NiA N/A NA
Lstimated fair value of options, net of tax effect Nia 5102 51,399
Estmated fair value of options per share, net ol tax effect NiA 5017 $ 0322

The Riuck-Sehoies-Merion option valuation model requires the inpsst of Bighly subjective sssumptions, insluding the
cxpected life of the stock-bused award aud stozk price volatility. The assumptions listed above represent management’s best
estimates, but Usese essimates involbve inherent cacertainties and (he application of munagement judgment. As a result, if other
assumpticons had been used, owr recorded and pro forma stock-based compensation expense could have been mateally differcat
from that depicted sbove. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rte and only recognize expense for
those shares expected 1o vest. If our actual forfeiture rate is materally different from our estimate, the share-bused compensation
expense cotld be materially differsnt,

Legal sarse (gt

The Company does not accrue for estimated futsre legal and related defense costs, iCany, w be incurred in connection with
outstanding or tireatened litigation and other disputed matiers but rather, records such us period costs when the services are
rendered.

3
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Dilier Income

Other income consists primarily of investment income ingluding reatized gains {losscs) from the sale of marketsbic
securitiss and equity in net incoms (loss) of unconsolidated entities earried on the eguity method of accounting. See Mote 6.

steatee (Lors)t Per Share

The Company presents its per share results in sccordance with 8FAS No. 828, Earnings Per Share ("SFAS 128"}, 5FAS
E2B requires the presenintion of basic net loss per share and diluted net loss per share. Basic per share smounts are computed by
dividing net loss by average sharcs cutstanding during the pened, while diluted per shars amounts reflect the impact of
addisiona! dilution for all potenidatly dilutive securitics, such 2y stock options.

Dilutive stock options of approximately 704,560, 830,000 and 830,000, respectively were not included in the computation
of diluted net loss per share for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 since the Company incurred a net loss
during those periods and the effect would be antidilutive,

The Conpany calied for the redemption of all outstanding shares of its Exchangeabls Redeemable Preferred Steck on and
as of August 31, 2007, at a redempion price of $5.241 per share, which sum included comed and unpald dividends 1o the date of
redempion. Frons and after August 31, 2007, a!) shares of the Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock ceased 1o be
owstanding and 10 e dividends, As of the date of the preparation of thise financini stitements, the holders of 4,238,159 shares
of the Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock have surrenderced their shaces and recgived payment of the redemprion price,

Restatement of 2008 Fingneinf Statemenis

The batance sheet snd statement of cash (tows gs of rad for the year ended September 30, 2006, have been restated 1o
carreet errors in the elassification of $5.8 million relaled te a sale and exiension of a land purchase option from current 1o
roncurrent Habilities, since it did oot meet the definition of current Habilities contained in FASB Currnn Texy, Seation BOS,
“Balance Sheet Classification: Currcnt Asseis and Current Lisbilities,” and from the determination of ensh flows from eperating
uctivities o investing activities. As a resulf of the change in the rechssification the statement of cash flows, cash flows from
pperating activities wen) fram 58,895,257 10 §3,143,257 and crsh flows from investing activities went from 81,121,995 10
56,871,995,
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE NET
Accounts receivable at Scptember 30, 2007 nnd 2006 consisted of the fellowing:

Hil ]

Casina and hotel § 147,878 5 {77,849

Rensal properties 850,018 030,018
Subtotal 1,097,897 1,127,867

Less; sllowsnes Tor doubliu] accounts {43,404} {31.534)
Twdal $1,054,493 $1,086,133

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended September 30, 2007, 20608, and 2003 were us follows:

07 MG Wwis
Baukance, bepinning of year 531,534 £ 76,843 § 195,875
Provision 14,060 {17,701} 36,816
Accounts written-off {2,190} {37,638} {155,898}

Batance, end of year 343,404 $31,534 3 75883

4, PROPERTY HELD FOHR SALE

The Company owss, through its whally owned subsidiary Sahara Los Vegas Com, (“SLYCT), an approximately 27-gore
parcel of real propesty on the Las Vegas Strip (he “Property™), 1n conncction with the acquisition of the property, the Company
assumied an operating fease under which s water theme pack operated. The fease was terrninated Sepiamber 30, 004, The
Cormpany presently jeases the property to two difTerent lessees for an aggregaie amount of $364,000 per menih, Botls beases may
be terminated with sixty days written notice in the evens the property is sold 1o a third panty.

O Jume 24, 2008, SLVC, o Nevsds corporation and subsidiary of Archon Corporation entered into an Option Agreement
{ihe "Agreement™) between SLVC and LVTLLC, o Delaware timited iinbility company ("LVTL™), Pursuant to the Agreement,
SLVC granted to LVTT an option (the “Option™) 1o purchase the Propenty or, sliernatively, SLVC's mzrabership interest ina
limited kiabitity company (“LVT LLE™) that may be fonmed and into which the Property would be contributed,

The initial purchase price to be paid by LVTH for purchase of the Propenty or the membership intorest in EVTLLC was
$450 million. LYTI paid an initial deposit of $5.0 miflian on June 27, 2086, The Agreement alsa provided for 2 second deposil
of $40.0 miliien due on or before September 22, 2006, and additionat monthly payments of approimately $2.2 million in each
month cammtencing on the E3% calendar month following the date the second deposit is paid unnil the closing of the exercise of
the Option. The 30-day due diligence period ended and LVTL did oot terminate the Agreement. Upon exercise of (he Option, the
initia] deposit and the second deposit will be credited ngainst tiie total purchase priee, The Agreement provides for cerizin
adjustments to the purchase price if certain easements are entered into with respect o the Property prior ta the closing. The
Option may be excrvised by LYTI at any time between the [ast day of the 1% calendar month and e Jast day of the 189
calendar month felfowing the date an which the sccond deposit is prid; provided that the option term may be extended by up to
30 days if SLVC does not give writien notice 1o LVTI of the option term expiration as required by the Agreement, The first and
sccond deposits pad any additional monthly payments paid to SLVC prior to termination of the Agreement will be retained by
SLVC upon termination of the Agreement without exercise of the oplion, exeept under certain circomsiances spee fied in the
Apreement.

MY
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Pursupat to & First Amendment of the Agreensent, LVTI clected 10 pay 1o the Company $750,080 to extend Hie date an
which the second depasit of $40.80 miflion was duze from September 22, 2006 to December 31, 2006, Pursuont ta 2 Secoad
Amendment, LVT! elecied to pay 1o the Company $1.2 million o funther extend the date on which the sceond deposit of $40.0
milinn was due from Decomber 31, 3096 to March 31, 2007, Pursuant to 8 Third and 2 Fourth Amendmient to the Agreement,
LVT1 clected to pay to the Company two additional payments in April 2007 totaling $500,000 to further extend the date on
which the seeond deposit was due from March 31, 2007 to May 31, 2007, LVT1 paid the 340.0 million second deposit on
May 23, 2007, Addilionably, e initial purchase price was increased from 5450 mitlion to 5475 millien, Pursusat to o Fifth
Amendment, thres months, to be exercised in the discrotion of LV, were added 1 the Option tenm, extending the end of the
Option term from March 31, 2008 ta June 30, 2008, LVTI will pay a fee of $2.9 miflion (“Carry Option Faymenis™) for each af
the three maonth cxtensions wilized, with 3 pramtion for sny partial month utitized. Al Carry Option Fayments and alt monthly
option extensian payments are nonrefundable and will sot be applied against the purchase price under the Agresment.

The noneelundable payment of $5.0 million and o nonrefundabls exiension (e of 750,000 were recorded as deferred
fevenue, i September 30, 2086, The Company received an additional nonrefundable extension fee of $1.2 million in Dacember
2006 which was recorded as deferred revenue ot March 31, 2007, The Company reccived additionat nonrefundable extension
fecs of 500,000 in April 2637 and the noarsfundable second deposit payment of $40.0 million on May 25, 2007, which
payments were recorded as deferred revenus at June 30, 2007, The Company received a Carry Option Payment of$2.3 milkion
in the quarter ended September 38, 2007, which was also recorded as deferred revenue,

The obligations of SLYC and LVT] 1o consummate the transactions contemplated by the Agreement are subject to the
satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions.

The Company hay guaranieed the obligations of SLVC under the Apreement.

5, REMTALPROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The property in Dorchester, Massachuseits includes several buildings used for commercial office space. The property is
ender a net lease through 2020 witk a single tenant, Under the lease, the tenant is responsible for substantially all obligations
related to the propenty, The property was scquirsd for approximately $82.4 million plus $0.5 million in debt issunnce costs, The
Company paid $5.6 millien in cash and assumed $77.3 million in not-receiirse debt associsted with the propenty, The Company
sliocated approximately $15.0 million of (ke purchase price 1o Jand rud the balance 1o building and improverments. The lozn
issue costs incurred 1o scquire the propenty recorded in other nasets in the accompraying Consolidated Balance Sheets ace being
amortized over the remaining foan period, Deferred rental revenuc at September 30, 2007 and 2006 in the amounts of $42.0
million and $45.0 million, respectively, is presented on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, See Note 7

The property in Guthersburg, Mazyland, is 2 building used for commercial office space. The propenty is under 5 net Jease
through 2014 with a singie tenant. Under the tease, the 1enant is responsthic Jor substantially all obd ipations rebated o the
property. The prapeny was acquired for $62.6 mitlion, plus debt isspance costs of $2.7 million. The Company paid 39.9 milkon
in cash and issucd $55.4 miltion in non-recaurse first mortgage indebledness. The Company allocated approximately $23.0
miblion of the purchase price o land, $3.0 million 1o mochinery and equipment and the balance 1o buitding snd improvements.
The sxpenses incured to acguire the property (approximately 32,7 miliion) are recorded in other assets in the secompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheots and are being amorized over the remaining loan period. Deferred rent ot September 30, 2006 in the
zmouat of $2.9 million is included in Qther assets on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. See Note 7
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6. OTHER ASSETS

Included in {Hher nssets at September 30, 2007 and 2006, sre snamonized loan issue costs and exeess rentit] income eamed
over amounts paid aggregating approxisately 86.8 million and $4.56 million, respectively.

Also, other assets at September 30, 2607 and 2006 include £8.1 miflion of a residentiat mortgage losn, representing o loan
ariginally to an unafTiliated third pany under s master loan agreement. The Josn was purchased by the Company for the prinvipal
amount, plus necnied interest. On August 31, 2007, she original lender signed an assigament of deed of trust to transfer
awnership of the mortgage contract ta Archon. The mortgage agreement bears intorest al the prime rate plus 2%, The original
lender is indirectly whotly-owned by the Company's President, Chief Exeeutive Officer and mujority stockholder, and & dircctor
of the Company, is alsa the president of the original fender,

Qther assets also included an unconsolidated investee of the Company, 2 50% owned LLC that has the following financial
profife as of Septembier 30, 2007 and 2006, (dotlars in thousands);

Spptembor M,
ez N
Curmrent nssels SI187 §$¥R)
Total assets B5 973
Current Habilities 13} 115
Totat linbifities 148 282
Total equity BOW €91

Summarized eperating information about tiis unconsolidated investee for the Miscal years ended September 30, 2007 und
2006 {doblurs in thousands) follows:

2T 16
Revenuces 1,743 51,978
Pretax income 213 398

This entity is indebied to o bunk in the amount of 30,1 mittion and £0.2 millton ps of September 30, 2007 and 2005
suspeetively. The debt is secured by 3 doed of tnust aad is guarsateed by the Company.

7. DEBY
Loans Payvable

As of September 30, 2007, the Company’s losns payable were comprised primarily of the following obligations: & loan
payable o a bank with 2 balanee ol upproxinmtely §9.8 million, secured by tand held for development on the Strip, monthly
payments of approximately $98,000, including interest of prime plus 1% (8.25% ot Seprembier 30, 2007) with a bailoon payment
of approximately $9.7 million in Jonuary 2008 and various loans with a total batinee of $1.2 million coliuteralized by stot and

other cquipment with irterest soles up to 10.0%, currery tonthly principal payments of approsimately 360,000 with maturities
thru September 2009,

The Company's foan with a balance of approximately $9.8 million includes o financial covenant which requires the
Company o maintsin conain levels of earings before interest, 1axes, depreciation and smortization withowt including financial
resulls refaled to the Company’s investment propenties in Massachusetts and Maryland, At Septernber 30, 2607, the Company
wis ot in compliance with this covenant,
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Non-Reconurse Dehe Obligutlons,

The Company assumed $77.3 million of indebtedness, consisting of approximately $75.1 million of first mortgage
indebtedness, $43.9 million with an interest rate of 10,28 and $31.2 million with an interest rate of 12.18% and 32.1 million of
indebiedness under of the Intemal Revenoe Code of 1986, as smended, {the “Code™) Section 467 {*Section 4877), tn connection
with its acquisition on Margh 2, 2001 of the commereia) office building located in Dorchester, Massachusetis, The building is
urder 1 niet fease throuph June 2020 requiring that the lease payments be applied to the cutstanding indebtedness, The first
orgape indebledness is non-recourse and matures in June 2620 1o coincide with the end of the lense term.

connection with its acquisition of 3 commercial office building focated in Gaithersburg, Maryland, The building is under lcase
through Aprf 2014, The monthly lease payments are applied against the outstanding indebtedness. Monthly principat and
interest pymeits amonize the debl te approximately $22.3 million by the end of the lease in Aprif 2014, The Company

anticipates that the future tenant payments related (o the net leases will be sufficient o fund required payments undar the first
morignge noles and Section 467 debt, See Nole 5

The Company issued ppproximately $55.4 mitlion of {irst mortgage debt with a 7.01%% interest rate per antum in

The scheduled mulurities of long lerm debt as of Seplember 30, 2007 are as follows:

2007
2008 $11,434,101
09 2,880,112
010 3,154,888
2041 3,572,478
2042 3,986,926
Thereafier - 60,753,806
Tt TIE
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B. LEASES
All non-cancelable leases have been classified as opernting feases. Under most leasing armangemeats, the Company pays the
taxes, insprance and the apeating expenses related 1o the laased propeny.

At September 38, 2007 the Company had an opersting lease for real property that expires in 2078 and operating leases for
corpormte offices, The Company had no significent property and equipment under capiud feases t September 36, 2007,

Future mininsum Jease payments as of September 30, 2007 are os fullows:

2047

2008 ¥ 432,257
2009 402,557
2019 372857
0N 372,857
2012 172,857
Thereafter ﬁ.ﬁag,ﬁsz

Total $26,593,837

Rent expenae was $439,021, 313,435 and 5620,470 on ol operating leases for the vears ended September 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, mspestively.
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The Company called all cutstanding shares of its Exchengeable Redeemable Preferred Stock for mdemption on and as of
August 31, 2007, af a redemption price of $53.241 per share, whick sum included acereed and unpaid dividends 1o the date of
redemption. From and afler August 31, 2007, all shares of the Exchangeable Redeemable Profermed Stock veased to be
outstanding and to ocorue dividends, As of January 14, 2008, the holders oF 4,234,872 shares of the Exchangeable Redecmable
Preferred Stock have sumrendered their shares and received payment of the redemption price.

On August 27, 2047, the following institstional investors: D, E, Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L.L.C., 1.C Capita! Magter Fund,
Lid, LC Capital/Capital Z SPV, LP, Magten Asset Management Com, Mercury Real Estaiz Securitics Fund LP, Mercury Real
Estnte Securities Ofshore Fund Limited, Black Horse Capital LB, Black Horse Capital (QP) L, Black Horse Capital Offshore
Lid, snd Pininfield Special Sitnations Master Fund Limited filed it setion apainst the registrant in the United States Disidet
Court for The District of Nevada entitled D.E. Show Laminar Perilolios, LLC; et 4], v, Awchon Corportion, 2:07-CV-01146-
PMP-LRL (1. Nev.). The Complaint was subsequently amended ta add an additional party plaintiff (collettively, the "Laminar
Plaentiffs™). The Amended Complainy: (i) seeks  finding by the Court that the Company has breached its obligations under the
Campany's Centifleme of Designation of the Prefemed Stock, dated September 30, 1993 (the “Certificate™), and awanding the
Laminar Maintiffs full compensation of any oad afl availahle damages suffered by the Laminar PlainifTs 55 2 result of the
Cempany's breach of the Centifieate; (if) seeks 3 Anding by the Count that the Company's issuanee of Rs redemption notice with
ant lnproper redemption price is an anticipatory breach of a materiad term of the Centificate end awarding the Laminzr Plaintifis
full compensation of any and all avaiiable damages suffered as o result of the Company's anlicipatory breach of the Certificate;
(iii secks a dectaration by the Court that the dividends be properly caleutated and compounded per the terms of she Certificate in
an amount no less than $7,235,351 op through and including the date of final judgmens; {iv) seeks on order from the Court
calting for the Company lo reimburse the Laminar Plaintiffs' attomeys’ foes, expenses and tosty incurred in enforeing the their
rights; and (v) seeks such other and further reliel as the Count may decm sppeopriate. In November 2007, and subsequent to the
end of the Company's fiscal yesr ended September 30, 2007, the Laminar PlaintifTs filed a motion for partia) summary judgment
on Hability. The Company responded, and 1he parties will swait a ruling from the Cournt following the Plaintift™s filing of its
reply hoel.

Also subsequent to the end of the Company’s fiscal year, two othier former hiolders of the Exchangeabe Redeemable
Preferred Stack fiked Complats in the United States Brisirict Count, District of Nevada, entitled Raingre v, Arshon Corporation,
Diznigtal Nevids Case Mo, 2:07-0v-81553 and Lecward Capltal, LF v Avchon Corporativa, Bistrict of Nevada Case Na,
2:08-ev-10007, both alieping essentially the same clntm s the fiest Complaint. 16 the plaintifls are camest, the edemplion price
as of Aupust 31, 2007 should have been $8.59 per sharc and not $5.241 per share as caleulated by the Company which, if
apphicd to all the then cutstanding chares of Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock, including the shares held by the
Company's officers and directors, would increase the redemplion price in excess of 3.2 million.

H, STOCK OPTION PLAN

Fhe Compeny's Stock Option Plan provided for the grnl of up ia 1.2 million shares of its comman stock 1o key employses.
The Stock Option Plon provided for botl incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options. Stock option prants bad
gensrally vested over o threesyear period from the employee's bire date. The Stock Option Pian ceased grinting options as of
September 30, 2003 ay the plac had expired. However, in fuly 2008, the Siock Option Plan wis reinstated for an additional
10-year period. During fiscrl 2008, there were 300,000 fudly vested stock options granted under the Siock Option Plan. No
cptions were granied during the fiscal years 2007 and 2006. As of September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were
approximately 704560, 830,000 and 830,000 optons, respectively, outstanding and exercisable uader the Stock Option Plan.
Guring fiscn] years 2007, 2006 and 1008, 45,000, 436,350 and 2,000 options, respectively, were exercised,
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The outstanding options have expiration dates through 2015 and have an averape remaining life of approximately 3.4 years,
The average exercise price of the outstanding options al September 30, 2007 is epproximately 59.30.

In December 1995, the Company adopted the 1995 Non-Empioyee Director Siock Option Plan (the “Non-Employee
Dircetor Plan™) that provided for the grant of up to 160,000 shares of its common stack o the dircctors. Undder the
Non-Employee Director Plan, directors were sutomaticatly granted sn option to purchase 12,500 shares of the common stock ot
ai exereiss prics equal 1o the market value of such shares on the date of such election ta the board, Stock option grants vested
immediately, The Non-Employes Director Plan ceasedd granting options on March 21, 2002, As of Sepiember 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005, there were 12,500, 23,000 and 25,000 options, respectively, outstanding and exercisable under this plan, During fiscat
yenrs 2007 amd 2005, 12,500 options were exercised, respectively. During fiseal year 2006 no options were graned or exercised.
The outstanding options have sn expiration date through 2007 and have an average remaining [ife of ess than a year. The
pverape exercise price of the cutstanding options at September 30, 2007 is spproximarely §1.00,

$F11 Inc., SLVC and PHI (collectively, the “Subsidinries™), have adopied subsidiary stock option plans {the “Subsidiary
Planss™), The Subsidiary Plans provide for the grnt of options by each of the Subsidiaries with respect (0 an aggregale of p to
1024 of the outstanding shares of such Subsidiary’s Commen Stock to employees, son-empioyee direeiors, consultants or
afTitistes of the Company or the Subsidiaries, The pumpose of the Subsidiary Plans is te enable the Subsidianics snd the Company
to aditaet, retain aad motivate their employees, non-employes directors, consultants and affitiates by providing for orincreasing
the proprictary interest of such persons in the Subsidiaries, As of September 30, 2007, no options had been grmed under any of
the Subsidiary Pians.

The compensation commitee approved an exiension of ather previously issued stock options which otherwise would have
expired. A charge of approximately $1.0 million relaled to this extension of stock aptions was reearded, ne of laxes,

There were no unvesied shure-based payments as of October 1, 2005 and ro share-based payments have been pranted
subsequent to October 1, 2005, However, effective in March snd April 2006, centain siock eptions were extended for an
additional perind of exercise and the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of approximately 31,4 milliag
during the year ended September 36, 2006,
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‘The foliowing table summarizes stock option activity during fiscal 2007 under all plans:

Wilehtad

Nuguher Weighnud- Average Apperyate

of Averaps Hemalaing {oirhls

Shares Eavrchie Priee Cantroctoal Vadue

i) fter Share Term ismig'sy
Options outsianding ot September 30, 2006: 330 % 8.05 45 years 524,656
Granied 1] NiA WA NiA
Excreised 45 % 150 0 yesrs N/A
Canceled 8 8 150 0 years N/A
Options outstanding st September 30, 2007: mwms % 9.30 3Ayears 510,829
Options exereisable ot Seplember 30, 2007: 05 5 830 34 yenrs 310819

As of September 30, 2007, there was no unrecogrized compensation cost related 1o unvested stock oplions. There were no
unvested shares of Seplember 30, 2007,
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11, FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The provisien (benefit) for income texes sttnbutable ta pre-tax income {loss) consisted off

piLik] 1686 Hins

(doklars {n thousnads)
Current £ 0 8 0 8 G
Deferred 3 @0 (2590
Total provision {benefit} $327  H4iD)  §{2,5%4)

The provigion (benefit) for ihcome taxes atiribulable 1o pre-tax income {foss) differs from the amount computed at the
federal income tax statgiory mie as o result of the following;

2007 05 45
{daltars 1 touasndy)
Amount at statulory fale $317  S{1,3t8)  ${2,594)
Stock options 0 603 &
Tax credits ] 199 1]
Clhar 10 106 £
Totai $327  § (410) 5&,594)
The companents of the met deferred tax lability consisted of the follewing:
08 1006

{eheltars in tousanids)
Beferred inx linbihtics:

Prepaid expenscs S 24 F 304
Other property and equipment, nel 218,627 26275
Land 2,236 2,238
Unreatized goins 2072 1,035
Delerred 1ax linbilities 32,559 32,851
Deferred tim aassts:
Net operating boss carryforwand 3.0 4,021
Allowanee for uncolieetible accounts and contracts reseivable T - 51
Ciher 24 53a
Stock option 0 4896
Dieferved payroly 1173 169
Tax eredits andd charitable contribution carmyover 326 326
Belerred tax assots 31,805 3,805
Net deferred tax (linbility) $28,754)  §(27,246)
A1 Sepiember 30, 2007 the Company had a net operating foss carryforward for regular income tux purposes of
approximately $60.0 million, which will fully expire by the year 2025 and begins expiring in 2010, AMT eredits of
47
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apuroximately $268,000 are carmied forward indefinitely. Charitable comtributions of approximately $166,000 will filly expire in
2009 and begin expiring in 2007, Included in this amount is epproximately $33.0 mitlion for which the Company bes not taken
beaefit in its Ananciak statemnents wtil an uncerainty refated o the tax deduction is resojved,

The Company continues ko record tax benefits for its txable lusses as it belicves that it is more Likely than not that (ax
provisions from future taxable income from aperations or from the sale of assets will be sufficient 1o offset the tax benedis
currentiy reconded.

12, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company cstimates the fair value of its unredeemed preferred stock (© be approximately 30.4 million ai Septernber 30,
2007 based upon the redemption price of §3.241 per share, The Company estimaies that its debt and o1] other financial
snstruments have a fair value that approximates their recarded value, except Tor its non-rocourse debt associated with an
invesiment property owned in Massachusens. The debt, which bears interest at 12,1 8% and matures in 2020, kas an estimated
fair veluc of approximately S6 million greater thon ils carying cost at September 30, 2007 of approximately $31.2 milkion. The
interest mie used to discount the notes and estimate the fair value wos 795, the same interest rate that is associated with similar
nog-recourse debit of the Company,

13. BENEFITILANS

The Company has a savings plan {the “Savings Plan") qualified under Section 401(k) of the Cede. The Flan covers
substantially all employees, including the Campany's executive officers. Employee contributions (o the Plan are discretivnary.
‘The Plan sHows cligible employees to contribute, on & pre-tax hasis, up to 635 of their gross salary to the plan; the Company
miatches 25% of such employee contributions made. Employees may also contribute, on a pre-inx basis, up to an additienal 9%
of their gross salary, and, on n past-tax basis, up 1o an additional 10% of Lheir salasy. Such centyibutions are not matched by the
Compuny. The Company’s naiching contributions paid in 2007, 1006 and 2003 wers £59,000, $55,000 and 349,008,
respeckively.

YLATED PARTIE

The Company has eatered into o Patent Rights and Royshy Agreement with the brother of the Company's Chairman of the
Boart ("Chairman”} and CEQ with respect to certain guming technology for which he had been issued a patent. The Company
ngreed to pay coriain yoyalty paymends with respect o the technology incorporated into gaming devices placed in operatior, as
well ns costs related to maintain the patent. The patentholder granted the Company an exclusive five-year license that expired in
Ianuary 2007 in the United States with respeet to the techsialagy, but which automatically renswed wnti} 2000 and will renew for
an ndditional two-year tenm unless the Company terminates the sgreement. The Company also has an understanding with the
petenihiolder that it with poy for the costs of commereial development of the technology. For the three vears ended September 30,
2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had expended approximately $0.4 million for commervial development of (ke lechnoiopy, of
whicl 530,000 wes cxpensed in fiscal 2086 and $50,900 in fiscol 2003, Mo additional costs had been expended during the liscal
year ended Sepiember 30, 2007, No royaltics weee paid 1o the pateatholder dunng the perieds presented,

Prior to fiscal 2004, the Company operated Deke's casino (“Duke's”} in Sparks, Nevada, and invested $300,000 in Dule's
pod losned Duke's approxinately 51 4 million, One of Duka's pariners is the son of the Company’s Chairman and CEQ, in
December 2003, Duke's closed its casing operations, snd the Company wrote-ofT {ts investment in and receivable from Duke's
nct of b previously recorded 100% allowanee of approximately $1.5 million. The Company made the determminetion at the time
that the collaterad value securing the receivable was deemed insignificant subsequent to the closure of the casino,

During &n approximate J-year period ended June 30, 2006, the Company expended approsimately S0.8 million in begal fees
in beho!f of Duke's in its Htigation against a tontractor, although the Company was not a party to the litigution. Duke's had
sgreed 10 reimburse the Company For tegal Tees and other amounts ewed the Company depending on potential amouts
recovered, i any, from the litigation. Through September 30, 2007, the Company reeeived appraximately $1.7 million, of which
$0.8 million has been credited against legal cxpense and the balance has been included {n pperating income in the fiseal 2008
consolidated statcaent of operatiors. The Company has negotiated with Dukes and oblained an assignmens of all future
payments under the judgment and setilemnent with the general contractor for the project. The genem) contraesor hos been notified
of the assignment and will be making afl fisture payments due under the settiement with Diuskes 1o the Company divectly
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the Casina Project. The Generad Contmetor has been notificd of the assignment and will be making al1 futere payments due
under the seitlemen with Dukes-Sparks, LLC 10 the Company direetly secording to the terms of the setilement agreement.

See Wotc 6 for information regarding iransactions between the Company snd } & 1 Mongage.

§5. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Some holders of 1he Company's Exchangeable Redeemabic Preferred Stock have filed various complaints against the
Campany asseting that the acerued snd unpaid dividend portion of the redemption price had been incomectly caleulated and the
total redemption price should have been as much as $15.2 milkion greater than the $23.1 million set aside by the Company and
ase seeking a declaratory judgment and an award of damages, 1f the phaintffs are corect, the redemption price as of August 3,
1007, would have boen 58,69 per share and not $5,24) per share ns caloulated by the Company, The Company will continue to
vigorousty defend these Inwsults and has both procedural and substantive delenses.

In zddition, the Company is suhiect to various lawsuits relating 1o routine matters incidental 1o {ts business, Althouph
unabie 10 estimate the minimum costs, i¥any, limately to be incured in sueh matters, manegement does rat believe thas the
mscome of such litigation, in the aggrepate, witl have a matenal adverse effeet on the Company,

16. PISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

f October 2006, the Company sold real estate with o net book value of $0.3 milkion for £1.8 millian. A disposal gain of
$0.9 mithon, net of taves of $0.3 mittion, un the sale was recarded as discontinued operations, Operations of the discontinued
companen lor nl periods presented contais no revenues and only imuntateriat expenses that are equal 1o net operatiog cash
outflows. Accordingly, they are included in continuing opertions for all periods in the accompanying consclidated statements of
operations and cash flows.
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17, SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS INFORY IATION
Supplemenial statement of cash flows information for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 consisted of:

a7 2006 2005
{dcitary In (hogszmls)

Opeenting netivities:
Cash paid dusing the year for interest $8.093  3B386 511,128

Investing end finnncing non-cash netivities:
Acquisition of machinery and equipment financed with proceeds of long-temm
debst 5 06 3 28 % ]

18, SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company's sperations are in the hotelicasing industry and investment properties. The Compuny’s hotelicasino
operations ore condueied ot the Ploneer in Laughlin, Nevada. As discussed above, the Company owns investment {rental)
propenties in Massachuseits and Maryland, which were acquired in March 2001, “Citlter and Eliminations” below includes
financia! information Tor the Company's corporate operations, adjusted to reflect eliminations upoen consolidation,
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Segment information for the years eoded September 38, 2007, 2006 and 2003 consisted of:

w07 3086 005
{dletiars in thausands)

Fluneer figtel:
Met operating revenues 5 30,037 F 30,585 § 39,697
Operating loss {1,5)8) (46) (838}
Bepreciation and mnanizalion 3,034 2200 2477
Interest expense 1,292 1,439 1,25t
Interest and other income 12 12 11
Nzt lass before income taxes £2,799) (LAT7Y) {2,119}
Capital expenditures 263 462 179
[dentifinble nssets (3 38,937 36,100 31,380

iny y iy
Nei operajing revenues § 12,402 § 12,402 5 12,402
Operating income 9592 9,130 330
Depreciation and amontization 2410 3,11 3,172
Interest expense 1348 1,494 9847
interest and egher income 4 2 1
et income (foss) before income taxey 2,648 1,738 {666)
Capital expenditures & 0 1] a
Identfiable asses 0 130,386 132,841 136,063

Gther mut EHininptinas:
Net operating ravenues § 2148 0§ 1,767 % 1.5B%
Opermting fods {1,586) {3,340 {6,106}
Depreeiation and amortization Ho 130 186
Imcrest expense {183) {18 {129}
Inlerest and other income 1,027 23t 1,256
Net income (loss) before income taxes {375) (4,011} (4,721}
Cupital expenditiyes 278 11I; I80
Identifinble assets (8 60,658 35,039 32,183

Total:
Wet operating revennes 545179 5 45,154 § 43,688
Operating income 588 4,844 2283
Deprecintion and amonization 4,551 5,502 5,835
lierest expenst 8,457 8,855 P38
Interest and uther income 1,043 245 1,268
Nt incume {loss) before income taxes (326} (3,768} {7,5048)
Cuapital expenditures & 541 412 458
Identifiable ausels 4 215,082 198,050 199,638

U |dentifisbie assets represent total assels less elimination for infercompany tems,
4 Includes acgolsition of capial assets through non-cash seivitics.
5
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19. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

il e
{ehublers b dhuvansds,
eacepl et thare apounis)

Revenues!
First Quarter § 082 5 10439
Second Quarner j1,864 12,449
Third Quaner 11,132 11,126
Pounh Quarter 11,501 11,040
Tetal P 45179 5 43,134
Ogersting Incomie:
First Quarier $ 288" & 1285
Second Quurnter 2,169 2875
Third Quaner 1,368 434
Founth Cuarier 47 150
Taeal $ 6888 § 4,844
Met Ineome (loss):
First Quarter 5 554 & {330)
Second Quaner 73 483
Third Quarter {272) (1,152}
Fourth Quarter 353 {2,156}
Towl 5 607  § (3,356)
Net incotne {fois} npplcable te common shares;
First Quaner § 176 5 (8CH)
Second Quanter {306} 104
Thind Quarter {650} (1,529
Fourth Quarier t (2.534)
Total $ (77 § (4,867}
Net tncome {loss) per commun shdre:
First Quarter § om & (015
Serond Quarer {0.05) 002
Third Quarter {0.10} {3.25)
Fourth Quarter {LGH) {0.40}
Total T My 5 (078

Qperating income (foss} amounts have been adjusied 1o reflect 2 reclassifiention of amertization of loan issue costs from
deprecistion and amontization 1o imterest expense foc 2007 and 2006,
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACC TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FT
DISCLOSLURE

Nosne.

Htem 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluotion af Diselosyre Contridy gad Procedures

We maintin disclosure controls and procedures thas are designed to ensure that information required 1o be disclosed in our
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's niles and
forms, and 1hat such information is accumuiaed and communicnted to our maanagement, including our Chicf Exesulive Qfficer
and Principal Accounting Officer, as sppropriate, (o ailow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In desipning and
cvaluatiag the disclosure controls and procedures, management reeofinizes that any controls and procedures, no matier how well
designed and operated, cen pravide only reasonable nssumnce of achicving the desired contrl oijectives, and management
necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evalueting the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As of the cnd of the period covered by this report, we carried out sn evafuation, under the supervision and wilh the
participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Accounting Oficer, of the effectiveness of the
design nnd operation of our disclosuce controls and procedures. Inchuded for consideration in the evaluation is the independent
gecountant's identification, in its required communications letter refating to the audit for the year ended Sepreraber 3¢, 2007, to
the Company’s Audit Commilics, of 0 material weakness in the Company’s ascounting resources tharing 2007 sequired for
recording financisl tmnsactions and preparing financial statements, Management has determined that the approprinte renedy
will be the retention of u third party consultant to sssist with these tasks going forward. Other than nated herein, our Chief
Exccutive Officer ang Pringipal Accounting Officer concluded that disclosure controls and procedures are effective,

Chaupes in futernal Coptrols

As part of our normal aperations, we updote our internal controls as necegsary 10 aceomnodate any modifications to our
business processes or accounting procedures, Except as noted above, thiere have not been any pther changes in our internal
controls of in other factors that materially afTected, or sre reasonably bkely to materially affeet these controls as of the end of the
penod covared by this repoit.
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PART 11}

Items 14, BIRECTO

Pirectors und Exevative Dfficers

The following is a list of the current exeentive officers and directors of the Company:

Nome Pusitien with the Company
Paul W. Lowden Chuirmar of the Boord, President and Chief Excentive Officer
Suzanne Lowden Director, Execuiive Vice President, Treasurer and Assistant Secretary
John W, Delaney 22 Dircotor
Howard E. Foster {4 Director
William 1. Raggio (1031 Direetor
Richard Tapgart 1 Director
Kevin Hanmbly Secrefary
Grant L. Siler Pringipa! Accounting Officer

1 Member of the Audit Commitiee of the Company,
% Member of the Compensation Committes of the Company,

The age, present position with the Company, and principal occupation during the past five years of gach director and
executive officer samed nbove is set forth beiow;

Puul W, Lwden

Iau! Lowden, 63, has served as President, Chairinan of the Board tnd Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its
formation in September 1993, Mr. Lowden hebd the same positiens with the Company's predecessor, Saham Resons, from 1982
tHirough Seplember 1993, Mr. Lowden is married to Suzanne Lowden, Mr. Lowden's term 252 director of the Company expires
i the annusi meeting of stockholders in 2008,

Suzonne Lowden

Suzanne Lowden, 55, has served a2 a dircctor and Executive Vice President of the Company singe its formation, nod had
served as a director of Sahars Resorts since 1987, Mrs. Lowden was clecled Vice President of Sahara Resony in July 1992. She
is also a founding board member of Commercial Bartk of Nevada, Mrs. Lowden served as a Nevada State Senator from
November 1992 throuph 1956, She worked for the CBS affiliate in Las Vegas Trom 1977 10 1987 as an anchorwoman, reporter,
writer and producer of television news, In December 2008, Mrs. Lowden was nonvinated to and comtinues to serve on the board
of Ihe Mussuler Dystrophy Assaciation as its Treasurer. Mrs, Lowden serves as chairmas of the Nevada Republican panty.

Mrs., Lowden is married to Paul W, Lowden. Mrs. Lowden's tertn 4s a direetor of the Company expires at the snnusl meeting of
slockhoklers in 20H0
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Jubys W Dofun

Joha W. Delaney, 39, has served s n direetor of the Company since January 1597, Mr, Delaney is currently president and
chiel executive officer of Centrat Bane Corporatian., a mortgape banking firmy, where ke has been employed since 1978,
Mr. Delaney's lecm as o director of the Company expires ot the annual meeting of stockholders fn 2009,

Hmvard £, Foxvier

Howard E. Foster, 63, has served us u specinl director of the Company electad by holders of the Company's Exchangasble,
Redeemable Prefered Stock sinee May 2000, Since 1980, Mr, Foster has been the President of Howard Foster andt Company, an
investment advisor fiom specializing in sl capitakization stocks, twmaround situations and finsocially distressed companics.
Prior to that ¥ime, Mr, Foster served o8 chief financial officer of two paublicly-held companies, Associsted Products and Bin-Rad
L.aboratories, and previously worked in the audit, tax and management consulting divisicns of Arthur Andersen & Co.

Mr. Foster has served on the boards of direciors of Bio-Rad Labaratories, Barrinper Technologies and Nevada Mational
Bancorporation, whers be served ns 9 director elected by preferred stockholders of Nevada National Bancorporation.

Mr. Foster's torm as & specini director of the Company expires st the annual meeting of stocikholders in 2009, or, if cartier, the
date on which sif dividend arresmges on the Exchangeable Redeemable Prefersed Stock have been paid, The Company ealled af]
oulstanding shares of its Exchangeable Redeemable Prefered Stock for redemption on and a5 of Asgust 31, 2007, st a
redemption price of $3.241 per share, which su included accrued and unpaid dividends o the doe of redemption. On
November 12, 2007, Mr. Foster was appoinied as @ director of the Company. Mr, Foster's term expires ot the annusl meeting of
stockholders in 2048,

The Board of Directors of the Company considers Mr. Foster (o be an independent financial expert within the meaning of
liem 4G (h} (2} of Regulation 5K, which generally means the Company believes Mr, Foster has o understanding of generslly
accepted accounting principles; the sbility to assess the general application of such principles; experience preparing, audiling,
analyzing, or evaluating fosncial statements similor 1o the Company’s; an urderstending of internal conirol aver financial
reporiing; and an understanding of audit commitiee functions.

William J. fuppio

William J. Raggio, 80, has served ns a director, Vieo President, Seeretary and Corperate Counsel of the Company since its
formation in September 1993 until May 1959, Mr, Raggio held the same position with Salara Resorts {from 1982 unil
Sepiember 1993, Mr, Raggio resigned his position oa the board of directors of the Company and certain of itz subsidisries in
May 1999 due {0 a potentinl confliet caused try bis position on the board of another gansing company, = position that Mr. Raggio
no longer holds, Mr. Ragpio was reappointed ta the board of directars of the Company in December 2000, Mr. Ruggio 5 8
streholder and member of the law firns Jones Vargas of Reno, Nevada, Since 1972 he hins been a Nevada Stare Senstor
Mr. Raggio wag a director of Sicrra Health Services, Ine., a Nevada corpomtion until May 2006, He cureently has been
designated director emeritus, Mr. Raggio’s tenn as & director of the Compuny expires ot the snnual meeting of stockhalders in
2008,

Hichard I, Tepgars

Hichard Taggan, 63, has served as o speciat director of the Company’s Exchangeable, Redeemable Profermed Stock since
October 2006, when he was appointed by the Board of Directors 10 fill a resignation. Over a twenty-six year career, Mr. Taggart
held various positfens, such as, senier exccutive vice presidem, subsidiary presideny, board and sxecutive commities member pt
Velley Bank eod its parens, Valley Capitat Corporation, where te retived from banking in 1992, He corrently serves on the boards
of Colonial Bank of Nevada, Boulder Dam Couneil of the Boy Scouts of America Executive Board and the Las Vegas Country
Club Mr. Taggan's term as a speciat direelor of the Company expires ut the annos! meeting of stockholders in 2010, or, if eariier,
the date on which il dividead errearages on the Exchangeable Redeemable Preforred Stock have bees paid, The Company
calied all sutstanding shures of its Exchangeabls Redecmable Prefermed Stock for redemption on 2od as of August
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31, 2007, st a redemption price of $5.241 per siare, which sum included acerued and unpaid dividends to the date of
redemption. On November 12, 2007, Mr. Taggan was appoinied as a director of the Company. Me. Taggart's tenm expires at the
annual meeting of stockholdens in 2010,

Kevin Hanrany

Kevin M., Hanmtty, Esq., 32, bos served as the Company's In-House Counsel sinee January 2004, Prior 10 joining the
Company, Mr. Hanrany worked a3 an associnte for the law firm of Kraviiz Schnitzer Stoane Johnson & Eberhardy, 3 Nevada
based defense finm primarity fosused on litigation and defense of claims brought against Nevada bused casing companies. Prior
to this pusition, Mr. Haoratty worked o1 the Clusk County Distriet Attomey’s office for approximately four years and worked in
the Clark County District Astorney's Office Appeilate Division,

Frane L. Sit

Girant L. Siter, 54, was appointed Principal Accounting Officer in July 2007, Prior to being appoinied as Pancipal
Accounting Officer, My, Siter served as Controller of the Pioneer Hotel & Gambling Hall from May 2001 10 Jely 2007. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Siler served a3 Contralier of the Flaminga Hillon Laughlin from August 1993 1o May 200 [

Scction 6(a) Benefictal Ownership Reporting Complisaee

Scetion 16(n} of the Securities Txchange Act of 1934, as mmended, requires the Company's executive officers and directors,
and persons who own more thaa 10% of o registered class of the Company’s cquily securities, 1o file repons of ownership and
changes in ownership with the Securilies and Exchange Commission. People who are subject to the yeporting obligations of
Seetian 16{a) are required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copics of ol forms they file pursuant to
Section ().

Based solely on our review of the copies of the reports we received and wnilten representations fiom the Company's

executive officers, directors snd bolders of 10%, of the common stock, the Company believes that, during fiscal year 2006, there
were o forms fiied late with the SEC,

Cade of Ethics

Pursuant 1o Hem 406 of Regulation §-K, the Company ndopted # Code of Ethics govemning the bebavior of the Company’s
principsf exeeutive and senior financial offieers.
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Iten: 11, Exerutive Compensntion

Set forth below is information sonceming compensation for services in sll capacities to the Company and its affiiates for
the fisen] years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 nnd 2005 of Paul W, Lowden, the Chiel Executive Offtcer, There were no other
current executive officers serving as such at the end of the Company’s fiseal year ended September 30, 2007 that earned 2 total
annual satary and bonus in excess of $100,000 during the fiscal year ended Scptember 30, 2007,

Summary Compensation Teable

Annup) Compensathy

Other Annea) Al Cibr
Fisest Compensatlun Compensatian
Nauioe s Principal Pasithn Yrar Sebary {$1 1k [51 15 {5)
Poul W. Lowden 2607 550,000 $200,0006(n S ¢ 3 43358
President, Chairman 2006 550,000 I08,000¢ ¢ F1203
of the Board and CEQ 205 530,000 200,080 0 64,846 (1

(1} The Company provides perquisites and osher personal benefits, including astomobiles to jts senior executives and provides
such persons camplimentary privileges at the restaurants and bars of the Compuny’s hotel-casing, 1 is irmpreetical to
ascertain the extent to which such privileges are wiilized for personal rather than business purposes, However, after
rensanable inguiry, the Company betieves the value of all such perguisites and other personnl benefits is lesd than the lesser
of $50,000 or 16% of the total salary and bonus reporsed for the person named above.

(2} Sze “Compensation Arrangements with Mr, Lewden.”

{3) Al Other Compensation™ for Mr, Lowden in fiscal 2007 includes $7,404 of lifs insurance premiums paid by the Company
for the benelit of My, Lowden, auto and ges reimbursement of §7,843 for the benefit of Mr. Lowden, payment of 31 8,650
for howsehold services for the benefit of Mr. Lowden, madical reimbursement of $6,876 for the benefit of Mr, Lowden and
$3,175 of matching cantributions made by the Company 10 sie Retirement Savings 401(k) Plax for the benefit of
Mr. Lowden, “All Other Compensation” for Mr. Lowden in fiscal 2006 includes 37,404 of life insuronce premiums paid by
the Company for the benelit of Mr, Lowden, auto and gas reimburszment of 34,017 for the henefit of Mr, Lowden, payment
of 515,800 for househeld setvices for the benefit of My, Lowden, medicnl reimburserment of 82,682 for the benefit of
Mr. Lowden and $3,300 of matching contributions made by the Company 1o the Retirement Savings 401(k) Plan for the
benefit of Mr, Lowden. “All Chher Compensation™ for Mr. Lowden in fiscal 2005 includes $7,272 of life insurance
premiums paid by the Cempany For the benefit of Mr, Lowden, avio and gas reimbursesment of$5,413 for the beacfit of
Mr, Lowden, payment of §17,525 for household serviges for the benefit of My, Lowden, medics! reimbursersent of $31,661
for the benelit of Mr, Lowden nnd 52,575 of mutching cantributions mads by the Company fo the Retirement Savings
401(k) Plan for the henefitof Mr. Lowden.

Compensating Arrangements with Mr. Lowden

The Compensation Committes approved Mr. Lawden’s compensation package for fiscal year 2007, which provided foran
annust base salory of $550,000. Additionally, in recognition of Mr, Lowden's effons, the Compensation Conunitiee approved a
bonus in the toount of $200,000 pavable in bi-weckly instaliments throughout fiscat year 2007,
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Compensation of Birectors

Dhrectors swho are not employees of the Company or its affiliates receive $24.000 annuaily and §1,06¢ per board mecting
attended, $800 per commistes meeling pttended 25 a member and S804 per commities meeting sttended s Chairman.

Prior to March 31, 2002, vpon first being elecied ta the board of directors, each non-employee direcior received options ta
purchase 12,500 shares of tommon stock 1t an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of
grant, Sueh options fully vested at the date of grant, The non-empluyee director stock option plan, purstant (o which such
options were granted, ceased pranting options in March 2002,

The Company requires all membees of the board of dircciors ta comply with all Company pelicies prior to attending
newly elected direetor's first meeting of the board of directors, These requirements include filing = gaming application with the
Nevada Gaming Authorities and cxeenting s confidentiality agreement, as well as compliance and disclosure statements, Lintil
such time 85 an elected individual bas complicd with these requirements, he or she is not entitted 10 the benefiis of the
dircctarship position, including any director fees or stock option awands that would otherwise be paid or granted.

Compensation Plans

Stack Optinn Plan

The Company’s Stock Optian Plan provided for the grant of options up to an aggregate of 1,239,070 ghares of 118 common
stock 1o key cmployees as determined by the Compensation Commitice, The Stock Cption Plan provided for both incentive
swek options and non-quatified stock options. The Company ceased granting options under the Stack Option Plas as of
Scpicmber 30, 2003 as (he plan hod cxpired in 2002, However, the shareholders, in July 2003, spproved amending the plan
wharehy the plan was extended until 2012 As of Seprember 30, 2007, there were approximately 692,000 options outstanding
under the Stoek Option Plan and approximately 434,000 options which are available for issuance under the Stk Option Plan,

1998 Subistdiary Stock Omiion Pleny

The Company snd certain of il subsidiaries, SFHI, Ine., Sahara Las Veges Cormp., and Pioneer Hodel Ing., have adopted
Subsithary Flans. The Subsidiary Plans provide for the grant of options by each of the Subsidaries with respect {0 on nggregate
of up to 10% of the outstanding shares of such Subsidiary’s common stock 1o employees, non-employce dirvetors, consultants or
sifilintes of the Company or the Subsidiaries. The purpose of the Subsidiary Plans is to enable the Subsidiaries, the Company
and any subsidiaries of the Company or Subsidiaries 1o attraci, retain and motivate their employees, non-employee direclors,
consuitants and sffilintes by providing for or increasing the propristary interest of such persons in the Subsidiaries, Certain of the
agreements under which the Company's long-tcrm debt is issued provide that § {the Company ceases (o own, dircctly or
indirectly, 1605 of the cutstanding capital stock of specified Subsidinries, an event of defaull will ocour or an offer to
repurchase the debt must be made, As o result, the Subsidiary Plans provide that eptions geanted under the Subsidiary Plans may
not be exereised if e exerese wouald result in a default, or require an offer to repitrehase the outstanding debt, under any
agreement with respect to longsterm debt of the Company or any of its Subsidianes. As of September 30, 2007, no options had
been granied under any Subsidinry Plans,

Suvings Plan

The Company has adopted a savings plan qualified under Section 401(k) of the Code (the “Savings Plan®). The Savings
Plan covers substantially nil employees, including the Company's executive officers. Employee contributions to the Savings Plan
are discretisnaty. The Savings Plan sllows eligible eniployees to contribute, ona
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pre-tax basis, up 1o 6% of their gross salary to the plan; the Company matches 254 of such employee contnbations made,
Employees may also contribule, on a pre-tax basis, up to an additional 3% of their gross salary, and, on a post- -tax basis, up Lo an
additiona) 10% of their salary. Such contributions are not mitched by ihe Company. The matehing expense in fiseal 2007 was
approximateiy $59,36 of which approximately $3,375 and 52,622 were tontiibuted by the Company to the account of

Mr, Lowden and all other exceutive officers s o group, respeatively, as matches for employes contritmtions made.

Cumpensativn Commitice Tnterlocks and Instder Partlelpation

The members of the compensation commitiee, John W, Belaney and William J. Raggio, are non-employee directors.
Mr. Delaney has never been en officer of (he Company or af say of i1s subsidiaries. Mr, Dclaney is the presidentof J & J
Mortgage, 2 mortgage banking company of which Paul W. Lowden is a director and sole stockholder, During fiscal 2001 through
fiscal 2003, the Company purchased from J & J Morigage an aggregate of $700,000 of commertial and residentinl loans
orginally funded by I & J Morigage to unaffilinied third parties. See tem 13, “Certain Relmionships and Related Transsciions.”
Wiltiam J. Ruggio, who from 1982 to 1999 served as Vice-President, Secretary and General Coutsel of the Company and it
predecessors, is a sharchalder ard a member of the law {irm of Jones Vargas. During Rscal years 2007 through 2043, the
Company retained Jones Vargas 1o sdvise the Company regarding various legat matters, and the Company conlinues to engage
Jones Vargas for begnlk representation.
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ftem 12 SECURITY QWNERSINP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following s«15 forth information regarding beneficial ownership of ihe commen siock and the exchangeable
redeeeable prefeired stock of the Company, as of December 20, 2006, by () cach persen known to be the beneficial owiter of
mare than 5% of the cutstanding commoen stock of preferred stock; {it) ench direetor of the Company; and (3il) all directors and
officers of the Company as 3 grosp.

Sharer wl
Comman
Namd Beselleial fiwacr Slock furcest
Pau) W. Lowden iV 4,900, [ 44 74,75
Suzanne Lowden 4,79441% *
Johin W, Delaney 13,750 *
William J, Raggic 17872 *
Heward Foster 5,308 *
Richard H. Tagpan 1,700 *
All Directors amf Officers ag » group {7 persons) 4,043,658 T5.4%

*  Less than 1.0%

(1) ‘The address for Paus W. Lowden is ¢io Archon Corporation, 4336 Losee Road, Suite 5, North Los Vegas, Nevada B3038,
The sharcs owned by sach person, or by the group, and the shares includsd in the 1018l number of shaces outstanding have
been adjusted, and the percentage owned (where such percentage exceeds 195) has been computed, in accerdance with Rule
13d-3(d)X(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

(2} Includes 1,732,470 shares held by LICO, which is wholly owned by Mr. Lowden and 279,510 shares that may be acquired
vpon the exereise of cutstanding stock oplions.

{3} Includes 804,941 shares held by LICO, which is wholly owned by Mr Lawden,

4} Includes 4,521 shares held by Mrs, Lowden as casiodian for a child and excludes shares beneficially owned by
Mrs, Lowden reficcted in the fable,

(5) [Encludes 1,262 shares held by Mrs, Lowden os custedian for a child and excludes shares beneficially owned by
Mrs. Lowden refllected in the whie
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Itent 13, ERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND REEATED TRANSACTIO!

The Company believes that ali transactions mentioned bzlow are on terns ot least rs favorable 1o the Company a3 would
have bren obigined from an unrelated third party.

Paud W, Lowden and Suzanne Lowden are married to oue anothern

The Company bus entered into s Patent Rights and Royalty Agreement with David Lowden, brother of Paul W. Lowden,
with respeet (o centain gaming technology for which David Lowden has been (ssued a pateot. The Company has agreed lo pay
certain royally payments with respect to the technolopgy incarporated into gaming devices placed in operasion, as well as costs
reluted to mairsain the patent. David Lowden has granted she Company un exclusive five-year license expiring in January 2007
i thie: United States with respect to the leghuology, which will be astomatically renewed for additional 1wo-year terms unless
Archion erminmes the sgreement wilhin thisty days prior to the ronowal or the pgreement is othenvise earlier terminated in
sccopdence with its terms. The Company also bas an pndersianding with David Lowden that it will pay for the ¢osts of
commercial developiment of the techaology. As of September 30, 2007 the Compaay bad expended approximately $400,000 for
commercial develepment of the techaology,

In Becember 2003, Duke's closed its casing operntions. The Company cperaind Duke's operations, The Company also
loanied Duke's approximately $1.4 million. The Company wrote-off its investment in Duke's and recorded » reserve for its
reccivable from Duke's of approximately $1.3 miflion during a prior iscal year and it has no further asset sxposure {rom Duke's.
The Company made the determination 12 reserve the entire amount invesied io and owed from Duke’s, as the collateral vatue
sceuring the reseivable was deemed insignificant subsequent to the closure of the casino,

During an approximaie 2-year period ended June 30, 2008, the Company had expended upproximately SR00,000 in fegal
foes associated with Deke's litigation aygningt & contacior, Duke's had entered into an agrezment to reimburse the Company for
lepal fecs and oiher smounts owed the Company depending on potential amounts recovered from the liigation. Thiough
Sepember 30, 2007, the Company received spproximately $1.7 million, of which $800,000 has been eredited ngainss legal
expense and the balance has been included in operating income in the fiseal 2006 consotidated statement of operations, The
Company has negotiated with Dukes-Sparks, LLC and ohinined an assignment of all future payments upder the judgmum snd
settfement with the Genernt Contmetor for the Casine Project. The General Contractor has been notified of the assignment and
will be making a!l future payments due under the settlement with Dukes-Sparks, LLC to the Company directly necording to the
terms of the settlement apreement.

During fiseal 2601 through fiscut 2083, the Company purchased an aggregate of $700,000 of commercial and residential
toans originally funded by J & J Moengage to unaffiliated third parties. The loans were purchased by the Company for the
principal amount, plus acerved interest, if sny. 1 & J Montgege is owned by LICO, which in tim is owned by Paul W, Lowden,
Jobin W. Pelaney is the president of 1 & J Morgage.

William J. Raggio, a dirccior of thie Company, is a sharchelder and member of the faw finn of Joues Vargns, During fiscal
year 2007 through 2005, the Company retafned Joncs Vargas to ndvise the Company regarding various legal matters, and the
Company contivues $o0 engage Jones Vacgas for legal representation.

See "Executive Compensition ~ Compensation Arrangements with Mr. Lowden™ for information regarding cerain bonus
armnpements for Mr, Lowden and obligations of LICO, o company wholly-owned by Mr. Lowden, owed to the Company.
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Item 4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The foliowing fees were billed by Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern and Emst & Young, LLP for services provided 1o the
Campany fop the fiscal years ended Seprember 30, 2007 and 2008:

2967 246

Audit Fees: $184.251  RiB4,156
Audit Related Fees 15,799 26,094
Tax Fees 0 o

Audit fees are the aggregate fees bitled for professional services rendered in conncction with the engagement to it the
Company's annual financinl statements for the fiscal years ended Sepiember 30, 2007 and 2006 inciuding the reviews of the
financinl statements inclnded fo the Company's Form 10-Q's for those fscal years,

Audit related fees billed for fiscal 2007 and 2006 are for professional services readered in connection with the audit of the
Corapany's 401(k) retirement plan for the years ended December 31, 2006 and Decernber 2003, respectively.

Ta 2007 and 2008, no fees were paid to Pierey Bowler Taylor & Kern and Emst & Young, LLF pursaant to the "de
minimus” exception to the pre-approval pelicy permitted under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,

The Audit Commitfee Cuidelines fur Pre-Approval of Independent Auditar Services is atioched to this 10-K as Exhibit 14.1.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, sl services provided by the extemel auditor were presapproved by the
Caompany's Audit Committes,
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PART IV
Ttem 5, EXHIBITS

(a} 1.and 2. Financial Staiements and Schedules _
The financinl statements filed ss part of this report are listetl i the Index to Consolidated Finaneial Statements under
{lem 8.

{6} Exhibits
The following sre filed as Exhibits 1o this Annual Repors an Form L13-K:

Exbibirt
Nomlwer Doveripiion of Exbibbt
3.1 Articles of Incorpomtion snd Bylows of the Company (Freviously filed with the Securitics and Exchange
Commission s an exhibit 1o the Company’s -4 (No. 33.67864) Registration Statement on Form 10-K
dated Juge 15, 1982 and incomporated heren hy relerence.)

32 Cenificate of Designation for Exchangeable Redeemable Praferred Stock. (Previousty filed with the
Securities and Bxchange Comemisston as an exhibit 1o the Company's Registmlion Statement on Form 5-4
(No. 33.67864) and incorpornted herein by reference.)

33 Amcnded and Restated By-laws of Santa Fe Gaming Comoratian. {12)

16.{  Notes secured by heos on office building in Las Vegas, Nevada in the original principat amounts of
£301,592.08, $23,337.96 and $649,063,99 bearing inwerest at 104, 1% and 13 172% per annum,
respectively. (1)

10.2  Key Employee Stock Option Plan, (2}

6.3 Lease ModiBeation Letter dated August 24, 1995 by and betwesn Wet N' Wild Nevada, [ac. and Sakam
Compuomiion, (3)

04  Management Agreement by and between Pioneer Hotel and Santa Fe Gaming Corporution datzd as of
December 38, 1598, ()

16.3 Right of First Refusnl dated Noveenber 13, 1999 by nnd among Siation Casines, Inc., SFGC and SFHI. {6)

106 Non-Compstition Agreement dated November 15, 1999 by and among Station Casines, Inc., SFHI, SLVC,
ond SFGC, (6)

107 First Amendment to Non-Competition Agresment dated November 16, 1999 by and among Station
Casinos, Ing., STHL, SLYC, and SFGC. (8)

LR Sharchollers Agreement dated as of June 12, 2000 smang Station Casine, Inc., Pau] W. Lowden, David G,
Lowden and Christoplier W. Lowden. {7)

169 Lense Agreement benween HAHF Pigneer, LLC as taadlord and Floncer Hoiel fnc., #6 tenunt dated
Decomber 29, 2000. (9)

[0.10  Exchange Agreement among Pioneer LLC, os transferor; Proneer Hotel Inc., as tenanl; HAHF Ploncer LLC
ay {ransferee snd Heller AfTordable House of Florida, Ine., dated Decainber 29, 2000, (9)

1011  Purchase Contract by snd between David Bratove, 85 trusiee of the Gaithershurg Realty Trust and Santa Fe
Hotel, Inc. dated February 28, 2001, (10)
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Exluilele

LY A

Deserintion af Exhili

RTXE
10,13
10.14
10,15

A ]
1037

10,48
10,09
10.20

10,23
0,24

10.25
14,26
627

10,28
£0.29

13

232

i

68 ol 78

Promussory Note daled February 28, 2001 by and between SFH1, LLC rnd Lehrman Brothers Haoldings Inc,
dfora Lehman Capital, o division of Lelman Brothers Holdings Inc. (10}

Deed of Trust and Security Agreement deted February 28, 2001 by and between SFHI, LLC and Leliman
Brothers Holdings Ine., d/b‘a Lehman Cepital, a division of Lehman Brothers Holdings [ne. (10)

75 Lease Agreement by and between REIGaithersburg, Maryland, L.L.C. und GE Information Services,
Ene, dated Junuacy 39, 1999, (10)

Assignment of Lease ang Rents dated February 28, 2001 by and between Gaithersburg Realty Trust and
SFHI, LLC. {10)

Contract dated Decerber §, 2000 by snd between S-HNK42 Invesiors, L.P. and Santa Fe Hotel Inc. (10)

First Amendment dated December 26, 2000 to Contract doted December §, 2000 by and between S.BNK#
investors, L. and Sants Fe Hotwel Ine, (10)

Mon-Recourse Note S-BNK Dorchester Operations, LLC 10.20% A1 Note due June 30, 2005, (10)
Nom-Recotrss Note 5-BNK Dorchester Operxtions, LLC 12,18% A-2 Note dut Juna 30, 20206, (10)

Maortgage, OpenEnd Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agresment and Fixwre Filing
finaneing Statemment dated as of Junc 30, 2080 between 5-BNK Dorchester Operations, LLC, and First
Security Bank, Nativpal Association as Indenture Trustee. {10}

Lease Apreement dated June 30, 2068 by and between S-BNK Dorchester Qperations, LLC and Soversign
Bank, (10)

ndemure daed ns of June 30, 2000 between 5-BNK Dorchester Operations, LLC. und First Security Bank,
National Assecistion as Indentore Trustee. (10}

Patent Rights Royalty Agrcement dated as of Januaey 2, 2082 between Archon Corporation sad David G,
Lowden. {11}

Subordinated Loan Agreement dated October 8, 2002 between Archion Corporation and Duke's-Sparks,
LLC. (E3)

Lease doted Ocrober 4, 2002 hetween Archon Corpomtion and Duke’s Casino. (13)
Option Agreement dated Cetaber 8, 2002 between Endeavors North LLC and Archon Corporation. {13)

Loan Agreemens gated Decerber 15, 2003 between Colonial Busd, Archion Corpoeration and Sahars Las
Vepas Com. (14)

Security Apreement and Second Deed of Trust Dated October 8, 2002 (15)
Diemand Note dated February 6, 2003 in faver of Archon Corparation, {16}
Subsidiaries of Archon Corporation {17)

Consent of Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kem®

Conmsent of Erost & Young LLP *

Centification of Paul W, Lowden, Principal Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a 15(e) or 15d-15(c} of
the Scenrities nnd Exchange Act of 1934, #s adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002
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Exhihit
Sumber  Deseription of Exhiiy
312 Cenification of Grant L. Siler, Principal Accounting Officer, pursusnt (o Rule 13a- 13{e) or 15d-15{¢} of

the Sccurities snd Exchange Act of 1934, ns adopted pursuant to Seetion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
20620

320 Cemification of Chicl Exceutive Officer spd Chief Financial Qfficer pursuani to Section 586 of the
Sarbanes-Ohxley Act of 2002.*

*  Filed consurrenily herowith,

FOOTNOTES TO EXHIBITS

{1) Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form 5+
(No, 33-13214} of Sahara Casine Partners, LT and incorporated hersin by referenee,

(3) Previeusly filed with the Securities and Exchange Comumission as an exhibit to Sahera Gaming Corpomtion’s Antual
Report on Form 10-K for the year eaded September 38, 1993 and incorporated herein by reference.

{3) Previously fled will the Secunities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to Sahnra Gaming Corporation’s Report on
Form 10K for the yeer ended September 38, 1995 and incomporatel herein by reference.

(1) Previously filed witl the Securities and Exchanpe Commission 85 an exhibil to Santa Fe Gaming Corporation’s Report on
Form 10-0 for the quarter ended March 30, 1999 and incerparated herein by reference.

{5) Previousty filed with the Securities und Exchiange Commission as sn exhibit to Saats Fe Gaming Comaranon's Repart on
Foem 10-Q for the quanier ended June 30, 1899 and incorporated herein by reference.

{6} Previousiy Aled with the Sceurities and Exchange Commission zs an exhibit 1o Sama Fe Gaming Cormporaticn's Repori on
Form §-K dated November F5, 1989 and incorported heeein by reference.

(7} Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to Santa Fe Gaming Corporation’s Report on
Fortn 16-Q for the quaner cuded June 38, 2000 and incorporated herein by refercnce.

{8) Previously filed with the Secusities and Exchiange Commission as an exkibiit to Sania Fe Gaming Corporation's Report on
Form 8-K dated June 172, 2000 and incorpornted herein by refersnce,

{9} Previously filed with the Scouritics and Exchange Commissicn ag sa exhibit ts Santa Fe Gaming Corpueation's Report on
Form B-K dated December 29, 2000 and incomporaied hergin by meference.

{19) Previously filed wish the Securities and Exchonge Commissicon as ea exbibit to Archon Corporation's Report on Form 10-0
for he quarter ended March 31, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.

(1) Previcusly filed with the Sccurities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to Archon Corporstion’s Repoit on Form 16-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2602 and incorporated herein by reference,

(12) Freviously filed with the Securities snd Exchange Commission as an exhibit 10 Archon Corperation’s Repott on Form 10-Q
dated Augnst 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by selerence.

{13) Previousty filed with the Scearities and Exchange Commission as un exhibit o Archon Corporation’s Report on Fomi 10K
dated Decembier 30, 2002 ond incorpomted hesein by reference,

(14) Previsusly filed with (he Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit 1o Archon Corporation’s Repert on Form B<K
dated January 13, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

{15) Previously fiied with the Securities and Exchange Comrnission s an exhibit to Archon Corporation’s Report on Form 10-Q
dated Augusi 20, 2803 and incorporated herein by relerence.

(16} Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit 10 Archon Corporation’s Repont on Form 10-Q
duied February 14, 2003 nod incomormted herein by reference,

{17) Previousty filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit {o Archon Cosporation’s Repont on Form
10-5/A {Amendment Neo. 1} dated Jaouary 23, 2004 and incorpemted herein by referenee,

{18) Previously filed with the Sceurities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to Archon Corporation’s Proxy Statement on
Schedule T4A dated May 7, 2004 and incorporsted herein by relerence,
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SIGNATURES

Purstant to the requirernests of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Fachange Act of 1934, the registant has duly eaused
this repont W be signed on its behal{ by the sndersigned, thereunto duly authonzed,

ARCHON CORPORATION
Januapy 14, 2008 By: fd Paul W, Lowden
{Date Signed) Paul W. Lowden, President

Pursusn: 10 Whe reguirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been sighed below by the following
pursons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Slenaure Title Date
dsf Pauf W, Lowden Chalrman of the Board and President January 14, 2008
Enul W, Lowden {Prigcipal Excentive Offfeer)
/g John Delaney Direstor January 14, 2008

Johs Deianey

/5f Suznnne Lowden Dircctar January 14, 2008
Suzanne Lowden

/3! Wiltiam 1, Ragedo Oirector January 14, 2608
WhHliam J. Raggle
fsf Howard ¥, Foster Director lanvary 14, 2008
Howsard E, Foster
/s Richard H. Tageart Birector January b4, 2008
Richard H. Taggan
1sf Kovin Haomuty Secretary January 14, 2008
Kevin Hanratty
/st Grant L. Siler Principal Aceonuting Oficer January 14, 2008
Grunt L. Siler
Li14]
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Case 2;07-cv-01146-PMP-LRL Docurnent 190 Filed 10116/12 Page 1of 3

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

D.E. SHAW LAMINAR PORTFOLIOS, L.L.C; L.C
CAPITAL MASTER FUND, LTD; LC CAPITAL/
CAPITAL Z SPV, LP; MAGTEN ASSET
MANAGEMENT CORP; MERCURY REAL
ESTATE SECURITIES FUND LP; MERCURY
REAL ESTATE SECURITIES OFFSHORE FUND
LIMITED; BLACK HORSE CAPITAL LP; BLACK
HORSE CAPITAL (QP) LP; BLACK HORSE
CAPITAL OFFSHORE LTD,; end PLAINFIELD
SPECIAL SITUATIONS MASTER FUND
LIMITED,

Plaintiffs,
Y8
ARCHON CORPORATION,

Defendant,

Case No, 2:07-CV-1146-PMP-(LRL)

WRIT OF EXECUTION

PA257



Case 2:07-cv-01146-PMP-LRL  Document 190 Filed 10/16/12 Page 2 of 3

TO THE UNITED STATES MARSHAL FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA:

On February 24, 2011, a Judgment was entered in the docket of the above-entitled Court and
sction, in favor of D.E, SHAW LAMINAR PORTFOLIOS, L.L.C.; LC CAPITAL MASTER
FUND, LTD; LC CAPITAL / CAPITAL Z SPV, LP; MAGTEN ASSET MANAGEMENT
CORP; MERCURY REAL ESTATE SECURITIES FUND LP; MERCURY REAL ESTATE
SECURITIES OFFSHORE FUND LIMITED; BLACK HORSE CAPITAL LP; BLACK. HORSE
CAPITAL {QP) LP; BLACK HORSE CAPITAL OFFSHORE LTD; and PLAINFIELD SPECIAL
SITUATIONS MASTER FUND LIMITED, as Judgment Creditors, and ageinst ARCHON
CORPORATION ss Judgment Debtor, for '

$7,240,523.64 princips],

$ 0.00 attorney fees,

$2,041,266.23 interest, and

$0.00 costy making a total of

$9,281,789,87 JUDGMENT AS ENTERED,

WHEREAS, sccording to an affidavit and request for issuance of writ of execution filed herein, it
appears that furcher sums have acerued since the entry of judgment, to wit:

$50,724.26 scorued interest, and

$0,00 accrued costs and fees, making a total of

£50,724.26 ACCRUED INTEREST, COSTS AND FEES.

CREDIT must be given for payntents and partial salisfactions in the amount of

£0.00 which fs to be first credited epainst the tota] eccrued interest, tosts and fees,
with any excess credited against the Judpment s enterad, leaving a net belance of;

g 8,332,680.65 ACTUALLY DUE on the dats of issuance of this
writ, of which

$5,281,789,87 is due on the Judgment s entered, and bears interest at 0.30% per
annum, compounded annually pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961(b), in the amount of
§76.52 PER DAY, from one year after entry of judgment to the date of issuance
on this writ, to which much be added the sccrued costs and fees and the
commissions and costs of the officers executing this writ.

PA258



Case 2:07-cv-01146-PMP-LRL Document 180 Filed 10/16/12 Page 30of 3

Notice by mail of any sule under the writ of exscution HAS NOT been requested.

YOU ARE THEREFORE COMMAMDED to satisfy the said Judgment with inlerest and
costs as provided by Iaw and your costs and disbursements owt of the personal preperty of said
debtor, except that for any pay period, 75 percent of the disposable eamings of the dubtar during
this period or for each week of the preriod 30 times the minimum hour wage ﬁa'ascrihet‘i by section
6{a)(1) of the Federal Fair Labor Standaxds Act of 1938 {29 US.C, See, 206{)(1}], and in cilect at
the time the earmings are pavable, whichever is grester, Is exempt from any fevy of exeeution
pursuant to this writ, and i€ sullicient porsonal property cunnol be found, then out o his real
propenty; or iT the Judgment be a licn upon real propeny, then ot of the real property belongiag to
such debtor, and make return of tis writ within sat less than ten (10) days nor wore than sisty

(60) days after your receipt thereof with what you have dene endorsed bereon,

Sudgment Creditor/PlaintifF witl idemtify to the U.S. Marshal or his represeniative assets
thai are to be seized o satlsfy the judgment/order.

YOU ARE FURTHER COMMANDED if necessacy, 10 tum aver uny property seized
under this order 10 o third party custodian or to e plaintiff, The U8, Marshal or his
reprosentative is suthorized to use reasonsble frco in the execution of this hudgmeat/Order cnd
the Jedgment Creditos/Plaindff will hotd the U.8, Marshals Service harntless of ony Hability tit

may be imposed a5 a result of the exceution of this Judgitent,

10/16/2012
DATE

"y TEPUTY CLERK
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Case 2:08-cv-00007-PMP -LRL Document 87 Filed 01/04/13 Page 1 of 2

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA
LEEWARD CAPITAL, LP.,
Plalntift }
)
v. ! 2:08 GV 00007-PMP-LRL
) ) Case Number
ARCHON CORPORATION, )
Defendant. ) WRIT OF EXECUTION
)

TO THE UNITED STATES MARSHAL FOR THE DISTRICT QF NEVADA!

On March 8, 2011 , & Judgment was entered in the docket of the above-entitied Court and

action, in favor of Leeward Capital, L.P. as Judgment Creditor,
and agalnst Archon Corporation as Judgment Debtor, for
$ 206,840.00  princlpal,

0,00 aftornaey fees,

70,258,968  interest, and

0.00 costs making a total of

@« @ 6 W

27718888 JUDGMENT AS ENTERED.

WHEREAS, according to an affidavit and request for issuance of writ of execution flled hereln, it appears
that further sums have accrued since the entry of judgment, to wit:

> 141245  accrued Interest, and
5 0,00 accrued costs and fees, making a total of
$ 1412.45 ACCRUED INTEREST, COSTS AND FEES.
oz Lagriint, tne.
WEST\Z40018187.3 wovew F et ke it e
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CREDIT must hg giwen darsnproptsrane peri! wshalinnsin UReeroloip{3 Page 2 of 2
s Q.OD \"fhlt:h is to be first crediled against the tolal accured interest, costs and less,
with any excess credited against the Judgmen! as entered, leaving a net balance of

§ 278,813.31 ACTUALLY DUE on the date issuance of this writ, of which
5 27?.1%?.98 is dug on the Judgment as entered, and bears interestat _ 0.25 % per
annum, in the amount of § 1.90 ___PER DAY, from the date of entry of judgment to the

date of issuance on this writ, to which must be added the accrusd costs and fees and the
commissions end costs of the officer axecuting this wiit, (Interest rate and amount per day to
be completed by attorney.)

Notice by mail of any sale under the writ of execution M Has [X] Has Not  been requested.
The following named persons have requested such notice of sale:

NAME ADDRESS
N/A | NIA

VOU ARE THEREFORE COMMANDED to satisfy the said Judgment with interest and costs as
provided by law and your costs and disbursements out of the personal property of sald deblor, except
that for any pay period, 75 percent of the disposable samings of the debtor during this period or for
each week of the period 30 times the minimum hour wage prescribed by section 8{(a){1) of the Federal
Eair Labor Standards Act of 1838 [20 U.5.C. Sec. 206(a){1)}. and in effect at the time the sarnings are
payable, whichever is grealer, is exempt from any levy of execulion pursuant to this wril, and if
sufficient personal properly cannot big found, then oud of his real property; or if the Judgment be 2 Hien
upon real propery, then out of the real property belonging to such deblor, and make return of this wiil
within not less than ten {10) days nor more than sixty (80) days after your receipt thereof with what
you have dong endorsed hereon.

Judgment Creditor/Plaintiff will identily to the {3.8. Marshal or s represeniative assets that are
1o ba seized to satisfy the judgmentforder,

YOU ARE FURTHER COMMANDED if necessary, to lum over any properly seized under this
order ta a thitd party custodian or to the plaintiff. The U.S. Marshal or his representative is authorized
lo use reasonable foree in the execution of this Judgment/Order and the Judgment Creditor/Plalntiff
will hold the U.S. Marshals Service harmiess of any Hiability that may be imposed s a result of the
axecution of the Judgment.

01/04/2013

LANCE 3. WILSON /f

E&Lﬁ Weiksrrns @

By} DEPUTY CLERK &

' DATE
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C, 20548

FORM 16-Q

x  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period eaded: December 31, 2010

" TRANSITION REFORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transitlen period from to

Commission File Number: 1-9481

ARCHON CORPORATION

{Exurt name of registraat us speeifled in Ks charter}

Nevads AR-8304348
(Ntate oy ather juchsdleson o {LR.S. Employer
Ineurporaibon oF wipneitatlon) {dentilcation Nutber)

22806 Caslno Drive, Langhiin, Nevada 85029
Endsteest of principod exccutive effice aml dp cole)

{702) 732-2120

{Repfstrast’y ebephang pupsden lncknding area codet

{Former name, former sdilress and former fyest yean iF ehnupud sinee st repare)

fdicate by o check ok whetier the regisiram (1) hes filed ol reports required to be filed by Section 13 or $5¢d} 6f the Securitics
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months for for such shonter pertod that the registrant was reguired 10 file such repons).
and {2) has bren subject to stich filing requirements forthe past 90 days. Yes x No ™7

tndicate by 8 chevk matk whether the registrant ie a larpe aceclerated filer, sn aceeleriied filer or 8 non-sccclersted fhier. See
definition ol "aceelerated filer and larpe accelersted filer in Ruke {2b2 of the Exchange Ast.

Lurpe uweeelerated filer Avrelerated Rler "
Non-sceelerated filer, Smal meporting company” %
Indicate by chek smbek whether the registrane is o shell company {as defined fn Rule 12b.2 of the Exchange Aot} Yes © No x

APPLICABLE ONLY TO IS5UERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY
PROCEERINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

Indieate by check mesk whether the registrant bas filed all dovuments end roponts required ta be filed by Sction 12, 13 or 15(d) of
the Seeurities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the disttbutinn of seeurities under a plan confirmed by acourt, . Yes ™ Ne ™

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE 1SSUERS:

LR 462016 8:33 AM
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indivate the number of shares outstanding of ench of the issuer’s clisses of commnn s1oek, a3 of the latest practivable date,

4,792,944 ssof February 18, 2611

4]
!
z

Tolq42 4612016 B:53 AM
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PART I~ FINANCIAL INFORMATION

[7- 0 Unagdited Conselidated Finaneinl Stitementy

Archon Corporstion end Subsldiarles
Caonseldated Belnnce Sheets

Deerralier A1, Septemnber 30,
018 208
{Unauciied) {Auditet)
ABSETS
Cumant aEsss:
Cash and vash couivalests § 957551 5 9578558
{nvesument in markeshie scouritios 8,744,649 17,773,245
Avvounts receivahle, ne 183,763 185,803
Isveriotivs 156,144 152,437
Frepuid expenses amd other 939,243 91,45t
Asseis held for sale, current 516889 489,061
Deferred tax auysus 166555 471616
Teal current ossets 30,273,509 29,537,580
Asxes held for sale 34,171,473 54,162,434
Froperty std cquipment:
Rental propecty, net P /7,405,768 B7.827,131
Land uaed in opunstions 3,960,589 3,960,589
Buildings abd improvements 25,704,560 25,704,568
Machinery and equipmen 8,389,044 8,314,824
Accumulated depreciation {28,718.213} (38,621,442}
Property and equipment, nit 46,681 750 97,302,667
Crher assus 3,042,078 3,020,626
Fanl assels SIH4 168 812 S1E4,i23.347

The pecumpanying notes are en integral port of thuse consolidaied fimneinl staremenis,

1

4 uf4l 4/6:2016 §:33 AM
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Archon Corporntion and Subsidisries
Consolidated Bainnee Sheets (continued)

LIABILITIES AND CKHDLDERS! EQUITY
Current Habilities:

Line of erudit
Avvounts peyable
Averued snd agher linbilitics
Exchangeable redeemable profereed stock - varedeemed
Current Hisbilities - assets held for sale
Curront ishilities ~ deforned remt income

Tot} current Hubilities

Longtenn Habilisies - ssvets hold Tor sale
Nogrrecourse dobt
Deferred tax liabilitics
Deferred renl {neome

Testal Hahilitics
Conminnents and contingencies (Noie 6)

Stockhotders® wyefty:

Prefurred stoek, exchangeable, redeemable 16.0% cumulative $2.14 por share Huitletion vaiue,
authorized » 10, B, Q00 shares; rone imocd snd cnistamding

Common stock, .01 par vadue, suthonzed - 160,000,000 shares; ssned and outsiahding -
6,316,576, and 6,316,576 shares

Additigma! paid-in capital

Aveumulated delict

Accumulated other comprehensive boss

Loss: rotes receivable from principal stockholders

Less: treasury common siock ~ 523,632 and 398,632 shares, ui cost
Total stockhokders” equily
Totaf abititics and stockbelders” cquity

The secompanying aoies ore on inregral pant of these consolidated fnancial statements.

]
e

Beseealwr 34, Begromber 39,
piiil wite
Y liid) {Andliod) .

§ 9812500

$ 5600000

933,241 1,277.860
2,272,360 1.222,201
798,021 B13,665
3,871,007 3,718,020
3,426,648 3426648
3063707 16,458,004
32,583,853 33541444
31199388 31,199,288
21228374 21,513,085
9,126,508 29,983,170
135301,720  132.695.08)
0 0
63,164 43,166
63247058 63,247,158
(1.393085)  (7.506,070)
{46,274) (286,655)
55868965  §5.517,599
(57,841) (57.841)
(6444033} (4.031.532)
48967001 5143876
Si84,168817  $184,113307
4762016 §:53 AM
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Falle uf Copronts
Archon Corporation and Subsidiories
Cansolidated Statements of Operations
fUnaudited)
Revenues:
Casing
Hatel
Foid and beverage
Rental propertics
Other

Gross revemtue
Lss wasing pixnnotbenal altowances
Nt apcrating revenuey
Cpernting ¢aponses:
Casiiy
Hanted
Food snd beverape
Chfser
Seliing, penersl and adminisirative:
Corporate
Oher
Unititivg and property expenses
Depreciation
Tertal operating cxpenses
Opestting incamne (loss)
Oubser income and (expense):
[mterest exponse
Cain (Joss) o sale of inackeable soeurities
Lateesst and oher incamy
Lt before income tax beaefi
Federal invome tax banefit, continuing eperations
Loss from continuing operaians
Biscominued speradons gain, net ol tax expense of 5256,619 and $480,778, respestively
Netingome

The sceompanying notes are ga integral part of these ronsoliduted fmmncial statemnonts,

e

Three Munthy Hade)
Derember 1L,

1610

1507

L L5426

5 3,326952

283,204 120,807
876,144 1.214.213
1,835,580 1,582 6RO
73,770 640,613
5,784,314 7,285.063
{661,156) (209,258
4,123,158 6,375,707
[,602,650 1,227.266
148,930 135,655
43 492 744,468
70,961 80,625
745,540 832,644
681,108 765,848
941,650 971,352
578,133 594,300
$220.634 6,352,153
(974763 23,549
(025,831 (1,108.209)
90,865 {64,278}
293349 106,042
{730.099) {838,846)
364,506 318,570
{365,593 {(520,216)
476,578 892872
§ 110988 0§ 372896

lstp:fiwww sec.gov/ Archivesfedpardata/§ 1 24820001 1933251104028, .,

4;6/2016 8:53 AM
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Archen Corparation nid Solisidizrics
Consolidated Statements ol Dperations
{Unaudited) {continged)

Average common shere cutstending
Average comgos and common cguivalent shares outstanding

Loss (row continuing operations per comimon share
Mt taxie foss per common share

Ditluted Toss pur comman siuee

Disgoptinued eperasiuns galn, net ol taa per comoen share
Nt basic inceme per common share

Dhifuted income por comtinan share

Fneoime per eommon share
Nul basit ingeme per comingn e

Phbued invome por common share

Three Maonths Eaded
Decopnber X,
e sy
JERCEXTE N X T
5,193,944 6,316,576
g {0063 5 !0.(}8)

The scusmpanying sotes are an integrat pont of these consobidated financial statemonts,

e

$ 088 5 008
s 008 ) .14
s 08 M 0.14
) 02 3 .06
3 1.402 3 (.05
44612016 8:53 AM
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Archen Corporation snd Subsidlaries
Cansoliduted Statements of Comprebensive Income
{Unnudited)

Mot ineome
Unrealized gain {foss) on mackeiable securities, me of income taxes
Comprehensive ircome

The accmnpanying noles are #n integral pant of these consolidated financiz! statmments,

&

Three Mty Enribed

pii k] 2009
S110,985 3372596
240,181 (65.741)

£351,366 3306855

4372016 8:53 AM
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Archan Corporation and Suballiaries
Consolidered Statement of Stockholders® Equity
Far tire Three Months Ended Degember 38, HHO

{Unaudiied)
Ateumuiaicd Netes
Addilenal Oiher Reeclvabiz
Preformt  Cumiman Chissmans rald-In Actwmulated  Comprebensive Froom Treasery
Bk § Yinzh Stork 3 Canliad {1eflels Income (Losi)  Stexkhobicry Srack Total
Balanues,

Dotober 1,200 8 0 6316,576 563,166 SH3,247.158 S(3.506070) § (286855} 8 (37.841) Bi4,031,53]) 351,428,226
Het income 116,085 110,983
Purchase of

HsHrY
stock {2,812500) (2.812,50(0)
Unrealized
guin on
suarketabie
seeuritics 2403414 240,381
Bulagous,
Decomber 31,
2 5 ) 6,316,576 $63.160 563247138 HTI03085v %5 (46.,274) & (57.841) 5(6,844,037) $48,967,042

The igeompanying notes are an inteprs! pan ol these consolidated finencial sutements.

s

Jof42 4:5:2016 8:53 AM
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Archion Corporation und Subsidiaries
Consolidaied Stuiements of Cash Flows
tUnsudiicd)

Casls flows from speraring ativities:
Notingpi
Less: discontiouet operations pein, nor of tax efli
Met fpss from continging operations
Adjustments to reconcile net foss from continuing operations to ast vazh used 1o operating
activities:

Ineometax benellt
Depresistion
Intoress expense from semonization of deby issuanes costs
(Gala) Joss oo sale of murketable securities
Chunge in operating asses sad Habilites:
Accarnis fremvable
fnvuntorics
{repaid expenses and sther
Cithur atsets
Avepunts payahle
Accrued and sthur Ushilines
Defurred ront

Mot cagh used iy oporaing activitics
Cetslt flews from investing uctivities:
Progeeds frun sale or disposal of assuts
Capital expenditures
Marketoble seeurities perchased
Marketable sceuritios sold o rdeemed
Net cash used bn investing setivities
Cunle flones from fingnchig dorvities:
Proceeds fram tne of eredit
Payment on finu of edit
Cimmon stock perchased and retired
Preferred stock redesmed and retinal

Net cash provided by Bnanciag sctivities
Cugh flows fron Discontimued Gperations:
Custs flows Trom operating activites
Cash Dows From fiencing setivities
Mt cusl provided by discontinued operations
Deereust in eash and cash ciuivatents
Cash aned tush cuivelonss, begining of period
Cash andd cash equivalents, end of period

The accompanying notes are an infegrel part of these consolidnted financiel statemems.

2T

http:iiwww.sec govi Archivesiedgardata/8 1 2482:0001 1931251104029 ..

Three Months Eaded

Beegsuber 0,
piiti] 200G
$ HosEs %8 372.34%6
(476,578) {BU2,87)
(165,553 {E520,276)
{384,506} (218,559
478,133 584,300
{18,586} 57033
{89,865} G4, 278
4,132 (7335
{3,718) 18,110
{38,491} {148,196}
(2,566) (87,596)
(344318 {403,311}
50,159 {7.630)
{R50.662) {B56.662)
{1,460, § 681 (1,616,882}
it 28,885
(57.218) (30,722)
2.105.52% (3,104,324}
163,822 1,032,331
(3589197 _{1,159,828;
5,812,500 4]
(5,000,000} 9
(2,512,500} 0
{15,544} )
§,984,356 )
ER7,I0H 1,492,040
{855,957} (%45,954)
31,744 646.GHG
(2.985)  (3,130,624)
958,555 _31,645408
$49.575,5MM $295158%

A/6/2016 B:53 AM
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ARCTION CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the quarters ended Devembier 31, 2018 and 2889

1, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

The peiesary husiness operations of Archan Corporation (ihe “Company™ or "Archoa”] are conducted thisegh 3 wholly-owned
subsidinry vorporation, Poseer Hoto! fne, (“PHI™} which eperates the Poncer Haotel & Gambling Hell (the “Ploncet”™) in Laughtin,
Wevnda, In addition, the Compuny vwns real cstate on Las Vegos Boulevard South (the “Sirip”} in Las Vegas, Nevads, currently remed
through #ts wholly-ownel subsidizry, Sohura Las Vegas Corp. ("SLVC"). It also awns rental prapertics in the Drorchuester section of
Boston, Massechuseus end in Gaithersburp, Maryiand which sre both curreaily rented duough its whally-owned substdivry, SFHE ine.

The comselidated Bnancial simenents inchuded bervin have buen prepared by manapement af the Compsay pursuant 1o the rules aad
reguiations of the United Siates Svearitics and Exchange Commission {“SEC"). Centain information and fontnote disclosures normally
includid m samal fnanciel statenenis prepared i accordance with accounting prisciples generelly nouepted in the United Stsies of
Americn have been condensed or omvined porsunt 1o such rufes aid reguintions under Regulation 5-X of (he SEC, although tanagement
tselieves that the disclosures are adequate 10 1nake the information presented not misheading. To the opinion of management, all
adjustnets necissuey for a fair presentation of results for the interim perioils have been made. The results for the current unaudited three
muath periad ented Desember 31, 2040 ard not necessarity indicative of resalta 10 be expected for the full fiscal year ealed
September 30, 2081, These consolidated Suanciat starements shoukd be read in conjuaction with the consotidued fivancial statements
and rotes Bereto included i the Company's Asnual Report on Form 10-K For the year ended September 30, 2019, from which the
bafance sheet information as of that date is derivesd,

Use of Esrfusures, The preparation of thie canselidaied financind statements in conformity with accounting principics generally
aceepted in thy Linhed Suses 6f America redquies management o make estimotes that affect the seponted amounty of assets end
Hiabilitics, revenues pad expenses, snd reiated disclosures of contingent asscts aad Hebilies at the dute of the financial stasements and the
reported smounts of revenues and expenses Suring (he reporing period. Thess estitnales are based on histerics information, information
that is curtently syaitabie to the Company and on varioes other sssumptions that the Campany believes 10 he reasambl uader the
ciremmsanees, Acsual resulis coukd vory from estimates.

Dsemue Per Cammon Share, The Company computes net incame (loss} per share in sccordance with FASE ASC 260-10, Zornings
per Shure. FASE ASC 26810 requires prosentation of both basic amd difuted enrnings por share (PEPS™) un the face of the income
sintenent. Bogie EPS is computed by dividiog e loss sveilable 10 common sharcholders (numerator) by tha weighted average sumber of
sheres outstending (Generinator) during the purkod, Diluied EPS gives effect to ofl paientially dilutive common shares outstanding
during the perind. (n computing dituted BFS, the average stock prive for the pertod is used in determining the number of sheres assumed
i e pureliamed from the exercise of stock aptions or warrants, Diluted EDS excludes sl potentiutly dilutive shares if their cffeet s
sti-dijuiive, Difulive stock aptions of approximately 741,500 were aot included in calealations of diloted income per common share fir
the fiscal quarters ended December 33, 2080, snd 2009 as the optisns were ous of tie moncy and, therefore, waould be grti-dilutive. The
ealepiation would be anti-diiptive.

N

416:2016 §:33 A
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At of August 31, 2007, the Company called fur the redumption of ol outstanding shares of its Exchangeable Redoemable Preferred
Stoek @ a redemypion prive of $5,361 per share, which sun included camed snd unpaid dividends w the date of redersption. From end
afier August 31, 2007, all shares of the Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock ceased 1o be puisianding and to carn dividends. Asof
the date of the prepuration of these finuteial statements, the holders o 4,264,312 shares of the Exchangenble Redeematsle Mreferred
Sroek have surendered their sliares and received payment of the redemption price. See Nowe 4

Uninsured Depasits. Al various times daring the pered and sebsequendy, the Company malntained account batasces that exceeded
felerally insured Himits, und the risk of losses welated 10 such coheetitrations may be increasing a5 o result af soonomic develomnents
afferting financisl insinstions,

Syvestment in Merketable Securhties. Doty sccurities avaiiable-forsale ave stated fuir inarket value with upreatized gabos or
louses deterntined by the specific identification method and repurted o @ componunt of aveuminiased other comprehensive ineoime, Dbt
securities nvailahl-forsale at December 31, 2008 includes investments in corporeic bonds,

Marketable seeurilios held by Mermill Lynch, MorganSianicy Smithfluraey, Contangy Cupital Advisors, UBS Finuncdal Services,
and Imteracsive Brokers LLC are hetd for an indufiite periad ol time and thus sre classified as avaitable-forsabe securities. Realized
fvesttient gains and tosses are incleded o the cotisalidwed statemen of speratiens, as are provisions for other than wmpoory doclines
i vhe mnarket vidue of aveiahie-fise-sake securitios, Unreatized goias and unrolized Josses deemed o be weaporary are exchuded from
vasmngs {fvises), e af spplicable wxe, as 5 comsponent of other comprehensive fncome (foss), Fastors considered in judging whether
no impainnent is other than temporary include the finsnvial condition, business prespects and croditwonthiness of the issuer, the Jongth of
time that Beir vulue has been less thas eost, the relaive amount of destine, ond the Company’s shility wnd intent to botd the fuvestinent
untll e fiir value recovers, During fiscal 3011, the Company did not record an impaiement charge regarding its fnvestment in
markelalsle soourities beeause, based on mansgmaent’s eviluation of the clreumstances, manugenient bolieved that the decling in fair
value butow the cost of cortain of the Company’s marketable securities was wemporary. At December 31, 20710 and 2009, inviestments in
equity securitics availatle-forsale includud common and preferred stocks,

Inchuded i “Goin Goss) on sale of marketable seourites” in the consoliduted stitemems of operations are epproximately 399,845
and 564,278 of realized gain for the guuster ended Deeember 31, 2010 anel resbizny oss Tor the quarter ended Decembar 3, 2009,
respectively. The Company recorded spprosimately S04 millian and S(.1) miltion of ather comprehensive iovome (loss) essociated with
wareatized gains and Josses on these imvestmenis during the gearter ended December 35, 2010 amd 2009, respoctively.

The fuffowing is a summnury of available-forsnle marketalle securities us of December 21, 2000 and Sepember 30, 2010 {amowss
toy the rearest thousandl,

343141
Unreallaed Lizrendized Markel oy
Cusd Guin ebasaed ¥rir Valne
ol securities S RA8Y 3 64 I £ B84
Eauity sceurities 10,357 2 1 (25} 10,461
Tenal Sikile 5 Bl 5954 $ 18,745
LR
Linsenllend © Unreeiiaed Marketor
Cintt Goin [Lusses} Fulr Value
Dok seourities § 207 £ 42 S % 10,208
Equiity securities 8,407 616 (1459 1564
TFotat FIR214 $ 1045 T {1,488) g7
M.
13 afdd 4/652016 8:53 AM
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The following s 2 summary of the net enreabized paing and losses ag presentad in Accumulated Other Comprehensive lngome as of
Drecember 31, 2010 and September 30, 2030 {amouats 1o the nearest thousend).

1341/
M. Drber
Unzealizet Qareabized Tieferesd Cemprebensive
{nrpstized {Lasies} (faszra) Tasen toewme
Brasriptlun Calni Shori-Term Leng-Term {Hmelly tLuesy
ekt Seruritics Y 64 g 0 & (35) £ 9 L ih
Equity Seeurities B9 o {815 {34 {62
Totad 5 HES b3 9 8 {954 S {2%) b (46}
A0
Ace. IMir
tnrvattzed bnroutived Dafesved Compreheniive
Unreatleed [Lastsex) {Losses} tases fatume
Destriptios Cralng Shers ~Torm 1 Tarny {Henafit) {Luts)
et Socuritive 5 4 % {34} £ {3 5 4t 3 I6t
Equity Sceuriies 416 15 {1,452} {7953 {348)
Total § 1udh 5 {31} % {1435} § (154} % (287}

The Company recorded the combines totat of unrealized gains snd (fosses) disctosid I the abave ables, on the balange sheet with
(524 45 retsined carmings - other comprehensive ingome, sad 35% s deferved incomu 1axcs, in the emoents shown in the shove rabiles.

The folowing is 8 summary of the proceeds fom the sale of marketable sceurities and the galng or losses reclassified {rertized)
from Over Compreheraive Income (OCT) as of December 31, 2010 and 2068 {aemounts to the nearest thousand):

Thenerbpsion
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Equity securities
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Revenus Recagnitien, Cosino revenue is recorded 8s the aggregate of gaming wing und Josses. Haed, foad and beverage,
enturtainmon and other operating rovenues ere recognized g services are performed. Casine revennes are recognized net of conain sales
fncefitives in sccordance with FASB ASC 60550, Revanue Recopnition, Customer Payments asd ingentives. Accordingly, cash
incentives to customers for gembling, and the cash value of paints snd coupens ezmed by the slat club members unuting 30.§ mithion and
0.1 miblion for the quanier ended Decenber 35, 2003 and 2009, respectively, have been recognized s o direct reduciion of casino
revenue. Advime depasits oo mems, i any, aee reeonked pg deforred rovenis unbil services ure provided 1o the custotes.

tn necordnnce witlh industry practive, the retad] value of room, food, hoverage and other services fumished to the Company's guesis
without charge Is included in gross revense snd then deduciud as promotional ullowanees, The esimated rewsd! value of such promoticnal
allowsnees is included in revenues for the guerter cided December 31, 2018 and 2009 s otlows (amounts 10 tlia nearest thousand):

LTI}

Foad and beverage 355} £757
Haotet (e 150
Chibwer 1 2

‘Taial $661 1609

Rentat revenue Trom sental propectios I8 recognized a3 eamed o5 2 straight-lise basis over the tevm of the lease, When reatat
payinems seceived exceed ronts camed and recomtized, the differenee is recorded as deferred rental income in the habilites seerion of the
balanes shect, md conversely, when reats eamed and recognized exeved rental payments received, the differeee is recorded as other
AT

Ay i i et

Cateentratinngs, The Cempiny's primery operations ans concentrated in the genptaphis arca of Laughlin, Mevada snd in the hotel
crst casing indusiey. As o result, the Company is at risk of unfavorsble changes in genasal ceonomic eonditions including secession,
coonomic stowdown, o Wigher fuel or aiher trensponation costs. These factars muy reduce disposable income of casino patrons or result

i fewer patrons visiting casigos.

The Company owas resl estaze on the Las Vegas Steip in Las Vegas, Nuvada and on the Bast Coast of the United States. Altbosgh
the Company is presently not depentent on cash flows from these properties, ¢ sigoificant decline in reaf estwte vabuos in these matkits
could kinve oo fmpaet on e Company’s shility (o readily generaie cash flow from the real csute,

s
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Concersrations of reventse by seginent for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 nnd 2009 follows {amounts to the nearest
thousand}:

Wi
Pionecr $3,287 (4%
o ==
Rental propertics held for dsvesinews 51,816 jﬁ%
Dther and clhiminations £ D %4
[ [
1687
Dionesr 51,050 62%%
] -3
Renal properties held for investiment %1,583 J0%
Cither und efiminations ¥ 834 LA

Rerent Acceunting Propunagenus. FASH ASC 820-18: In Junuury 2010 the FASR issum Accounting Standards Update
208006 ASL 2010-06), Fuir Valve Measwsements and Disclosures (Tanic 830 Improving Disclosures abont Fair Value
Mearnrements. This amendinent to Topic £20 has improved disclosures abawt fair value measurements on the basis of input received
from the users ol financial staternents, This is effuctive for interim and annual reporting pericds beginning after Decombier £5, 2009,
xeeqt for the disclosures ehout purchiases, sales, fsseances, and scitlements in the roil forward of activity in Level 3 fair value
mensrements, Those disclosures ere effective for fiscal years heginning sfier Degmber 15, 2080, and for futerim periods within thase
fiaeal yours. Early ndoption is pernisted, The Compaity deces ot expexl the provisions of ASU 2010-06 to have s malerist cffict on the
financind pasition, results of opetations or cash flows of the Coinpany.

3. FEDERAL INCOME TAX

Peferred incime taxes wee roported for lming differences hetween flems of istome or expense roparted in the Nnancinl starements
asd thase repaied fur income wx pumoses in aeconlance with FASE ASC F40- 14, Income Taxes, which regives the use of the
assetflinbility methed of zccounting for income taxes, Deferred fivome taxes and 1ax besrefis are recognized for the fuum tax
cunsequences aitributsble o differenees betwesn the fnancal sisenieat CamTying amounts of existing essets and Lishifities and thelr
Fuspective tax buses, erd for tox loss and credit camy-forwards. Deferned tnx assels arid Habilitdes are measured using enaeted 1ax rates
exprected 1 epply 10 taxable income in the years in which thase temporary $ilTerences are expesied to be recovered or seitled, The
Company provides for deferred (mxes for the estimated Reure tax effects attributable to wmpomey differences sad camrylorwards when
realization 1 more likely than oot

A RELATED PARTIES

The Company's Chaiman of the Bourd and CEQ has persomally guuranteed certain loans for which the Company has acgrued B
{oan guermtes fee equal to 0.5%5 of the guaranteed Joan balance pur calendar guarter, There was so significant chonge during the current
quarter frown the $0.1 million balance during the quarter ended! December 31, 201 arad, 2009,

The Company is subjeet 1o a Pateal Rights and Royalty Agreomen with the brather of the Company’s Chairman of the Board uid
CEOY will rospeet t cettain gaming technology for which he bad heen fssucsl 4 patent, The Company agreed 10 py cortain royaity
pryrents with wespest to the echinology incorporated into grming devices plaved In opuratios, o3 well as costs refaied to maintain the
patent, The paienthalder pranted the Company an exclusive fivesyear ficense shat expired in Japuery 2007 inthe

REN
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Unfsed States with respect 10 the technelogy, but which automaticatly renews for in addational two-year terms unless the Company
terminates the agreement. The Company ulso has on undersumiling with the wlated party petemibiolder that it will pay for the costs of
commercial development of the techuology. Through Decembier 31, 20140, the Company b expended approximately 304 millian for
counmercisl duvelopment of the lechnology, snd no addisional casts have been crpended. There were no sapendijures incurred during the
three momh petiods ended December 3t 2010 and 2009, No ruyahics were paid to the prientholder dusing the perfods praseated.

On January 14, 2008, nongualified stock optians weee cxercised by bisk the brothier and son of the Company's Chairmsn of the
Buand 2nd CEO, which were granted wnder the Company's 1993 Stock Option Plan. The date of the prants was Jaouary 2F, 1988 and the
exercise price was S1.00 per share, 58,425 shores were exeroisod by the brother und 54,425 shores were exereised by the son. Bath the
brother and sea paid the par value of $0.01 for cach share of stack exercised, und signed & promissery note for the remaining balance,
The sun pald bis prowissory note in full, in July 2014, and the remtaining balanee of $57.84 1, shown as Notes yeceivable from
stackholders, in the Company's December 31, 2010 balnce shueet, is from the brother,

On Qetober 13, 2087 the Company sold 5 2008 Ford F-150 SuperCrow Shan Bud vehicle owned hy the Company and trans{ermed
under & proseissory instathnent noie to the soa of the Cempunys Clhairman of the Board and CEQ. The promissory instaliment note was
amended on April 12, 2010 o have o gayment puriod of tweive months with o payofi on or befure April 15, ZH 1. The remaining batance
ol §19,575 i inciuded in Avcounts receivablc, net, in the Company ‘s Decermbur 3%, 2010 kalanee sheet,

4. PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT OF GAITHERSBURG PRODERTY

On May 28, 2009, the Company, through fts whelly owned subsidiary SFHI, LLEC (“SFHI™, entered {pto n Parchase snd Sele
Agresient {the "Agreement”) with Momgomery County, Maryland ((he “County™) whereby the County will purchase SFHI's 51.57 aers
patect of land toguther with e apgroximately 341,693 square feel office building ereatid thereon (the “Gaithersburg Property™}, locaied
at 10 Edison Park Deive in Gaithersburg, Maryland, The purchase price for the Property will be §76.3 million. The Agreement providoed
the County with 2 90-day feasibility period duriig which the County Sotennined that the Preperty & suftable for iis intended use, and the
Crunty witl now process B close werow by natilying the Company of the closing date, which closing daiz may be po later than
April 30, 204,

Simulmneonsly with the execstion of e Purchase and Sale Apreoment. the Covnty entered into a sublzase with the exisiing tena
of BIHE ut this bocation, GXS, ine . wherchy the County, a5 of Ovtober 1, 2B, beused nnd eccupied the entire Galthersbirg Proporty
untel the eastier of () completion of its purchase of the Gaithenhurg Prapesty or (i) Apri 30, 3014, Purstsan Lo the appliceble provisions
ol the existing hase with GXS, Ine., SFHI consented to the sultfease In sddition, OXS, Ine. agreed to pay SFHE the sum of $2.4 million,
£1.7 million of which was paid o Outeber 1, 289, with the balance of $0.4 million pald on July 1, 2010. Due to the ponding sale of this
prapeny, the related results of operations have been reported us discontinued ofierations,

33
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Jtesers Helid For Sete. The Company reviewed the guidance provided by FASE ASC 360-10-45-11, and thus has classificd the
assets nssoeiated with the Guithersburg propenty as held for sale. The following teble summarizes the components clnssified as beld for
sale o5 of Decernber 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010 (mnounts to the nearest thousandy:

1134118 g L
Current porsion af delerred rem 5 5071 £ 468
Long-temy sssels held for sale

Loan lssue Cost H 713
Defermed Henl i,754 1,593
Propserty and equipment
Lasd 13,060 23,000
Buildings & Improversients 346,600 36,600
Muchinery & Eguipniend 3,800 3000
Allawance for depreciation {10,854) {10854}
Assets hekd for sale 34,171 54,362
Tunal % 54,678 % 35831

Liabitiries On Assets Held For Safe, The Company issued spproximstely $35.4 million of first morigage debn with a 7.01% injerest
Pl ot anauim it comacction with its seqeisitien ofa commercial office uilding located in Gaithershurg, Marylond, The building is
ynder lease shrough Apeil 2014, The munthly lease payments arc applicd against the putstunding indebiodness, Manthty principaf sod
fterust payvinents gmartizu The debt to spprosismately 58223 srillion by the enst of the leese in April 2014, The Cumpany anticipares that
the future tenant payments rebated 1 the net lesse witl be sufficient o Tund required payments snder the frst mongage noies and Intemat
Revenue Dode of 1986 Sectinn 467 deb. The principle balance as of December 31, 2040 s September 30, 2010 was $36.4 million and
$37.3 milion, respetively. The following debt mble fs releted t assets held for sale (ameunts to the nearest thiousead):

113 FALAL
Taterst payahle § 146 § 45
Cumem partion of deby Laens 3,573

Tuns) current fubility kR-241 3,18
Long-tenn dubs luss eurrenl porion _3nse4 33541
ot Qe S

The monthly keosy pyments are applicd ngainst the cutstuading indeitedness. Monthly principad and interest payments wraortize
the debi 10 appragimately $22.3 million by the end of the fease in April 2014. The Company sntécipates thn the fature tenand payments
related 1o the st leases will be s lFiziont to fand required payments under the first mangage sots ang Section 467 debt. The following
1able shows the et relsted 1o the Gaithershurg Property to be pafd by year until the propeity is sold (amounts to the nearest thowssnd):

281 LS
i ! 3,087
3 4,445
o4 2810
Total 548,264
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Dlveusminued Operattons, As a rosult of the perding saic of the Guithersburg Fropeny. the result of operations relsted to the
Grithersburg Praperty has been reflovted as discontinued operstions,

The Gaithershung Progeity is u building used for commerein office space. The property Is uader 8 net lease throuph 2014 with a
singhe tenans, Under the fease, the tepan is responsibie for submiantially gl ohitigations related 1o the property. The property wits sequined
for §62.6 mittion, plus debt issgapca costs of 32.7 mition. The Company paid $9.9 million in cash sad isseed 5354 miflion in
nonrecours first mortgage indebtedness. The Contpany aliseaied rpproximacty 323.0 miltion of the purchade price to land, $3.0 miltion
1 machivery aad cquipment and the balance to building and improvements,

“The following tatde shows the schedule of rent proceds tha will be used o meet lutere detd obtigations relsivd to the Gaithersbutg
Property wril it is sold (mnounts to the nesrest thousamd);

pIEE 26511 1013 W “Total
Galthersburg Propony 4807  $8,2a8 86425 84257 531552

5. OPENMARKET PURCHASES OF COMPANY COMMON STOCK

1n Becember 2008 and June 2619, the Boand of Dircetors of the Company appraved tie Company's adeption of plans, effective
Jamtary 5, 2009 and June 30, 2010, for thiy Company to make putiedic and ongolng open market putchases of uy to 5.0% of its Dwn
cammen stock {up to 0.3 million sharee of common stock) and 4.7 miltion shares, rospectively, in pecardance with Rube 104-18 (the
Ryl of the Rales snd Regulations Promulgated Under The Securitics Exchange Act O 1934 {the “Act™), and, more specificelly, in
wepordasce with SEC Release Mo, 33-8335 {the “Release™). Acting i compliance with the Releasc iz a *safe harbor' and approved
method 0 make apen markes purchuses of & company s own commen stock in comnptizace with the Rule without theae purchases being
dermmud manipulative under the Act.

The Rule and Release mpose certain speci fio restricnions on the Company 6s fo purchrses of 15 own common shares. These includo
apectily sestrictions 2s to tining of open market pirchases, manner of perchases, priviag of prchases and when purchases will {end wili
not) b allawed.

The Rule and Release nlso mundate cerfain sddiliona! and perfodic disclosures that twe Company must mike eoncerning the epen
market purchuses in its Series 10 filings (Report on Formy HEK wed 100,

On January §, 2010, the Company perehased 2 grosping of shares of commus siock of the Company suificient o cause 10
efietively resch the meximen shares aliolted to be purchased parsuant 1o i Rule and Releage seferenced above {when combined with
prios program purchases since Dovember 2008), Aga result, the Company, on Jenusry 13, 2010, aancunced the vinse of the comiman
stugk purchasy progrra with an efivesve date of Jenuary 8, 2014,

Sinpe the snuancoinent of the June 13, 2010 progrum, po putchases of ks common stock hid been made by the Cempany, until
Novenber 3, 2018, ut witich time tite Comprany beeame legally obligated {o purchase 2 grouping of 0.2 milion sharas of ils cnamon
stock, cavsing thy Company t reach the ntasizum shares alfotied 1o be purchased purstant o the Rele und Rukease referenced in the
first paragragh shove, As a rosull, on November 3, 2010, the Campany annncaeed e chese of the common stogk purchase program
eferencud sbove.

15
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The table below summarizes the Company s buy back of s common stock for the last 124nomth pericd ended Decomber 31,3010
{mnounts 1o the pearcess thousund creept for amounis reparted por shaee):

£} Tosad Number uf {80 Matteoun Nurelr
{2} Taia) Shweey (or Units} for Appreshmate Daltar

Numher of b} Averopr Furchesed 2 Purt Vatue) of Stares {or
Sharcs (o7 brrive Paid per of Pubicly Lrodtad eisuk May Yer Be

Linlts} Bhare e Aznnanerd Flaoier Purchasek Under the

_!:gﬂgx_j_ Trarchased Liait) Prosenmy Plans s Yregrams
Beginning balance 16 § 1v.56 ib 30
Jusiwary 2010 298 1350 314 2
Februiry HHU 1 0 314 2
Marelhi 2010 1t 0 314 1
April 2030 ] it 34 z
May 2810 o i1 14 2
June 20ED 0 0 314 2
July 2010 G 0 314 225
Aupguss 20153 0 t] 4 225
Septsmber 2010 | b 4 235
Cretoher 2610 b ] 3i4 235
Muavember 200 a {i 3 213
Decumber 2HG 225 12.50 534 225
Junnery 2011 iy H 583 H
Ending balanee 339 k4 1336 339 9

As of Ducenther 3, 2010, the Company is bolding 0.5 million shoses in truasury.

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Redemptian Of The Gampany’s Preferred Stock And Redamation Price Dispres. The Company catied alf outsinnding shares af
its Exchanguable Redeomable Preferred Stock for redemption on and 1s of Auguse 31, 2007, 6 a redemption price of $5.241 per share,
which sum inchuded necreed and utpaid dividends to the dute of redemption. From and afier August 31, 2007, olf shares of the
Exchangeably Redeemnable Prefermd Srack coased (6 be pulstanding 2ad to scerue dividends. As of Febiruary 14, 2011, the holders of
4.3 million shares of e Exchangesble Rudeemable Prefemsd Stoek have surrestdored their shares nad received payment af the
redempion price; while 0.2 nuilion shares have yut ta e warrendered nad st have the right to receive their payment due without
interest. As of Becember 3, 2010 and Suplember 30, MO, erchangusble redeerhle preferred siock -~ ynredvemed was $0.8 miflion
and 50.8 million, respeatively.

On August 27, 207, a grovp ol pstitutionnd inveseors Bled an setion agningt the Campany in she United States Bistrivl Caun,
cntitled DE Skaw Lasninse Pordolios g sl v Archon Comparion, District of Mevada, Cuse No, 207-ov 1146, The Complainy was
subsequentty smended to add an nddinane] pany plalntiff (otlectivaly, the “Flaindfls"), The Amended Complaint: (i) secks o finding by
the Courl tat the Company has breaghied i obligations under the Company’s Centifieate of Besignation of the Preferrcd Stock, dated
Sepember 36, 1993 (the “Conifienie™), and awnrding the Plaintiffs il compensation of uny and it available damages suffercd by the
Phttatiils a5 & result of the Compuny’s beeach of the Curiificate; {ii) secks a finding by the Court thiy the Company's issuance of its
rudemption notice with un unproper redermgstion price is sn anticipasory breach of n waterial tesm of the Certificate and awarding the
Plainti s Tk compensation of any amd aif pvailabile damages suffered Bs a result of the Company's smicipatory breach of the Certfieats,
(iti} secks 2 decharation by the Court vt the dividends be properly cafoulated and compounded per the terms af the Certificats in an
aincunt pot less than $7.2 mikion up through and fncluding the date of (an) judgmen, fiv) seuks sn order fravn the Coun galling for the
Corepany to weissburse the Plaintls’ attorseys” foes, cxpenses and costs tncurred it enfurcing thelr rights; end (v) seeks such other and
further rediel zv the Court may deem approprisle.

RIS

hitp:fiwww.sec.goviArchivesiedgardam/812482/00011931251104029...

47672016 8:53 AM

PA282



Form 10-Q2

200l42

R IS PPN T Y - SREERERS RN i A e N Y P N i I N R SR A

Thlite of Contents

The Plaintilfs, thercafter, Bled & sunion for partiat summary judgment, seeking o ruling from the cours that the Company breached
its obligations under the Cenificate by cafvulating the redemption price as it did, The Coust grantesd thid motion o Augest &, 2008,
finding the lznguage of the Centificate to bu urambiguows snd thet the redemption price should Bave been calculated differentiy.
Subisequent to the Courts ruting on the motio for partial summary judgmeat, Plaintifls Rlod a mation for entry of final judgment,
seeking entry of judgment that the redemption price for the preferred sheres shoutd have been $8.69 per share, On December 22, 2140,
the District Court granted thst motion wad entered judgment againg e Conpany bn te amount of §9,5 millicn. The Bistrict Courn based
its devision primerily on its ordey from August of 2008, The Company has Fled a motion for reconsiderasion of the District Court’s
Decermlser 22, 2010 arder, That motion has been fully brictid and is pendiag befors the Pictrizt Coun. In the event the motion far
seconsideration is desied, the Cmpany intends 1 appest the District Court’s division w the Nints Clreait Court of Appeals.

The Company has initiated procondings sgrinst s third-pany faw Brn concerming i firn"s poteatial Habitisy related 10 the drafting
of the Certificate of Designation. This thisdspecty sction has subsequently been rompved by the defendant taw firm to Federal Court in
April, 2000 srad is o8 on curly stage of resnlution, The defeadant low finn has moved to compel arbitration of the dispute. The Magisiraie
Judpe issud an order that the maker be reforred 4o urbiration and the Distrivt Count confirmed that arder The Company fnends so
pursue its claims sgaing the defendant law fhm in arblimtion. The Company i5 alee considering rights and remedies it may have with
regard 10 other partivs who participated in the fssuance of the Prefirred Stock B the event thas the Company dos not prevail on its
interpretasion of the Cortifivate,

Also, two other holiers of e Exchingrable Redeomable Preferred Stovk Bled Complaints, both ableging essentinfly the same claim
as the first complaint related 1o the case set forth immedintely above, The two other lawsuits brought by former holders of the
Exchangeatde Redeemable Prefered Siock are entitled Ralnero v, Apchon Corporstion, Disirict of Nevida, Cuse No. 2:067-¢v-D1553, and
Leewird Capitat, 1.2 v. Arshon Comesptios, Distrier af Novada Case No, 40800007, 1F the plaisi s in these two addhional actions
are correet, th redemption price os of August 31, 007 should have been $8.69 per share and not 35241 per share a caleulaed by the
Campany. |1 spplive 0 ofi the then outstanding shares of Exchangezble Bedeermable Preferred Stoek, including the shares leld by the
Campany’s officers and disectors, valuation of the redemption price st $8.69 pet share would increase the redemption price in excuss of
A15.2 milfion.

i thee Lepward Copltal matier, bath the Leoward Plaindls and the Campany have filed mations for sutpmary judginent. The
Leewsrd Plainifis made argamonts similar to the Lamisar Plaictils in their motion. On Drrember 22, 2010, the Distict Cour issued an
wrder gramting the Lepwaed Ilaiatifls maotion {or summary pdgment on the same grounds as e Laming onder and donying Archon's
tnetion withiut sralysiv, Comempormeoss with tha [ing of the Besember 32, 2018 prder, the Distria Couet entered pudgment in favor
of the Leeward Piaimifls and against the Company it the amaunt of S5 iiilion, The Company has filed 2 motion for reconsidetion of
the Diziriet Court's Decemter 12, 2010 order. That metion hae been fully tricfed and is pending before the Disteict Tourt, b the event
<o mution for recanstderation is denicd, the Compuny intends to uppeat the Diswrizt Tourt's desision to the Ningls Cireuit Court of
Appiesls.

Fie Ruinery sotion is purported to be brought on behall of Bavid Reincre individually as well as a class of al} former prefirred
shurehohiers, sithouph g cless has pet v boen certifiod by the District Coan, Plainti? Rasers fited o motion {or class centification in
Decomber of 201 which the Company intends o appose. The Campany’s opposition brel to the motion for class certificmion is dug
February 15, 2041, Mr. Ruinera wis deposed in caly Jinawy of 2011

e
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The Cownpany plans 1o appead the Distriet Couet’s decisions o the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, The Cuompany beHeves that it lins
valich s jn Taw nnd Tact to overturn or appest these verdicts. As e result, the Cumpaay believes tha affirmation of the judgmenis is
possiliie but not probable, and, sacordingly, thist the amount of any luss cannot be roasonzbly estimaied at this time, Beeause the
Comypany betieves that this potential foss is not probabie or esiimable, it has nat recorded any reserves o cttinpencies related to this
Tegal matter, In the event tiat the Company’s essumptions used to cvatunls this mratier 25 peither probable sor estimable changs in futars
periods, it will be required to record & Hability for an adverse auteome, which may inchide pust-indgment interest,

%Y. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Conapasy's Stock Option Pan provides for the grant of up 0 appeoximately 1.3 mitlion (net of options proviously excreised)
shares ol its common stock 10 Yoy employecs, Curreatly there are spproximately 9.5 miltion stock opions avattable for grint, The Stovk
Qion Blen provides for both ineentive sock opions and non-qualified siock eptions. Stock option grants generally vest overa
thrue-year period from the employes’s Bire dute. No aptions were granted during the quarier saded December 31, 2010 and 2009, As of
Decemiber 31, 2014 and 2009, there wers approximately 8.7 mitlion oplivns cutstanding and cxerciazble under the Stock Option Plan,
Dhuring; the guaner onded Decamber 31, 2010 and 2809, na options were euercised or granted.

The outstanding options huve cxpiration dates through 2018 and bave an sverage rersaing Lif of approximately 6.0 years. The
averape sxerchie prive of the avtstending options at Decomber 31, 2810 was approsymtely $28.409,

BPEY Ine., SLVC and PHI (colloutivaly, the " Subsidieries™), hove pdopted subsidiaty stock ption plans (the “Subsidiary Plans™).
The Subsidiary Plans provide lor she grunt of optiens by coch of the Sobshdiarics with respest to on pgregaic of up to 16%% of the
outstanding shares of such Subsidiary™s Common Siock 1o crmployess, nun-eployee directars, consultanis or alfitintes of the Company
o e Subsidiuries. The purpose of the Subsidiacy Mats i$ to erable the Subsidiaries and the Company 4 atract, retain and mosivase
their employees, nonemployke dirediors, consultants and aifilistes by providing fer or increasing the proprictary intovest of such persnns
in the Sebsitiarics. Af of December 31, 2010, np options hud been granted under any of the Subsidiary Plaas.

The follawing tnble summarizes stock uption astivity during the first fiscal quarier 2033 srber nif plans {amounts to the nearest
thousand excepl for por share smonntsh

Widhsod~ Weighied-
Averagh Averege
Rumber Lxervise Remaining Apgrepate
uf Bsdes Contragtusl Inirinsie
AHAreY Por Share Term Yistuee
Options outstanding s Septamber 30, 2060: 43 £ 1509 6.3 yrs ${10,447)
Girantixd G NiA KA NIA
Exercised ] NiA MNIA HiA
Canceled [ NiA NA M
{ptinns uwtstunding at Devarnber 31, 210 732 5 .09 &4 yrs {11,85M
Options exercisable ot Decomber 31, 2040 742 $ 2809 6.4 yes 5(14,85T)

A of Decemtier 31, 2010, there was o bnresagnized compussation cost reluted to unvesied stock eplions.
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8. SUPPLEMENTAL MECLOSURE OF CASI FLOW INFORMATION

Supplamenial disclosure of cash Bow information for the guarter ended December 31, 2010 and 2062 45 presentesd below (amoeunts
10 the nearest thousaad):

EERHED B3
Operating sctivities;
Cash paidd during the perlod for interest ~ continuing operations 51,044 $i,007
ot ASRNTRN
Cash paid during the period for interest - discontinued operations 5 683 3
Non-cash tavosong and Neascing activities:
tinrealizesd gains (fosses) an securitivs 3 364 $ (1013

g, SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s apuerstions nre in the hotebcasino industry and the rental of commereial reat estate properties. The Company’s
hutehcasing operations are condacied at the Moicer in Laughfin, Nevadu. As discussed above, the Company nwns rent propertics held
for faveatment in the Dorchester section of Boston, Massschuscts and Las Vegas Suip, Nuvada. “Assets Held for Sale® below inclodes s
reniod propeny in Gaithersburg, Marylend. “Other aitd Elvinmions” below invlades financiat information for the Company's corponits
aperativss, 2djusted to reflest eliminutions upon consolidation

affe
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Set furh butow is the unsudied Bnanciat information for the supmenis, which the Company aperatcs, s of and for the quarter
ended December 38, 2010 and 2009 {amuunts to searest thousand).

P11y WS

Pinneer Jiote]
Net ppurating rovenies % 3287 5 1959
Opaerating foss {496} (872
Deprecintion 134 137
Interes] @xpense g {
Interest e other oo a G
Less before income tases (435) (#8733
Caphat expondipuees f transfers 54 3
Identifinble agsets 11 11,558 LEROG

Rentud Fropertivy:
Nt operating revenucs € 1835 % 1883
Cperating insome 1073 1,250
Depreciation 421 424
Inlerest expense 1,426 1,162
Interest and other inctme G &
incuine bofore incotms s 148 1582
Capital expenditures / transfees 0 hj
Pdentifinbie negers 20 878940 3,344

Axseen el for Safe:
Net opersting Tevenses 5 i 5 ¢]
Ciperating ncome a
Depreciution ¢ o
Intorest eaponse ] 0
{mcrest and olher income [E &
Mscontinued aperstions, net of tax 477 503
Capita} expenditures  transfers { 0
Ifeeifinhie agors (0 44,171 55,242

Qehror and Elimiputionss .
Net oporating revenus § ¢ £ 53
Dperating income (714) {354%
Depresiation a3 L)
Interest eapense 1 2
iterost omd by ineoine RA¢X] kitpl
Loss hefore inetme xes {3180} {it9)
Copital expenditores / trasslees 3 Q
tdentifiuble pesets D 30,950 41,118

Tustal:
Not operaling revenes 5 514 5 63%
Operating neome {loss) 97 24
Depeeciation 5% 504
Interest exponsy 1,526 1,104
interost and prher ineome 193 366
trcotne before Inesing Wxes {738} {839)
Discuntinucd operations, net of tux 477 §93
Cupitul expurditurss / transfees 57 K}
bentifiuble uasets D 134,169 PO FOG

Ui gaennfiable assets represent total assers less climination for intureonipany Hems

-}
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frew 2, Munggement’s Discussion wad Anslyyis of Finungial Conditlon and Hesylts of Operstions

This discussion is intended to fusther ihe resder's wmderstanding of tie cunsolidsted financial condition and results of aperations of
Archon Comporatian (the “Company® or “Archon™) |3 should be read in conjunction with, and is qualificd in is entirety by, the financisl
statements and sorcs thereio aad other informution inctuded in this quarterly seport on Form 10-Q end the Company’s snaun! report on

Form 10-K for the year ended Septumber 30, 2080, These histerteal firancial sistements may not be indicative of the Company™s Ruture
perfrnnance.

Cvepviow: uf Business Qperativuy witd Teends

Historizally, the Company, lins vwied, mansged and operated hotelicasing praperiies through a number of acquisitions or
evelosenonts, and it bas divested isell of certain of these praperties, Presendy, the Company operates the Pisoeer in Laughlin, Nevada.

Thie Pioneer has experienced o decline of its rovenues over the last few yuars afier experigucing strong revenue and profit growth in
the early 199's. Management believes the increase in the gumber of casina prapectics on Native American lands in such nearby
tocatlons as Califorsia and Arizons witkin the last dezade has coused revenue declines. I response, the Company Tocused on markel
definition and dovelopment in the Jocal Leughlin srea fo maintsin profiability. Unexpestedy difficult cosnomic conditions impastieg
customers, inchuding refatively high fuel costs, has significantly redused dispisable income, and linited costemer travel and gaming
astivity, Masagesnent believes Lawghlia is o mature merket with marginal growth ferceasted or the next few years bosed on it cument
development plans. Manageimens believes e roeent revinus nnd] expense trends in its Langhlin botelfusine propaty may not change
sipnificontly aver the pext fiw years, or until the current ceanomie conditions and treads begin to materially improve.

The Company ulss owns rental propertics on the Enst Const aed on the Las Vegas Strip, b revenues fromm shese rental propenties
are wsed W met dioir relased mongszes atul thus do not contribety significant nat cash Now to the Company.

Agxess Hedd far Yoty

During fiscad yoar 2008, the Company sequired cernin praperties ax part of an |RE Seetiun 103) exchanyge, The propesty beld for
e i locuted in Gadthersburg, Maryiand (he *Gaithershurg Brapuity”). The Company sceuired the Gaithershurg Property and
poprecosrse tebt asneted with the Gaithersburg Property which 5 subiuet 10 a fongetenn lense, A tenuot remits payment to the bank
sceording to the tenns of the fease and now. The payments are used ta Hguidate the nonreveurse debis obligations. Rental incuine is
recorded by the Company on i straight-iine basis and il approshmaely $5.6 milion sanually snd will sematn ot this Teved wull
appeasimately 2014 o el the asset s sold, otherwise disposed of or heeomes impaired. The boildings on the Gaithersburg Property sre
n banger buing depreciated subseguent t the classification buing changed from a rental propesty beld for investment to assets held foc
saie. literest expense s alzo secorded hased on (he oulstanding poarccobrse deby rematning 10 be paid ond based on unamartized toen
fssue voss and remaining debi amortization timetubles. At any tisie duding the term of the fease and debt amortization, the fair market
value of the Gaithersburg Bropenty may be dillerent from its busk valucs. Interest is presently buing expensed 9t spproximately £
midlice anovally and will deerease in refation 1o deba prinzipal sedupiions through 2044 or until the asset is sold, otherwise disposcd ol ot
begomes impaired.

S
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On May 28, 20809, ihe Compary, tirough its wholly ewned subsidisry SFHE, LLC (“SFHI™), entored into a Perchase and Sate
Agresment {the “Agreemen”) with Monsgomery County, Maryland {(he “County™) whershy the County will purchase SFHE'S 51.57 aere
paruel of land wgether with an approximately 341,693 square feot office building crected (hercon comprising the Gaithersburg Propenty,
located ot 100 Edison Park Drive in Gaithershurg, Maryland. The purchase price for the Guithersburg Propery will be $76.3 inilllon, The
Apreement pravided the County with g Y0-day feasibility period during which the County determined tha the Galthersburg Propenly is
suitnhle for its intended vse, and the County with pow proceed (o clirse eserow by notifying the Comprny af the closing date, which date
may he no later thun Apnt 39, 2014,

Simuitaneous with the exevation of the Purehase and Sule Agreemunt, the County entered into 1 sublease with the existiny tenant of
SFHL 21 1his location, GXS. Ine., wherehy the County, 88 of Qetober §, 3009, leased and oceupied the cotive Galthershurg Property until
the earfier of (i} compledon of s purchase of die Gaithersburg Property ot {ii} Aprif 30, 2014. Pursuant o the applicsbic provisions of
the existing tease with GXS, Ine, SFHL conseated to the spblease, B acdition, GXS, e, agreod to pay SFHI the swin of S2.1 millios,
£1.7 million of which was paid on Octaber 1, 2069, with the helanee of 0.4 milfion paid on July 1, 2010, Due to the pending sale of the
Gaithersburg Propeny, (e relmed results of operations fave heen reponied as discontinued eperations. Sce Nates fo Conselidated
Fincial Statemens, Nate 4, Puhase and Sule dgreement of Gaithersburg Property

Hemrat Praperties

Puring fisezt year 2001, the Cowpany sequired veriwin rentad propety as part of an [RS8 Seexion 1031 exchange. The rental propeny
is tocnted in the Dorchester section of Bosion, Massachosetts {the “Dorchester Praperty™). The Compuny sequired the Darchoster
Propenty with improvemunts and nonrecourse debl associsred with the Dorchiester Propenty which is subjeet to v long-term fese, A
tenant remits payments 1o 3 brak according o the teoms of the Yease amd note. The payments are used to liguidate the poprecourse deb
ohlightions. Renal income is recunded by the Company ot n strnighi-dine basis and toinls spproximately 36,7 mikion annually wnd will
rumain 8 this level et approximately 2020 or umil the psset is sold, oiherwise disposed of or becomes impaired. The tuitdangy on the
Dorchuster Praperty ore being depreciated an a siraipht-line basts and e degreciation expease is approximately 1,7 million eanually
aned witl resmain a8 this fevel vt spproximately 2041 ar umtil thee pssct s sold, atherwise disposed of or breomes Impafred. fnierest
wapense is reconded bused on the amstending nonrecouese debt remainiog (o be patd based oo ungmcrtized foan fssue costs anmd
rumalning debt amortization timelsbivs, Atany time during the term of the leuse ead debt aman tzatian, the fabr market values of the
Darchester Property may be different from its book vadue, beerest is provently bring expensed 2t approximstcly %18 million annvally oo
5 seraight-line basis through 2026 or wnil the assetis soldl, herwise disposed of or breomes impaired.

The Company twns, thromgh its wholly owned subsidiary, Suharn Las Vogos Corp. {“SLYE™), mn approsimately 27-acre parcet af
jand {the “Sirip Properly”) locuied on ihe east sice of Las Viges Boulevard South, to the south of Sahura Avenue, The Company
presemily leases porions of the Strip Property fo twa dif¥event lessees for an aggrogate srsount of §9,508 per month, Thi feases muay be
termingted i tie event the propeny is solid or develaped by the Company. fer addition, the Company leused the halsace of the property on
o shartorm basis for $25.000 per month Tar the four month perind commencing December 1, 2010 and ending March 35 p IR

PN
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Critiood Acopuniing Policles and Extistates

The preparason of these condensed corsolidated Bnancial statements in confanmity with accouniing principlies penerally scoepled
in the United States of America requires masagement to make estimites el fudgments thit affoet the reporied anounts of asscts and
Yahifitics and the disclosure of contingont assets and ligbitities at the date of the finencial statements and the reporied smounts of
revenues snd expenses dusing e reparting period. On an ongoing basis, menagement cvaluaies iy patiinates and judgments, including
those relaiod 10 cusiomer {neentives, bed delits, inventorivs, Investments, estintated waeful Hves for deprecisblo snd amorizable assels,
vilugtion reserves and estimeted cosh fosws ie asseasing the recoverability of long-lived assets, estimated liahilies or siot clab bonus
profnt programs, iscome toxes, contingencies and Hiigation. Managemnent hases Hs estimates and judgmenty on historfeal informetion that
s currently nvailable w e Compeny and on virious pther factors thin are behevid o e reasonable under e cireunaiances, the resubts
of which fonn the hasis [hr making indgments about the carrying valnes ol sssets and Hubilitics that sre not rzadify apparent from other
saurves. Actus! results sy differ from these estimntes under differont judgiments or conditions.,

sdeangenseni belivves the foltowing eritient acsounting potisies, mpong athers, affocts its more significant judgments snd estimates
ysed in the preparation of its consolidated finencizl sintements:

Atfowanva fur Bowbgief Accownts, The Company allows [or an estinatd smount of roeehvables that may 5ot be eollected. The
Company carimates Hs allowsncs for Soubtiul avceunts vsing a specific fuewuba applied 10 aped receivables as well a% o specific rvisw
of large balances. Historica! eaperience §s considersd, ns are cusiomer relationships, in detennining specilfie resarves,

Property cud Equipment. At December 31, 28U, the Company had et property sod equipment of $96.7 mililon, ropireIeniing
52.6% of taial assets. Managumens depruciates property ond equipimeit on  stiight-line basis over their estimated useful Hves. The
wstimated uselisl Bves ave based on tha naterd of the wssets as well as current operating strategy ead fega! considerations such as
contractust Lile. Future events, sich @5 propenty improvements, lechnologicst chsalessence, new campetition, o now regulutisns, could
cosult it 2 chungy By the manner in whish the Company usus cenain asscis requiring o change in the estimated uselil lives of such assets.

For asseis o be beld and used, fxed assets are reviewed lor impainnest whenever indicators of impaimment exisy. 1 an indicutor of
impainnont exists, the Company first groups ks assets wih other asscts and lighifities ot the Inwest level for which identifinble cash Rows
arc largely indepeadnt of he sash ows of uher assels gl liabifities (the “auser group™). Secomdly, managenent estimates (e
andiseounted fiure cash fiows that are dircetly sssocinted with and expestod to atise fom the use of and everntunl disposition of such
ssset group. Management then estimates the undiscountest cash Nows over the remairing useful Life of the primiry st within tho asset
group. 1 the undiscounied cash fows exceed the carrying value, no inpainuent is indicated. 1 the undiscounied cash flows do not
excoed the zarrying value, then an mpairment is moasured based on fair vafue compared 0 carrying velue, with fuir valse typieally
hased on @ discounicd cash flow model. 1¥ an asset is 561 under development, foture cash fows ineludde remaising consiniction costs,

For asses o be held for vake, the fixed ssers (the "property eld for saleYure measured ot the Jower of thelr carrying amount o
fair valus hess cust i sell, Lossos sne rocogaized for sny initial or subseguent write-dows 1o fair value bess cost to sefl, while gaias e
reeagnized for any subsequent increuse in Tl value foss onst 1o sell, bt ot in excess of the cumulative foss priviously recognizes. Any
gains or fosses not previously resopaized that result from the sale of the dispogs! group shal) be recognized at the dat uf sale. Fixed
assels are not depreciated while elassifled os held for sate,

Iriceme Tuxes, The Company has recorded doibrred tax assets eelated Lo net opcrating losses a8 the Company is abiz 10 offset these
gasets with defurred tax Habiditics. Reatizasion of the nel defirred tax assets is dependent on the Company's vhility 1o geneesie profits
fram operations or from the sale of long-tived pssets thet would puveric 1 temporary dillerences which extablished the defumed tox
Habilities, There can be no assurance that the Company will geoerate profits lrom operationg ar sell those sssess or
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wilt penurate profits from sades o ey were to veeur in tie futore. In the event the Cempany dows genertte praflis from sales of
long-tived ussets i the fatire 3 valoation aflowssee mey need 1o be recosded, which would impact the Company™s future results of
aperations. Annualized effective ipome tax rates fir caleulating interim pertod provisions end benglits huve been estimated (a be noi
significantly different than the cstimared annual effestive rate and the statutory rate

Ruvesire Recopaitfon. Casing rovense 18 recorded gs the agpregnie of gaming wing and Josses, Hotel, food and beverage,
emtertsinment snd other operating revenues are recognized as services ore performed. Cagsino revenurs are reengnized net of certain sales
intentives in peeordancs with FASBE ASC 605-30 Revenne Recognition, Cryromer Payeeats awd [noeniives, Aceendingly, cash incentiven
1 customers for gambting, and the cash value of points and coupons cemed by the slot club members etafing spproximately $0.1 million
acud 30,3 million for the queners ended December 31, 2010 and 208, respectively, tiave been recognized as 2 dircet reduction of casing
revenng,

Atlvante deposits oi Tomng, i noy, are reconded og deferred revenue unti] services are provided 1o the customer. Hotwl, fead and
beverage revenyes are recogaized us services are performed.

Rentst revenue from reata] properties 18 recogrized as earned on & siraight-line basls over the tom f the Jease. When rental
mytnents reevbved exeeed rents curpied and recopnized, the difference s reonded o3 deferred rentad tncome in the labilitics scction of the
balance sheet, and vonversely, when rests samed and recognized excoed renist payments received, he difference i recordied as ther
uzsLls,

Reeenr Accowsting Prostguncemyirs

Boo related disclosure af fom ! ~ Finarelal Smtemens ~ Notes 1o Unaudiied Consafidated Finaucial Statementy -~ Note | Busis af
Presentation i Generd Infornution — Revent dceoising Prosouneemenis,

Resniys of Goeretions = Thrse Monthy Ended Decomber 31, 20140 and 2869
Goneral

Diuting the quarter ended Degeniber 31, 2814, the Company's nat opetiing revenues decresied $1.3 mitlion and operating eapenses
deervused $1.2 million, rusulting in a decrease in operating incame o7 30.1 miltion from the quarter ended December 31, 2008, The
deeling in aporaiing results wis prisarily due to unfavorable chonges in peacrs) coonomic eenditions ineluding recession and ceonpinic
stowdown, Met operating revenuos 8t the remal propurties desrunsed S0.3 seillion from e quaner ended Decomber 31, 2003, The deeling
it the revenue of the vents] praperties is substeatinily due o the decrzase in rentat revenue nssociatsd with the Suip Propeay.

Capsofidated

Nut Operating Revennes, Consolidated not operating revenuds far the yusrter ended December 33, 2010 were 55 million, 3 $1.3
mithian, or 20%. devrease from $6.4 miblinn fur the guarter ended December 31, 2069, tncome from the renta] propestivs in the quener
ended Bocembier 3E, 2010 was ST .8 million, 2 50.1 million, or 5%, devrease from $1.9 sillion for tet uarter ended December 3, 2009,
Revenues #t the Proneer of $3.3 million for the quaner ended Decanber 31, 2010, ducreased 30,7 miltion or $18%, from 54.0 miflion for
the quarier ended December 31, 2000,
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Operating Expenses. Tow! operating expenses decreased $1.2 mition, or 19%, to 5.2 million for the quarter ended Docember 34,
23310 from $6.4 million for the quarter ended Devember 31, 20409, Towl opersting capenies as a porcemage. of net revenve increased ko
1412% for the Z0L0 quarter from 10085 for the 2800 quarten, Operzling expoenges i the Ploneer of $3.8 million for the guarter ended
Ducepber 11, 2010 decreased $1.40 milfion or 2196 from 54.8 millien for the guarier etded Devorsher 31, 2089,

Operating Inceme, Conselidoted eperating Joss Tor the quarier cntled Doecomber 31, 2000 was 30.1 mitlion, » decresse of $0.1
million Trom $0.0 mitlion for the guarter eaded December 31, 2009, This decrease wes dug to the afarcmentioned changes in net
nperating tevenues anid operaling £apenscs. Openting income aitribatable 1o the restal propenics of 1.2 miltion for quarter ended
December 31, 200 decreased 358 million or 8%, from £1.3 million for the guarter ended December 31, 2009, Operating [oss o the
Plonuer of $8.5 mittian for the quaner ended December 31, 3010 decremiod 50.4 million or 4%, from $0.9 million for the guarter eded
Decomber 31, 2609,

interrst Expenze. Consolidated interest expense for the quarter ended Decomber 31, 2010 was $5.0 million, 4 50,1 miliian, or 0%,
deerease From SL.1 mililon for the guarcr ended Blecomber 31, 2109

Interest wind Otfrer Bneoese, Conzatithited wierest snd ather incomy Tor the garter ended Deceinber 31, 2030, was 30.3 million,
gnchanged (rom the quarter ended Deconber 31, 3019,

Gulnt floss) o Swle of Markerble Securitivs, The gein on the sale of marketable sucurities for the guanier ended December 31,
040 was 5.1 mitlion, o SO 2 milkion, or 200%s, neraase from the lags of §0.1 million fur the guaner ended December 31, 2009,

Ferderal Income Tx, Foderal income tax benciit for the quasster ended Desember 31, 2010 was 504 million, a less than 50.1
miltion inctease, o 33%5, fram the quarer catled December 31, 2009, based on [cderal stattory vates,

Biscontintied Operativns, Vet of Tux, The gain on discontineed operations assosinied with the properly held for sale during the
quaster ensded Decwmber 31, 2610 was 0.5 million, @ decrease of §0.4 million from $4.9 millipn for the gearter ended Desember 31,
2004

Pipnger

Nut Operating Savenurs, Not operating revenucs al iz Pionuer ware appraximately $3.3 inillion for the quaner ertded
December 31, 2010,  decrezse of $0.7 million, or 18%, eompared 1o $4.0 million in the guirer ended Decomber 31, 2009,

Cusing ruvenes for the quarter caded December 3, 2010 were 53.7 writlion, 2 decrease 0f S6.5 millfon, or 16%, comgased to
$3.2 million in the quarter ended Decanber 31, 2009, Slat und video poker rovenues wene 515 mitlion, # decrease of $44 million, or
14%, compared 1 52,9 million. Other gaming revenues, including tablc games, were 30,2 mittion, a deveease of $0.1 million, or 33%%,
commpared to $1.3 mitHen, Casino promol fonal aliuwasces were 33,7 million compmred to $0.9 million, 2 derrease of appraximasely 30.2
wiltion, or 32%.

Hote! revenues Tor the quarer ended Decamber 3, 2010 were £0.3 miltion, relstividy vachaoped from the quaner enided
Beoeinber 31, 2000, Houd nocipaney was 25% sompared to 1095, o decrense of 4%, bt was offses by an 8% increase i the averepe
roait rate, Computiive presseres continue i the t.aughlin market, Foixd and buverage revenaus decreased 50.3 million, or 259, 10 509
ittion Trem §1.2 miltion. Other revenues were $0.1 mitiion, unchanged from the guarier erwded December 31, 2009,

Operating Expenger. Qperaiing cxpenses were $1.8 miltion for the guaner eaded December 31, 2010, 2 decrease of $1.0 million, or
11%. froen §4.8 milon in the quaner ended December 31, 2609, Opuraling expenses 88 § percentage of et ruveiue decremed to 115%
bt the current quarter From 1299 in the quaner ended Dicember 31, 2008
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Casine expenses were $1.6 million, a decresse of 3.6 millon, or 27%, from §2.2 milliua, primarily due fo the decrease in casing
revemees, Casing expenses ns s pereentage of casino revinues dusreased to S8 from 6%,

Hote! expeases were 0.1 mitlion, unchanged From the quaner ended December 31, 2008, Food and boverage expenses were $6.5
million, 5 deerease of $0.2 miition or 29%, frem approxémately $0.7 rmiltion, due to o decrease in the number of food snd beverage
covers sald. Pood and beverage expenses bs & percentage of food end beverage reveres decreased to 36%% from 5938, (ther exprenscs
were 0.1 miltion, uashanged from the quener ended Becember 31, 2009, Qther erpensci a% o pereeiage af ather sovenues was plso
uarhanged at $00%.

Selling, penvend and udminisirative exponses were §07 snitbon, & decresss of 50.1 mitlion, or 13%, compared 1o B8 mitlicn.
Selling, pencral nnd adminisirative expenses as » pereentage of revenses incrensud 10 21%% from 20% Plonver's selting, gencral and
pdminisiraiive cxpenses are greater thaa the consotidated tota] tee io the climination of intercompany transactions i consolidation.
Ulifities und prapeny expenises were $0.7 miltion, unchanged from the guarter ended Decermber 31, 2000, Litilities and property expenses
as a pereeniage of operating revenues increased 10 24834 from 149, Deprecistion snd amonization vxpenges were 30,3 million, uachanged
From the quarter ended Deceinber 31, 2000, Depreciation and erorlization 05 6 perceniage of aperating revemees remained at 3%

Liguiity und Canita) Resonreey; Trends and Factors Relrvant to Fuwsre Docrations
Conrragtal Oblipations ond Camuiiments

The folipwing tshies suminarize the Compuny's fiscal year contraciual abligations snd commitments sed ol BTN FEFIICRIS,
respectively, 18 of Devember 31, HHO (for the ninevnonth period ending Septersber 30, 2011 and fr the fiscal years ending
Suptesber 31, 2002, 3013, 2014, 2015, 2036 and thereaftar) {(mmounls 1o peencst thousand):

ey menin Dur by Prelud

ks and
111 FIO R 2013 200 2015 “Thereafter Tutol

Ceapinping Sperativig
Neoreoourse debt:

Dorelester § o § D % 0 5 6§ 0 $3L1% 231,199
Lang-tersa diehi:

Ling ol eredil 6813 { 1) [t} ] ] 6,813

Srock margin fonn H] fi L 3,608 1] 0 3,604
Operating leases:

Ground lease 204 302 192 392 gz 24,698 26,561

Campuorate warchouse 13 23 19 f ¢ 0 62
Tosad Continwing Clperations £2125 § 417 0§ 411 §339r 0§ 393 §35R97 567,634
Disepntinned Operatinny
Cuithershurg 2718 SIORT  S4448 $28107 3 D 3 6 L3p260

Crsh dnterest Payments by Yerlodd
2006 sk
il M2 J0EY 1854 % Thesealier Tutab

Confinuing Gparatingy
Nonrevsurse debis

Blorchestr $I850  SiH00 $3800 53400 33808 3 21,550 %39,90d4
Long-term debis

Line of credil 307 it 1 a [+ { 307

Stock margio loan GH GE a4 it 0 4] 272
Operating leases:

Cirounsd fease 4] H] 4] 0 G 1] ]

Carprorate warchouse i ] 4] 0 i} ] i
Tete) Continuing Cpoerations £3.295 $1868 53,868 8 1EGE  £3.800 P 21840 320,479
Oiscomilyed Operationg
Gaithueshurg EE.BZ}. £2363 Spusg sig32 s 0 0% [ et

IR
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The Company has no significant purchase comnitmants or pbligations other than these included in the above schedule,

The Company's ability 16 service its cantraciual ebligations and commitments, other thian the nonrecowrse debe, will be dependent
o the future porformance of the Ploneer, whith witl by affewied by, amang other things, prevaiting sconomic conditions sad financial,
hasiness oad ather fectors, including compuritlve pressure from the cxpansion of Native Americsn gaming factiities in the Southwest
Uaited States. voaain af which factors are beyond the Company's control, I addition, the Campany will be dependent on the continued
ability of the waants in the rental properties in Gafthershurg, Maryland and in the Dorchester seetion of Boston, Massachusutts to make
payimuats pursusnt o the leases with the Company. The payments under the leases are contractunily committed to b used to make
pavanenss on the Company's nonrecoerse debt obligations related w the properiies

Ligaidity und Capital Resourees

Ling of Credir. The Company's whally owned subsidiacy, SLYC, seoured andd mainining 2 $15.0 million line of eredis Joan granied
by a Nevadds bank. The loss and proimissoey note e secured by deed of tust an SLVC's approximete 27 sere peevul of land on Las
Vipas Boulevard South {the “Strip Property™), The line ol credit loan i revalving and is subject to sdditional lending requirements. The
tine of credit foan halanes in the emant of $6.8 million ar the end of the quance eaded December 31, 20 is reportied us 2 cirrent
tiability, and any nuistanding halanee ender e Hing of credit walt become doe in Pebrasry 204t The intial wdvance undor the Bae of
crediy loan was wsed {0 pay i full the provious line of credit loan secured by the Sirip Property. The SLVE Hae of crediz loan Is
guaranieed by SLVE snd the Company, as well ag, personaily guaranteed by Poul W, Lowsden, President of SLVC, and by Suzsrne
Lowden, Seeratary/Treasurer of SLVC,

Neack Murpin Lean Obficetion, The Company's whally ewned subsidiary, SFHi, seeured and maintaing 2 §3.0 million stock
mazgin loun granted by Menilf Lynch, The stock murgin loart iy sucured by markembie sceuritivs beld by Merrit Lynch. The stock
margin loan balance in the smount of $3.0 million a the erd of the three months ended Bruember 31, 2010 s reported us a cumrem
linhility and inctuded in the Bae of credit balanes,

At
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As of Desember 31, 2030, the Company helt cash ond cash cquivalerts of $9.6 million compared to 59.6 mihon at Semember 30,
2010, The Company had $18.7 million in investment in markeiable seoueities ot December 31, 2010 compared o $17.8 million ot
Seqrtember 30, 2010, The rentad properties ore strugtured such thet fusure tenants’ payments vover fngre reguired monpage pymunis
inchuding any bulloon payments, Managemen believes that the Campany will kave suflicieny available cash and cash resources (o mest
its cush reqquirementt (or a reasennble period of thne,

Cash Flaws fiom Operpting Activities. The Company's cash used for opeenting aetivities was SL35 million for the guarier
ended December 31, 2010, us compared 10 $1.6 million for the quarer ended Devember 33, 2002,

Cush Flows from [ressing Activities. Cash used for investing activilics was approximately $0.6 miltion for the quartee stuled
Becember 31, 2610, as tompared to $1.2 million for (e quarter ended Deceinber 3¢, 2009 In the current yeur paciod, the Compeany used
$0.5 million for the purchase of marketable seeurities net of sales. Ia the prior year period, the Company used S1.2 million for the
purehass of murketable sceuritios nes of purchises,

Cash Uved In Finuncing dctivitles, Cash used in fnancing setivities was appreximuely 2.0 milion for the quaner endad
Dicevmber 11, 2011, as compared to $O.0 for the quanoy ended Becember 31, 2009, 1n the carrenat year period, the Company reccived
$5.8 miltien as proceeds from fines of gredit, used 51.8 mitlian o pay dawn Ui Hne of credi, eed used 528 for the purchese of weasury
sinck. by the prior year period the cash uscd was relatively insignificant.

The Company’s peimury source of operating cush is from the Pioneer operstions, from interest ingome o available rash and cash
pouivalunts and investments in maskutable securitics and, to loaser extent, lrom net eash generaned from the leasing of certain land
pwned un the Las Vegas Strip. Rental incemu from the Company’s rental propesty and pruperty held for sale is contractually comunitted
to reducing the nonrecourse indeltedness issued or assumed i connection with che auguisition of the rentat prapertics. Under the two
toases, the Wnanis are responsibic Tor substantinlly a¥ obligations redatetd 1o 1he teased propertics.,

The Compaay wwns, dirough its whelly wwnid suheidary, Sohara Las Vegas Comp. (“SLYCT), an approsimatedy 2vacee pareel of
fznd (the “Propunty™) bocited on the cast side of Las Yegas Boulevard South, just south of Sahera Avenue. The Company presently beases
portions ol the Propeny toiwn differem tesaves for an apgregate amount of $9,.500 per munth, The leases iney be wwrminaied in the event
v property is sold or duvelopud by the Company. 1n sddition, the Comnpany-short-lenn leased the balance of the property for 525,000
prer moath for the four month petiod commencing Decuinber 1, 2010 and ending March 31, 2011,

Ploncrr

Pieneer's prineipal sos of cash zee for payments of stot machine debt ubligations, ground lease rent und caplial expenditures 10
it the Brility, The Company has implemened chenges in persanned and promotional programs aad installed now stot cquipment
to seldress the decreasee in revenues and operating income, One of mussgement’s moin focuses is jo recapture macket shure in the
Lavghlin market, Minagement, howoyer, €30 give no nssarance Phat maret share will be reeaptured in its Lasghlin market as #ts
competition in the market typically has groster capital respurces than does the Ploneer.

Payinents of rent were ppproximately $U.1 miliion for tach of the quarter ended December 31, 2010 and 2609, Capital espenditures
1o maintain the ociity in fisent 2011 are expected lo be fess ihen 51.0 willion.

.28
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Assets leld for Suly

The Githersbarg Propety in Gaithersburg, Maryland is focated on 51,57 zeres and includes one building with approximatcly
342,000 syuare foet of vommercial office space. The Gaithersbueg Propenty was sequired for $62.6 millton, plus debi issuante costs ol
£2.7 million. The Company paid $9,9 miflion in cosh and isued $55.4 miftion i nonrecourse first mongege indebledness, The
Ggithersbury Propeny is under o net feose through 2014 with o single tunant with gn lnvestiment geade credit rating. Under tie fease, the
tenant is resprnsibie for substantiolly nf obiigations related 0 the Guithersbury Frupeny, The Gaithersburg Properny is under contract to
b sold. See Note 4 Purchase and Sule Agreement of Gaithershieg Fropesty

Rental Praportles

The Company seyuired cammercisl rontal propesty in the Darchester section of Boston, Massachuseits i March 2801, The
Diorchester Propery is lovated on 12 sgres uind includes severaf buildings will approximatcly 423,000 square feet of commercial offtce
spaee The Dorchester Praperty wes acquired for approximately $87.4 million plus 5.5 million in duln issunnce costs. The Company
pritd §5.6 miltos in cash and assumed $77.3 million in noorwcoumy duby nasocistest with the Dorchester Fropony. The Dorchester
Property i wnder 8 net lease throwgh 2000 wih a8 siagle tenso with an tnvestment grate eredit rating. Hnder the lense, the tenant 1§
respunsible (b substantially al} obligatons refated to the Dorchester Propeny.

Rederaption of the Compuny's Preferred Srock pagd Redermpgion Price Disputes

The Compaty ealled 31l outstanding shares of its Bxchangeable Redeematle Prefered Siock for redemption on and as of

Augyst 31, 2007, st & redomption price of 85,241 per share, which sum ingiuded acerued and unpaid dividends to the date of rederption.

From and afier August 31, 2007, alf shares of the Exchangealile Redeemable Preforred Stock cetsed b e sutstanding and to accrue
dividends. As of Februgey 14, 2011, the holders of 4.3 million shoves of the Exchingeable Rodeemahle Preferred Steck have surreadered
their shares and received payment of the redemption price; while 0.3 million shares have yei to be surrenderod sed stift have the right
receive their payment dus withow intorest. As of December 31, 2010 and Septernber 30, 2010, exchangeabic rxieemabie preferred stack
- paredeemed was 58.5 millton and $0.8 milfion, respectively,

On Augist 13, 2007, u groap of wstiional investors filed an setion apainst the Company in the United States District Court,
entitled DE Shaw Luminar Poafoling ot o). v archos Corporatian, THsirct of Nevada, Case No, 2:07-cv-1146. The Complaint was
subsequently snended o ndd an eddiional pany pletntifl (eollectively, tie “Flaing iy}, The Amended Complaint: (1) seeks a finding by
e Court that the Company has breached its abligations under the Compeny™y Certificate of Designation of the Prefered Siock, dated
September 30, 1993 {Ihe “Cort eate™), and swarding e Maintifls full compensation of any and ail avaiisble dumages suffered by the
Plainiils as 4 sesult of B Company’s breach of the Cenifieate: (H) secks u linding by the Cours that the Company's issuance of ks
redemptinn notice with an impraper redemption price is an eaticipatory breach ofa material torm of the Centificate und pwanding the
Plainiiffs full compuensation of any et alt aviiable damages suffered as a result of the Company's anticipatory breach of the Conificate;
(i) sueks 2 declermtion by (he Court that the dividends be propurly cateulated and compounded per the terms of the Certificats in a0
amaunt tos Tess than $7.2 million up through and inchading the date of finat judgement; (iv) seeka o orter frem the Coust cailing for the
Company to reimburse the Plaintifly auorneys’ foes, expenses ael costs incurred In enforsing thelr rights, nnd (v} seeks such ather and
further reliel as the Cotrl may deom appropriste,

The Plaimiffs, thereatier, fited a motion for partial summary Judgment, sccking u riling from the coun that the Company breashed
fis obligations under the Cetificate by cateulating the redemption price as it did, The Court granted that motion on August 8, J00K,
Finding e langusge of tee Cenifivate 1o be usmbiguous and that the scrdemption prive should huve been caleclated difTeronily.
Subseyuent io the

5.
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Cousts ruling on the motion for panial summary fudgment, Plaintiffe filed & motion for eniry of final judgment, seeking eniry of
Jjuitgment that the redemption price for the prufurred shores shauld bave bean 58,69 pey share, On Ducember 23, 2010, the Districs Count
granted that motion and entered judgment agatast the Company in the amount of 5.5 million. The District Cours based it docision
pritharily an s oider fron August of 2608, The Compeny bas filed n metion for reconsidorstion of the District Court’s Recembar 22,
2050 oder. That muotion s buen Relly briefed and is pending befots the Distriet Court. In the event the motion for reconsideration s
denivd, the Company injends to appeal Lhe Distriet Court's decision to the Nimh Circuit Count of Appeals.

The Cotpany has initisted proceedings agrinst o third-pary law fimm soneering that firm's patential abitity related to the drafting
of the Clertificnte o Designation. This thinl-party actiet has subsequently heen remaved by the deiendnnt faw fism to Federal Cour in
Agrit, 2009 and i3 ut 89 early stage of resolution. The defendant jaw firm hins moved (o comge! athiseation of the dispute. The Magisrate
Juddge issued an order thas the matter be referred 1o arhitmtion and the District Conrt conftrmed thal prder. The Company intends to
pursue ks cluims sgainst the defendant law firm in arhitration. The Company s also considering rights and remedies it may have with
regard to other parties who punticipated ia the issuance of the Preferred Stoek in Lhe event that the Company doms not preved] on its
imerpretation of the Centifieate.

Also, two othat helders of the Exchanpeable Redecmable Preforred Stock Hllod Complaims, both alleging essentially the same cluim
a5 the firgt conpdain related to the cuse set forth immedistely above, The two other lawsuils brought by {ormer halders of the
Exchangeable Redevmnable Preferred Stock are entitled Raincre v, Archop Cornoration, District of Nevads, Case Na, 2:07-cv-01333, and
Lewwant Capital, L2y Archon Corporatian, District of Nevada Case Ne. 208w 0087, If the plaimifls in thuse two additional astions
are corredt, the redemption price as of August 31, 2007 should have been $8.6% per share amd pot 55,241 per share as caleutated by the
Company, [f applied 1o ail the then oustending shares of Exchungouble Redeemable Praferred Stack, including the shares held by the
Company's offizers aad directors, valuation of the redemplion price at $8.69 per share would increase the redemption price fn exoess of
$15.2 million.

[ the Lepwird Canital matier, both the Lyuwan) PlaintidTs and the Compeay buve Tiled mations for summary fudgment. The
Lopward Pleintils made arguments stmilar t the Lamiasr Mubntiffs in their motion. On Beeember 22, 2010, the Digtricy Couet jssued an
arder yranting the Legward Plaintifts’ metion for suoary jutipment on the same grounds as the Laminar order and denying Archon’s
motion withaut analysis. Contemporaeous with the fHing o the Deceisber 22, 2018 order, the District Cours entered judgment in favar
of 1he Lecwsrd Plaintilfs ond apainst the Compeny In the smount of §01.2 miilion, The Company kas led o motion for reconsideration of
tive District Coun's Deeember 22, 2010 srder, Fhat maotion has beea fully bricfed und is prending before the Disirict Court, In the svent
lhe motion far reconsiderstion is dented, the Company interds 1o sppest the Distriet Court's decision to the Ninth Circuit Court of

Appeals,

The Rainers sction is pemeorted 1o be brovght an behatf of David Rafnero iadividestly as welb os o class of alt fonner preferred
sharehulders, albotgh o class kas nes yet been centilied by the Pistict Court. Pluiatifl Rainero filed 2 motion for class centification in
Becomber of 2010 which the Compapy intends 15 oppose. The Compuny's oppasition brief 1o the motion fbr class certifteation is due
Fohruary 13, 2011, Mr. Rainero was deposed in carly Januery of 2011,

“The Company plans 10 appest the District Court's declaions 10 the Nisth Circuit Court of Appeals, The Compuny believes that it has
vatid hasas in law and fagt t overtum or aupeal these verdicts. As g result, the Company believes thist the Hkelihood that effimmation of
the judgments is possible but not probeble, and, accordingly, that the amoent of any loss cannot be ressonably cstimated at this thne.
Hecause the Company holicves that this potential Toss i nat probable o estitnable, it has not reconded wny reserves of cuntingencies
related to this [ogal matter. In the event that the Company s assumptions usesd 10 cvaluaie this maner as neither probable sor estimable
change in fulure periods, it will be required 10 record 8 ligbifity For nn adverse outcome, which may inchade pusi-fudgment interest,

Effects of Infiation

The Company has been genernlly sueeessful in recovering costs associated with inflation through price adjustments in its hotel
soom mtus. Bxpenses of apessting the Company's ronta] propesties are generally borse by the tenants, Primerily due ko computitive
wrket and other evonnmic prossures any such Ruture increases in costs associaied with cosino operstinns ond muintenanse of prapertics
way m be eplelely recovered by the Campany.

-3
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Sale Harbor Statement Under the Private Securltles Sitipation Heform Actof 13495

Cortain stataments in this Quarterly Repon on Form 10-Q which are not historiea! facts may be considered forward-looking
statements, including, withaut imitation, such as statemenis relming to future operating resulte, existing end expecicd competition,
finnticing and rofinancing soerces and avadlabitiny and plans for fatere devedopment or exrgaAnsion autivities, capital expenditures and
wxpansion of busitess operaions into pow sreus, Suth furwars-loaking starements sre based upon 2 number of assumptions concerning
falure conditions that viimately may prove to be inacourate and that inay invelve s nwnber of dsks and sneatiaintics that way
gipnificantly aifect the Company's lquidity and resuits in the Future and, scrordiagly, actual resuls iy differ malerially from those
expressed it any forword.looking simements. Such riske and ancertaintivs include, without Bmbmtion, those related to effests of
competition, leverage sad debt service, goneral ceonoie conditiams, chaapes in gaming laws or regulutions {including the legatizetion of
guming in varinus jutisdictions) and risks retaied to develonment sctivitios nnd the stanup of ronsgaming aperutions,

Hem 3, Quantlilve and Chatitatlve Diselosures Alout Market Risk

Mackut risk i the rick of loss arising from changes in market rites and prives, such os interest rases, foreign surnency exchange rates
and commodity process, Escluding its nonrecourie debi, the Company by totad sterestbearing debt at Ducember 31, 2010 of
approximately 39.8 mitlion, which benrs fnterest at 2 varishie rate (approximately 6.25% a1 Dogember 31, 2016, Therefore, the
Cormpany mbinteins certtin marke rase rish refaied 1o this dobt, & chanige in the inserest mdes of 125 por annum wald cause an
approstmsate $0.1 miflion change {n the nmovrt of interest the Campany would ncur based on the gmount of vartsble-daterest rute deb
autstansding for any cusreat or flure year in whicl this debt s peastanding, Putnre horrowings related 1o this debt will be wnpased to this
same market rate sk,

Thi Compeny holds investmenis in various svailnble-fur-sale sectritics; Bowever, management believes that exposure i prise risk
atising Teom ke ownership of these investnenis i not peaterial to the Company's consulidated financis! position, resuhis of opcrations of
cash low as storically prive fuctustions of these seorities have not buen materish.

Al
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Item 4. Contrgls god Proccdures

Briselosure Comtrols amd Procedures

Qur munagement, whth the pastivipation of the Company™s Principal Bxecutive O{Ticer and Prineipal Accounting Ofser, has
evaluated the eifoctivencss of the Company's disclosure comrals and precedures {35 such ten is defined in Rules §3a-§5{e) and
154150 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, s amended {the "BExchange Aci™) ag of the ond of the perfod eovered by this
repot. I designing snd evatuning the disclosure controls snd procedures, management recoguized that sy controls and procedures, no
rstter How well desigand and operaled, can only provide reasonshie essuranue of achicving the desired cantrol ebjestives and
ssnagerment is required o npply its judgment ta evatusting the cost-benefit relationship of possible contrals and procedures, Bused on
such evafuntion, the Company®s Principal Executive Officer and Prineipal Accounting Oificer have concluded that as of December 3,
3040, the Compaty's disciosure controls and progedurus were nok effective, at the reasonable assurance kevel, in reeording, processing,
samanatizieg and reporting, on & timely basks, informution requited 10 be disclosed by the Compary in the report that it files or subimits
under the Exchunge Act aad i ensuring that information required to be dischosust by the Company in the reports thet 3t files or submits
under the Exchange Act i accumulated and communicated to the Company's munagement, ineluding the Principal Excewtive Oificer and
Principal Aveounting Offiver, s appropriaie atlow thnely discussions regarding reguired disclosure; due o the material wesknesses
thoseribed below,

1n g of the material wedknesses deseribed below, we performed adiitionn) snetysis oad other post-closing provedures 10 ensere
that our Bnancial sterements were prepared in secordance with gencrally sceepted geeounting principles. Accordingly, we betieve that the
finuncial staiements included in this repun fairly prescat, in el imatevial respecs, o financial condition, results of operations, changes in
stockhabders’ cquity and cash flows for the perloads presested.

Munupyment Hepoet on faveraal O3 ontteal Dvpr Elpancial Resorilng

The Company's matapement is respoisible for establishing and maintaining adoyume inemal controf over finsncisl reporing. 45
defined in Rule 132-15(0) and 15¢-15(0) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Our internal control over financiad reporting is
dusigred to provide reesonable mesurancs regarding the rolisbility of financisl reponting prutd the pregaration of fingncial stalements for
estora! pumposes in acvondanee with generally pecepied acuounting privoiples, The Company's internat comrol over financial reparting
inclides thow policies and provedures thay

I Perwin to the mainfeasnce of reeords thay, in reasonable detail, aceurately and falely rofoet the transncrions raid dispositions
of the gssets of the Company,

§d

Provide teasonuble nssurance that trapsactions are resorded 8s necessary e permil preparation of finencind sintements it
arcordance with seounting priacipies generally secepted in the Uinited States of Ameries, and that reveipts amd expenditures
of the Company ore being made only in sucondanse with suthurizations of managerment usd directors of the Company, and

1 Provide reasonatle nssurance regarding provention or timely detection of unautherized acquisition, use, or disposition af the
Cranpuny's assets that could have o material cffert on sur linuncisl stetements.

Alt internal conod sysiems, no matier how woll designed, have inherent Hmitasions. Therelore, even those systems detennined to
he effective ean provide only neastnable ssseennce with respeet fo Financia! stoement praparation snd reporing. Also, projections of zny
evitluiinn of effectiveness to futore perods are subject to the risk that wontrals may breeme inntdeguate beeause of changes in
conditivns, af that the degree of gompiisnce with the palicies of provedures may deleriorne.

n32e
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A materis) weukness s v enntrof deficiency (within the meating of Public Company Accounting Oversighy Beard (“PCAOBY)
Anditing Standard No. 5} or combination of eestrol deficicncies, that rosults in smore than a remote likelihoud that @ moterial
wisstateinen of the annual or interim finsocisk stattmests will not be prevented or detecied on 4 timely hasis.

Unsder the supervision zad with the participation of our management, including our Principal Exeeutive Officer snd Principal
Acconnting Officer, we conducted un svaluation of the sifectiveness of our intermal eontrel over financin) reporsing es of the period
eoveret! by 1his repon based on the frmmewark in fsfernal Coniml « Integrated Fromenork issued by the Commitice of Sponsering
Orpenizations of the Treadway Comatissian (“COSC"}. Based ma the resubts of management’s assessment and evajuation, our Principal
Exceutive Oflicer sad Prineipal Accounting Officer concluded that our internal contral over financial reporting wes not effective due
the materia) woaknesses deseribed below.

Mauterial Whakpnessey

1 The Company’s mapagement nssessed the effectiveness of the Company's intzena] contral aver Bnancial reporting as of
Decaimber 31, 2610, |n makisg this assessire, the Company's management used the framework sl fortl by the Commitiee
uf Spunsoring Organizatinng of the Treadway Commisslen in “lnternal Controt - Imegrated Framework.” Based on this
assesament, rranapement conchuded that, as of Devember 31, 2040, the Company's smertal control over fasacial reponing
was not effective based on this framewark,

Mansgemen eviduated the tmpact of ing Fective contral over Tinancisl repurting ati ctivehaded tha the control deficiency
represzricd o nnteral weakngss,
1 n connectons with the sutht of our consobidaied finanels! stasements far the year ended September 30, 201, o indupendent
sepistered secouning finm, Deloys Griffith & Company, LLC. regatied 1o he audi commilles of the Company's Board of

Prrectors that they observed inadequale revitw and approvel of certnin aspocts of the sucounting process ket they considercd
1o be a maloria} weskness fn intemnab conteol,

Afrer 2 review of the Company’s current review and approval of centain aspeets of the acenunting process, management conchuded
that the inadequate review and approval process epresented a iaterial wenkness.

Remedintion of Materiyl Wedkbessos
To remediaie the materiat weaknesses identificd shove, we have dong the following subsequent 1o Sepiembat 3G, 2014, which
vorrespund 3o ke fwo material vosknesses identified above

I Inconneetion with the ineffective assessment of the Company's intemal conrad ever fingncisl reporting, management plans fo
hire an additionad independent public sccounting frm to perform our imemal avdit and sssist with BEC compliance for
murposes of all future reparsing,

Management belicves this resnediation witl ronediate the conespanding watedial weakness described in fem 1, bnmedistely ahove

3w eennecions with te reponed inadequate review sad approval of cenaln aspects of the sczossing procesy, mansgement hes

reiteraied the Company's current review and approval procussas, fa insure that all greocatng reconciliptions and journal
ontries mre reviewed and spproved o a timely basis,

Munugemiant beficves shis remediation has remedinted the corresponding muserint weakness deseribed in fem 2, immedintely
shave
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{ahie of Coments

Infrerent LimBations on the Effectiveness of Cantrafs

Mensgerment does not expect that o disclosure conirols and procedures oe our intemal conttol over (inancial reponing will prevent
or detect i errors and ot frud. A control system, no matter how well conueived end uperated, can provide only reasoneble, ot
absolute, assurunce that the ohjectives of the control systams are met, Fusiher, the design of 2 conirol system mas raflext the fact that
ihere are TosuTCe constraints, and the benefits of conteols must e considered relative to their casts, Because of the inherent Hmilations in
& cost-eltective comtrol systein, wo evaluation of intemal controt over financial veporting can provide absolute assurpace thitt
sissiateinents doe to eror or fraud will not oceur or that uf) control issues and instances of frtud, iTany, have been or will be detected,

These inheront Hinitations include the restities that judgments in devision-making can be faulty and that breskdowns san ogour
because of & sinpie error or mistake. Controls con also by cirgtenvenied By the individual pets of some persoits, by cotlusion af two or
more people, or by mansgument override of the controls. The dusign ol any sysem of comtiods is bused in part on contein sssumptions
about the likelihood of fisture cvents, sad there enn be po sesirance that aey design wilt sueeend in achivving its sisted goals wnder it
potentis! fuiere conditions. Projections of uny svalyntion of conmrels efTectiveness 1o future pariuls are subject 1o riska, Over time,
controls nay beeome feadequate bevawse of changes in conditions or deterioration in the dogree of compliance with policies or
procedures.

Clrsrges In inerngl Cunteud ver Fingieln] Beperting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s interpal cuntrol over finencial reporting (as such tenn s defined in Rules
13- 1500 eoed 5 E5CE) mader the Exchanpe Act) during the peritsd vovered by this repont that has materially sfficied, or is reasonsbly
fikely to rmmerially aifou, the Compony’s interaat contee) over fnancial reponting.
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PART I - OTHER INFORMATION

ftem b Legpul Proceedings

Mereury Ren) Esrate Sectrities Fund, LP and Mereury Reul Estpte Securittes Offshere Lismized v. Archon Corparstion:

The Company cafled nlf ewsianding shares of ts Exchangeable Redecmable Preferred Stock for redemption on and os of
August 3§, 2007, 5t 2 redemption price of $5.241 per share, which suin included peerued wad unpaid dividends (o the date of redemption.
From and afier Augest 31, 2007, oYl shares of the Exchangesble Redeemnble Preferred Stock ceased jo be austanding and 1o actrue
dividends. As of Fehruary 9, 2011, the holders of 4.3 mitlion shares of the Exthangeable Redeamable Preferrad Siock have surrendered
thets shares and recelved payment of the redemption price; while D2 nillion shares liave yet 1o be surrenderesd and stil] Bave the right to
receive their paymem due without interess. As of Deeember 31, 2010 snd Septomber 30, 201, exchangeable redeomuble preferred stock
- untredeued was S0 mitlios ond 50.8 million, respestively.

On August 27, 2007, a group nf institational investors Bled an ation agninst the Company in the United States Tarict Coun,
ertitked DE Shaw Lamistar Porfolios o ub. v. Archon Corporation. District of Nevads, Case No. 2:87-uv.1146. The Complaint was
subsequently srended to add sn additional panty plainuf (cotlectively, the "Plaintfis”). The Amended Complaict () secks a finding by
the Count thas the Compasy has breached its obligatiuns unider the Company's Cenificate of Dusignution of the Prefermed Siock, duted
Septmmber 30, 1993 (the “Cenificmy’™), and awarding the Plaimitfs full compensation of soy and all svailable damages sullered by the
PlairiHls s o resell of the Company’s Breach of the Contificate; {i§) sveks a finding by the Cotrt that the Company's issuante of il
redempion ratice with an inpeoper redemption prive s a0 ansicipatory breach of o material term of the Curtificate and awarding the
Plaintifs Tul compensation of any and afl avellable damages sullored ss result of the Conmipeny's saticipaiory breach of the Centifizaig,
(31} seeks n decteration hy e Court thet the dividends be properiy exfeutated and compounded per the terms of the Certificate ia in
arsount not tzss then §7.2 mithon up through and including the date of finul iudgtnent; {ivi secks an order fram the Cour cafling for the
Company to reimburse the Plaintiils” sitomeys® foes, expenses pad costy incurred in cafircing their rghts; and {v) secks such other and
further retiof as the Coen muy dean approprisie,

e Plaintifls, thereafier, filed 2 motioe for perilat suimary judgment, soeking 8 rating from the tourt that the Company breached
its ubligations wder the Centifivats by caienfating the redentption price us it did. The Court granted dist muion on Acgust 8, 2008,
finding the languaps of the Certificate to be unambigeous snd that the tedemmion price should have been cateutated differeniy.
Subsequent ta the Count's roling on the motion for partis! summarny judamens, Plaintiffs filed 8 motion for eatry of final Judgment,
sucking entry of judgment that the redermption price for the prefurred shares should kave been 88.64 por shore. On Pegember 22, 2010,
the Dissrict Court grunted that motion and eatered judgment against the Company in the emount of $9.5 willion. The District Coun based
its decision primatily on i order from August of 2008, The Dompany bt filod a motion for reconsideration of the District Coun's
Eocsnbir 12, 2610 order. That motion hus been fully briefed and is peading before the District Coun, Tn the event the mation for
reconsiderstion is denied. the Company intends 10 sppesl the Dissrict Court’s deuision to thie Minth Circult Coun of Appeals.

The Company as initisted proccedings sgainst o third-pary law fiems concerning ihat fam's potentist abiliey related 1o the drafting
f the Cortificate of Dosignation, This thizd-pany sctios bas subsequently been remaved by the defendant law fwm to Federat Courtin

Apri!, 2000 ned is a1 un carly stage of resolution. The deferdunt lase Grn s moved 1o compel erbiration of the dispute. The Magistrae
Judpe tssucd an order (hat the matter be referved w arhilrasion ard the Disitet Count confinmed that order. The
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Company istends 1o pucsae it clibms against the defendant law firm in arbitration, The Compuny i3 wiyo considuring dights and remedics
# iy have with regerd 1o other panies who partivipsted in the tssuance of the Preferred Stock tn the evens that the Company does not
prevail on it interpremtion of the Certifieste,

Al, two other Bolders of the Exchangeable Redecmable Preferred Stack filed Complaints, both alieging esyentinlly the snme ciaim
ax the firt complaint relused 10 the case set fonth imnediately sbove, The two other lewsuits brought by former holders of the
Exchanpeable Redoamnble Preferred Stock are entitied Ranern v, Arebod Comration, District of Nevads, Case No. 2:07-cv-0E553, and
Leowsrd Capital, L2 v Archen Ceenoration, Districr of Nevada Case Na. 2:06.cv-00007, I the plalmTs i those two additional actions
are ey, the redenption price as of August 33, 2007 should heve been $8,69 per shers and not $5.241 per share a3 caleulated by the
Company. 1{ applied 1o all the then owistanding shares of Exchangesble Redoumable Preformed Stock, inctuding the shores held by the

Company's officers and directors, valuation of the redemption price 21 $8,69 per share wonld iscrease the redomption price in excess of
$15.2 miliiom,

I the Leoward Capital matten, both the Leoward Plaintiffs and the Campany have fded metions for summary judgmens. The
Leeward Plolntiils made nepurmonts shnilar 1o the baminar PlaintifTs fo theie motion. On Beeermber 23, 2010, the District Cour issved an
arder granting the Legwary Pleintifts’ motion for summary judgment on the same grounds as the Lamingr arder end denying Archon's
Imation withou analysis. Contempormesus with the (g of the December 22, 2010 ander, the District Court etisered judgment in faver
of thy Legwand Plaiariils and sgainst the Company in the amount of 50.3 million. The Company has filed o motien for reconsideration of
e Disirict Court’s Devember 22, 2010 order, That smotien hes been Tully bricfad and is pending befure the District Court. Jo she event
the mustion for reconsidonation is desied, the Company intends 10 appeat the Distrivt Court’s decision & the Ninth € ireuit Court of
Apprals.

The Rt sctios s purpened o be brought on hehalf of Bavid Rainero individually we weli as 2 closs of ol foriner proferred
shareitolders, although o elass hos ant yel bees certified by the District Court. PlaintilT Rustero {ilzd 6 motion for ¢lays certification in
Decomber of 2010 wivich die Company intends to oppose. The Company's epposition beiel 10 the masion for class vertification is due
February 13, 2011. Mr. Haincto was deposed in varly January of 1011

“The Carnpany plans to appest the Distries Count’s decisions to the Nimh Cirunit Coart of Appenls. The Company belioves thas i hes
valid bases in law and f2et o overtisrn or oppeal these verdiets Ax v resul, the Company belivves thas alfirmarion of the judgments i
possible but not provabie, snd, uccordingly, that the amount of sy lass cannpt be reasonubly estimated at this time. Breause the
Company believes that s potential loss is not probahie of eximuble, it fns not recorded any rescrves or contingencies rulatid to this
lopal smarter, Is the event that the Company's nssumptions used 10 evatunie this maticr as neither probuble nor estimabte change i future
periuds, it will ba requiced ts recard a Nability for on sdverse osteome, which may include post-fudgrmient interest.
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK CQUNTY, NEVADA

STEPHEN HABERKORN,
CASE NUMBER: A-16~732619

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NUMBER: XV
Va3,

ARCHON CORPORATION, SUZANNE
LOWDEN, PAUL LOWDEN,

Transcript of Proceedings

SN S R

Defendants.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JOE HARDY, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 22, 2016

APPEARANCES:
For the Plaintiff: STEPHEN R. HACKETT, E3Q.
For the Defendants: JUSTIN J. BUSTOS, ESQ.
RECORDED BY: MATTHEW YARBRCUGH
TRANSCRIBED BY: KRISTEN LUNKWITZ

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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WEDNESDAY, JUNE 22, 2016 AT 9:58 A.M.

THE CLERK: A732619, Stephen Haberkorn versus
Archon Corpeoration.

MR. HACKETT: Good morning, Your Honor. Stephen
Hackett for the plaintiff,

MR. BUSTOS: Good morning, Your Honor. Justin
Bustos on behalf of the defendants.

THE COURT: Good merning. So, be grateful I'm
paying attention, No. So this is Defendants’ Motion to
Dismiss Complaint, which I've reviewed, along with
Plaintiff’s Opposition and the Reply. I don't know if I
mentioned when you guys were here before, but just so you
know and if you need time to consider what I'm going to
say, you're welcome to it. I don't know Mr. Bustos at all
but one of the partners in his law firm, Michael Fetter,
and I are friends and Mr. Fetter's on my recusal list,
which I don't think should affect -- well, it would not
affect my judgment in this case.

Additionally, I know the Lowdens, although that’s
just through various events on the campaign trails. BSo,
Mr. Hackett, you would probably be the one affected by
that. If you need time to consider that, let me know.
Ctherwise, I'm ready to go forward.

MR. HACKETT: I have no problem with Your Honor
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hearing the case.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Like 1 said, I reviewed the briefs. Let me -~ I
think the class action tolling is something I definitely
want to hear from and the subparts of that such as the --
what did you call it? Cross-jurisdictional or whatever the
term was that I was not familiar with. And then on the
other arguments, whether those are for a Motion to Dismiss
or more properly on a summary judgment type of issue. But,
Mr. Bustcs, you’'re welcome to go.

MR, BUSTOS: Thank you, Your Honor.

Our Motion to Dismiss seeks to dismiss the entire
Complaint. The only issue we've raised is the statute of
limitations. It's our position that all of these claims
are time-barred and should be dismissed.

So, preliminarily, Your Honor, I'11 state that
this entire case is based on Archon’s redemption of its
preferred stock. As part of rhat redemption, Archon was
required to calculate the amount of the accrued but unpaid
dividends that had accumulated on the preferred stock. And
that calculation was done pursuant to the Certificate of
Designation, which is the contract that sets forth how this
is going to work. That document is a publically filed
document. It was filed with the Nevada Secretary of State

in 1993, Your Honor.
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S0 because every single claim in this case is
fundamentally based on the argument that that calculation,
the time of redemption, August 31°%, 2007, was incorrect,
it's our position that every claim in this case is well
time~barred, many years.

and, so, Your Honor, based on your preliminary
comments, I will jump ahead to the topics that the Court
was most concerned about and, at the end, I’11 circle
around to the other arguments in case there’s anything
specific that you would like me to address.

So, the issue that was primarily raised in the
Opposition to the Motion to Dismiss was this concept of
cross-jurisdictional tolling.

THE COURT: So I got the phrase ~-- the term right?

MR, BUSTOS: Absolutely, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BUSTOS: So, in the -- in Mr. Hackett’s brief,
he starts off with the argument that the Court should apply
class action tolling. Now the concept of class action
tolling, in general, Your Honoxr, is well settled., It
originated from a United States Supreme Court case called
American Pipe and that case has been universally adopted by
the Federal Courts and every State Court, that I'm aware
of, has adopted the general concept of class action

tolling.
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But, a separate concept has arisen in case law, a
fairly recent development of intra-jurisdiction ==~ or
excuse me, of cross-jurisdictional tolling.

THE COURT: Well I don’t feel too bad if I hadn’t
heard of it before. So, --

MR, BUSTOS: Not at all, Your Honer. I hadn’t
before until I ==

THE CQOURT: OQOkay.

MR. BUSTOS: == did the research associated with
these individuals.

So, when we're talking about the American Pipe
line of cases, the courts have generally referred to that
as what they call intra-jurisdictional tolling. So tolling
when a case is filed in one court system and one
jurisdiction, dismissed, and subsequently refiled within
that same system. That's not controversial. We don’t
dispute that that’'s accepted doctrine.

But the concept of cross~jurisdictional tolling
is, at this point, a very, you know, is a doctrine that
hasn’t been widely accepted, it hasn’t been widely decided
by the State Courts, frankly. Sc the concept -- so we have
a concept of cross-jurisdictional teolling. What we're
talking about is a case that was filed in one jurisdiction,
dismissed from that jurisdiction, and then subsequently

refiled in another jurisdiction.
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So, Mr. Hackett is correct that there are a couple
of states that have adopted, you know, this concept. &And I
have it my notes here that the jurisdiction that he refers
to were Delaware and Ohio. When we did the research, it
actually appeared though that the majority of State Courts
to actually consider this issue have rejected 1t and the
cases that I’'ve cited in the briefs are form Illinois,
Texas, and Tennessee. And in the briefs, we'’ve summarized
three main reasons why the doctrine of cross-jurisdictional
tolling should not be adopted.

And, by the way, Your Honor, in my research, the
Nevada Supreme Court has never touched upon this issue.

THE COURT: For better or worse, huh?

MR. BUSTOS: For better or worse., The Jane Roe
Dancer case was cited, but, as we explained in the briefs,
that clearly was a concept of intra-jurisdictional tolling.

So, when we're talking about cross—jurisdictional
tolling, Your Honor, the first point is that there is no
added efficiency to a State Court by adopting this
doctrine, as opposed to when we're talking about intra-
jurisdictional tolling. With intra-jurisdictional telling,
the idea is that it leads to efficlencies within the court
system because people aren’t running to file placeholder
suits while the main suit is still pending in the

jurisdiction.
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Now, when we have intra-jurisdictional -=- or
cross-jurisdictional tolling, you don't have that same
efficiency because, at that point, the State is not
interested in what’s hearing in Federal Court. And, 30, as
-~ T helieve it was the Mastas [phonetic] Court, the case
we cited in the brief, unless every Jjurisdiction was to
adopt this concept at the same time, the fear is that there
would be a run of cases to the jurisdiction that has the
more favorable tolling rules and they would get a
disproportionate number of cases that were not certified as
class actions. And, so, the idea that courts have feared
is that would actually burden a single state to adopt this
doctrine unless it was one of these uniform laws that apply
to every state,

The second concept is that Nevada simply doesn’t
have an interest in furthering the efficiencies of other
court systems except out of maybe comity.

But the most important point, Your Honor, that we
discussed in the brief, which, I think, is really -- is key
as to why this Court should not be the first Court in
Nevada to adopt this doctrine is that when we're talking
about limitations periods, it really is the role of the
Legislature to determine what limitation period applies to
a specific case. And when we’re talking about cross-

jurisdictional tolling and, of this case, from a federal
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case ultimately to a State Court case, really what the
Nevada =--~ Nevada would be doing is it would be
[indiscernible] the ability of the Legislature to decide a
limitations period to the federal system because the
limitations period would then be determined entirely by how
long the Federal Court decided to deny class certification.
And, Your Honor, we really believe that that is an issue
that’s best left to the Nevada Legislature,

Now I didn’t make this point in the briefs, it's a
little bit of a comparison, it’s not directly on point, but
Nevada has a statute, NRS 11.500, and that talks about the
concept of if a case is dismissed in Federal Court for lack
of jurisdiction, it can only be refiled within the state
system within the original limitations period on the claim
or within 90 days. So it serves as a statute of repose and
as a savings provision,

and, so, in that situation, the Nevada Legislature
has shown that if it has cases filed in one jurisdiction
going to another, it can decide what to set the time period
to when those cases should be applied. And so we would
submit that in the event that a Nevada Legislature wanted
to have this doctrine of cross-jurisdictional class action
tolling, it could adopt a similar statute to 11.500 to deal
with that directly and we believe that this issue really is

more appropriately decided from the Legislature considering

FPage 8

PA313




19

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

that the Nevada Supreme Court has not adopted it, the
majority of State Courts to decide it have not adopted it,
and, at this point, it still is a controversial doctrine.

50, is Your Honor interested in the equitable
tolling [indiscernible]l?

THE COURT: You know, on that one, I don't think
it applies, but --

MR. BUSTOS: Okay. I would agree with you.

THE COURT: You can save and see 1f Mr. Hackett
can persuade me otherwise and you can -=

MR. BUSTOS: I will do that to save time, Your
Honor. Thank you.

So the second point you mentioned in your opening
comments is whether the arguments are made by defendants in
this case are really appropriate for a Motion to Dismiss.
We believe they are, Your Honor. The case we cited in the
briefs is the Brelient case, B-R~E-L-I-E-N-T, which talks
about the appropriate types of information that a Court can
consider on a Motion to Dismiss.

THE CQURT: Now on -- yeah, I -- I mean, on that
specific ground, I agree with you. I think some of your
colleagues, some of my colleagues may not realize that’s
the case but I think it’s fair and settled and appropriate.

MR. BUSTOS: And, so, in this case, we'’re talking

about the documents that are attached to the Complaint,
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which are incorporated by reference under Brelient, and
then also the defendants have asked you to take judicial
notice of a few things. We’ve asked you to take judicial
notice of the public docket in the previous cases filed in
federal Court. That was the D.E. Shaw [phonetic] case and
the Lewar (phonetic] case. That was -- those are all
public filings, which is clearly a subject matter of which
this Court can take judicial notice. And we've also asked
this Court to take judicial notice of SEC filings. The SEC
filings are also matters of public record that are
assessable online through the SEC’s EDGAR database.

and, so, I don’t dispute, Your Honor, that, you
know, as with any guestion of judicial notice, you
certainly have discretion in deciding whether or not to
take judicial notice of a fact, but every single fact that
we’ re asking the Court to consider as a part of the Motion
to Dismiss is a matter of public record and is something
that's verifiable of sources whose acguracy cannot be
reasonably questioned. So we think that this is an
appropriate matter for judicial notice.

And, Your Honor, given the time period that -~ the
events in gquestion that we're talking about, we think that
this is an issue that needs to be decided at the outset.
We' re talking about facts that occurred in 2007 and, since

that time, our client has taken numerous actions that have
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been based off of its redemption of the preferred stock.
Some of those are discussed in the Complaint. Archon has
repurchased shares. Archon has deregistered its common
stock with the SEC, And Archen has not been -- you know,
as a result, Archon has not been reporting with the SEC and
it hasn’t kept track of its previous shareholders because,
in Archon’s view, we redeemed the stock back in 2007.

So we think that this issue is something that's --
that should be decided now. We believe that as a matter of
economy and efficiency, we should have a decision on the
statute of limitations and we believe the Court has all the
facts it needs to have in front of it to determine whether
or not Mr. Haberkorn knew or should have known of the facts
giving rise to its cause of action.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

MR. BUSTOS: 2And if you'd like me to discuss any
of the specific causes of action, I’'m happy to do it.

THE COQURT: HNeo. Thank you though.

MR. BUSTOS: Thank you.

MR. HACKETT: Thank you, Your Honor.

Let me just first address the last thing that was
stated, which is that -- and I think this goes back to the
whole premise of the Motion to Dismiss, which is that all
of these claims arose from the redemption of the stock in

2007. A plain reading of the Complaint belies that

Page 11

PA316




10

11

i2

13

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

characterization. As just admitted by defense counsel,
Archon to this day takes the position that all of the
shareholders were properly redeemed in 2007. Now that
flies with =--

THE COURT: Hasn’t another Court found otherwise?

MR. HACEETT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HACKETT: That flies in the face of the
Federal Court decisions in D.E. Shaw [phonetic] and Lewar
[phonetic] that they appealed all the way to the Ninth
Circuit and yet they still maintain that position.

I didn’t supply it because it’s outside of the
pleadings, but when we get into the merits of this case,
the Court will see that this is not the only case pending
before the State Court involving these same issues. We
attached the Complaint in the Rader case, which was
recently filed in 2015, and, in that case, they take the
position that the redemption occurred in 2007 and was valid
and they are taking that position irregardless of the prier
findings in the other cases.

So, it’s not correct that all of these breaches
and causes of action that are asserted by my client arose
in 2007. Most of these claims, and the reason we brought
this as a separate case instead of just joining intec the

class action or, you know, waiting to see what happened in
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those cases, was that the ongoing breaches of the rights of
the preferred shareholders are continuing to be committed
to this day by Archon Corporation and those claims are
breach of fiduciary duty claims. We believe the officers
and the directors are bound by ==~ they were bound, in our
opinion, to pay the redemption to all of the preferred
shareholders once it was determined that they had
improperly paid the shareholders back in 2007. Now that
didn’t occur until 2012 when the Ninth Circuit affirmed,
but they, to this day, have not paid any of the preferred
shareholders and we contend that’s a continuing wrong that
continues to harm our client to this day.

and, in fact, under the Certificate, the amounts
continue to accrue. If you accept our position that the
stock was not properly redeemed in 2007 and has never been
properly redeemed because they didn’t do what was required,
which is pay the current amount due to all of the
shareholders, then that amount is accruing because the
dividends accrue every quarter., So, it’s just not -- it's
simply not correct to characterize our claims as arising in
2007.

Now, going back to the Court’s guestion about the
cross-jurisdictional tolling, it’s actually the defendants
that are asking the Court to do something unique and do

something different. They say: We want you to adopt a
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strange doctrine that’s not universally accepted. That's
not necessary because, in fact, the Jane Roe Dancer case, I
think, pretty much addresses this situation --

THE COURT: Where is that in your brief sc I can
follow you?

MR. HACKETT: 1In our Opposition, that is -- starts
on page 8. It's actually page 8, line 19.

THE COURT: OQOkay.

MR, HACKETT: And we go onto discuss it for the
next three pages, through page 10. But the focus of this
part of the argument is at the bottom of page B8 or page 8,
line 19. In Jane Reoe Dancer, the Nevada Supreme Court
expressly adopted c¢lass action tolling. Now, -~

THE COURT: Which I think they agreed ~--

MR. HACKETT: They concede that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HACKETT: They concede that, but they try to
then characterize that that's somehow far different than
this cross-jurisdictional tolling between a Federal Court
action and a later State Court action and that, therefore,
because it's -~ they're in different jurisdictions, these
doctrines are completely different and unique. And I think
that the facts of Jane Roe Dancer show that they’'re not.
And the reason why is in the Jane Roe Dancer case, the

question was: Does the Fair Labor Standards Act, a federal
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law, apply to these wage claims of these dancers such that
the Fair Labor Standard Act procedural device, which was
the opt-in of the plaintiffs into the class, should bar the
substitution of the class representative in that case for
the original class representative.

So there was no guestion the first case was timely
filed, but by the time they wanted to substitute the class
rep, they said: Well, her claims are barred under the
FLSA. So the federal law would have barred the
substitution and the Nevada Supreme Court said: No, in
Nevada, these cases are governed by NRCP 23, which is an
opt-out procedure. In other words, -- and here it 1s on
page 275 -- let me see. Page 275 of P.3d in that case,
176. The Supreme Court said:

NRCP 23 provides an opt-out class action construct
under which the original filing of the Complaint tolls
any applicable statute of limitations.

And there’s a footnote 21 where they go and they
cite footnote 2, which goes back and says: This is in
contrast to the opt-in under the FLSA. And, therefore, the
federal law didn’t apply. The Nevada state law did.

In this circumstance, a similar analysis is
applicable because under FRCP, the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure 23, not the Fair Labor Standards Act, that's also

an opt-out provision, as the Court is probably aware. And,
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therefore, the same analysis would apply in this case. The
original Federal Court class action, which is called the
Renero [phonetic] case was filed in August or -—- no, I'm
sorry. November of 2007. And there’s been no question
that that was filed within the applicable statute of
limitations. A&nd my client was a memper of that class.
There's no gquestion about that either.

So the only guestion is: Should his claim have
been stayed by that opt-out Rule 23 filing? And our
position is that Jane Roe Dancer shows clearly the Nevada
Supreme Court would apply the same analysis to our
subsequent claim and that case was pending in Federal Court
without class certification up until 2014 when it was
dismissed on different grounds, lack of subject matter
jurisdiction. The same attorneys then filed the Rader case
in 2015 and that case is in State Court here and that case
is in front of Judge Denton.

8o, ~~ and, interestingly, almost an identical
motion was denied by Judge Denton in that case claiming
that cross=-jurisdictional tolling shouldn’t apply and that
the filing of Renero [phonetic], the Federal Court class
action, didn’t apply to Rader’s later claim and they argued
these are the same lawyers, they knew about it. And Judge
Denton didn't accept that argument there.

So, getting back to the cross-jurisdictional
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teolling analysis, even if you accept the defendants’, you
know, argument that this is somehow different -~ and, by
the way, there are three State Courts that have expressly -
- that we cited in our brief -~ that’s at page 10, lines 14
through 17 of our Opposition. The three State Courts —-
Supreme Courts are Delaware, Montana, and Ohio. So they
have Illinocis, Texas, and Tennessee. I mean, take your
pick, but we think the better reasoned cases are the cases
that accept cross-jurisdicticnal tolling.

And we have the guote from the Delaware Supreme
Court, which we think is most applicable, on page 10 and it
points out that based on American Fipe, which is the Nevada
-- the U.S. Supreme Court class action tolling case, the
exact same interests in efficiency, economy of litigation,
and notice to the defendants all weigh in favor of
recognizing cross~jurisdictional tolling and this
presumption of a parade of horribles that will follow if a
State Court recognizes this doctrine just hasn’t happened
in those jurisdictions.

THE COURT: So wouldn’t part of that parade be me
still having this case?

MR. HACKETT: Well, if you considered that, Your
Honor, I -- we are asking you to keep the case, yes.

Now, interestingly though, I will mention that,

again, there are numerous other cases involving these same

Page 17

PA322




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

issues pending. As I said, the Rader case is before Judge
Denton and that is a class action., I think my client would
opt-out, which is why we filed this separate case because
we raise some other issues. But I think that case could
have a bearing on this case.

THE CQOURT: Okay.

MR, BACKETT: I would point out that --

THE COURT: How about I give you another minute to
wrap up?

MR. HACKETT: OQkay. I711 try and wrap it up.

I just want to point out that their argument on
the class action tolling not applying that he tried to rely
on it's the duty of the Legislature or the obligation of
the Legislature to set the limitations period and this
would be abandoning that and they cited NRS 11.500. That's
the same statute that they tried to rely on in the Rader
case, which Judge Denton didn’t apply. In that case, they
said that was a statute of repose and it set an outside
limit when you can bring these claims. They took that on a
writ to the Nevada Supreme Court and they weren't
successful In that argument,

So, again, raising the argument that the
Legislature set a specific limitation here for this type of
case I think has pretty well been determined in this

jurisdiction as not applicable.
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Just moving on guickly to the other aspect, I
agree with your comment that a lot of these factual issues
that they're raising are more appropriate for summary
judgment than a Motion to Dismiss. I don’t quarrel to the
citation of the Brelient case, the Brelient versus
Preferred Eguities. I'm familiar with that case. I worked
on it. In that decision, the Nevada Supreme Court said:
Yeah, public records, things that can’t reasonably be
disputed, like SEC filings, you can take judicial notice
of. &nd we don't guarrel with that aspect, but when --

THE COURT: It’s the next step that you guarrel
with?

MR. HACKETT: Right. The next step =--

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HACKETT: The next step is take those filings
and then make inferences about what the plaintiff knew and
when the plaintiff should have known it and when the
plaintiff should have discovered his cause of action and
that’s what they’re asking you to do in the Motion to
Dismiss and that's what you can’t do on a Motion to
Dismiss,

Just as an example, they say --

THE COURT: ©Oh there’s no need.

MR. HACKETT: Okay. You know, and -- I even cite

in the documents they attached, you can see that they're
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subiject to different inferences, as we point out.

Unless the Court has other guestions, --

THE COURT: No. Thank you very much.

MR. BUSTOS: Your Honor, I'11l limit nmy reply
comments to three or four points.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. BUSTOS: So, the first one, Your Honor, and
Mr. Hackett’s initial statements, something incorrect was
stated and this had to do with the findings in D.E. Shaw
[phonetic]., The Court in D.E. Shaw [phonetic} and Lewar
[phonetic] did not find that stock wasn’t redeemed. To the
contrary, the Court relied on the fact that the stock was
redeemed in ruling in favor of the D.E. Shaw [phonetic] and
Lewar [phonetic} plaintiffs. Yes, the Court found that
Archon did not calculate it correctly, but the Court based
that finding on the fact that stock was redeemed on August
31%%, 2007. BAbsent that finding, the D.E. Shaw [phonetic]
and Lewar [phonetic] plaintiffs could not have prevailed in
those cases.

But, Your Honor, we’re not here talking about, you
know, the entities that Archon certainly disagrees with
what occurred there, but really wefre talking about the
timing of the ~- of this case.

So the second case I wanted to raise, Your Honor,

was with respect to the cross-jurisdictional tolling and
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the citation to Jane Roe Dancer. Mr. Hackett made the
distinction that Jane Roe Dancer was talking about the
differences between federal law and Nevada law. That’s not
the issue of cross-jurisdictional tolling. It’'s that
jurisdiction --

THE CQURT: I agree with you on that.

MR. BUSTOS: Okay. And then I would just cite the
Court to a quote from that case:

Class actions brought under NRCP 23 teoll the

limitations period on all potential.

S50 it was referring to Nevada procedure.

The third point, Your Honor, 1is the issue of what
was before Judge Denton and Mr, Hackett ~-

THE COURT: And that, I have no idea. So, I
wouldn't worry too much about that.

MR. BUSTOS: Well all I wanted to point out, Your
Honor, is that Judge Denton did not decide these issues and
neither did the Nevada Supreme Court. Judge Denton did
decide that he had -- he essentially said he was going to
rule on these issues at a later time. He declined to
decide whether or not cross-jurisdictional tolling would
apply. We think it needs to be declided at the outset. We
did take a writ. The Nevada Supreme Court said: Well,
Judge Denton has to decide it conclusively first before

they’re going to do anything. So it still is an open
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question. As far as I know, no Court in Nevada has
conclusively ruled on the issue.

And then the final point I'1l make, Your Honor,
with respect -- is to the Brelient case. Apparently, I
guess, I’'ve been prenouncing it wrong. Is that what we're
talking about, Your Honor, when we have matters of public
record, it doesn’t require an inference. If something is
the matter of public record, that as a matter of law, you
can say somebody should =-- knew or should have known of
that fact. And that’s all I’'11 comment about that point,
vour Honor, unless you have further gquestions.

THE COQURT: No. Thank you very much. Thank you
both for your briefs and arguments. Very helpful and, as I
like to tell people, I enjoy it when attorneys do a good
job. SO, thank you.

Having said that, at the end of the day, somebody
wins on some points and somebody loses and may win later,
but -- and there's a first time for everything.

I'm going to deny the Motion to Dismiss without
prejudice based primarily on -- looking into my crystal
pall, I think that the Nevada Supreme Court would agree
with the Delaware Supreme Court as stated in that Dow
Chemical versus Blanco case in these circumstances of this
case. I'm not sure about whether it would on state to

state or —=- but, under these circumstances, with a Federal
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Court case being in Nevada and now this court case being in
Nevada State Court, I think under those circumstances it
makes sense and I will apply and rule that class action
tolling applies, as both parties have agreed, but the
subpart of that, that being the cross-—jurisdictional
tolling, I believe also applies and so I‘1ll make that
ruling.

And, Mr. Hackett, I’ll continue teo give you
further reasons, but you’ll be preparing the Order. Submit
it to Mr. Bustos for review and approval and put that in
there.

The other arguments in favor or against dismissal,
to me, are better addressed, if at all, on a Motion for
Judgment. In particular, as defense counsel stated,
whether plaintiff knew or should have known of these
various public record filings. Yeah, they were public
records, but I think even then, under these circumstances,
not appropriate to base a dismissal on those. And, so, I'm
-- the denial of the Motion is without prejudice under the
Motion te Dismiss standards as set forth in the parties’
briefs.

Let's see. As to NRS 11.500, that's one of those
where it's hard for me, if not impossible, for me to rule
on in terms of don’t recall it being raised and I'm not

familiar with it off the top of my head. And i1f it wasn't
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raised, it's not appropriate for me to base a decision on
because it wasn’t raised,

Alternatively, the -- so the main basis is the
cross-jurisdictional tolling. Alternatively is the,
quote/unguote, I forget the term of art now, but the
ongoing harm as alleged in plaintiff’s Opposition,
generally set forth on pages 13 through 18. That’'s an
alternative because I don't think we even get to that based
on the cross-jurisdictional tolling. I'm trying to read my
writing up here,

8o, yes, I agree that based on the Renero
[phonetic] case being a class action in Nevada Federal
Court, tolled under the cross-jurisdictional, I agree Jane
Roe Dancer doesn’t necessarily apply given the cross-
jurisdictional tolling argument, but, I think, at the same
time, it’s indicative that tolling issue, which isn’t
necessarily addressed explicitly in the statute by the
Legislature, may be addressed by the Court judicially.
And, so, I think that kind of supports my finding that
cross-jurisdictional tolling would apply.

Thank you both.

MR. HACKETT: Thank you, Your Heonor.

MR. BUSTOS: Thank you, Your Honor,

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 10:24 A.M.

* &« * * *
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CERTIFICATION

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from
the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the
above~aentitled matter,.

AFFIRMATION

1 affirm that this transcript does not contain the social
security or tax identification number of any person or
entity.

NN

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER
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